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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sharcholders of Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A.:
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. ("the
Parent”) and Subsidiaries ("the Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of recognized income and expenses,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash flows statement and notes to the consolidated
financial statements for the year then ended.

Directors® Responsibifity for the Consolidaied Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements so that
they present fairly the consclidated equity, consolidated financial position and consolidated results of Grupo
Empresarial San José, 5.A. and Subsidiaries in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework
applicable to the Group in Spain (identified in Note 2.1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements)
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in Spain. Those regulations require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation by
the Parent’s directors of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. -

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2014, and their consolidated results and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other
provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain.

Deloilte, $.L Inserita en el Registro Mercantd de Madnid, tomo 13.650, seccién 8%, oo 188, hoja M-54414, inscripcion 96*. C.1LX: B-79104469.
Domic'a social: Piaza Pab'o Ruz Picasso, 1, Torre Picasso, 28020, Madrid.




Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statcments, which indicates that on
20 May 2015 the Parent’s directors formally prepared a new set of consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 in order to include significant information about the event after the reporting period
which occurred on 11 May 2015 and is described below,

In this connection, as indicated in Notes 17.3 and 27 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on
30 December 2014 the SANJOSE Group entered into an agreement, with the majority of the creditor banks, for
the non-extinctive modifying novation of the original syndicated financing agreement, which included certain
conditions subsequent. As indicated in Note 17.3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the
agreement establishes, among other matters, the creation of three independent portions of financing, the
cancellation of the joint and several guarantees which the Parent and Constructora San José, S.A. (among other
subsidiaries) had provided to the creditors of the original syndicated financing, and the commitment to sell to the
creditors the real estate division headed by the subsidiary San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A. (see Note
12). The final court order officially approving the aforementioned agreement for the non-extinctive modifying
novation of the original syndicated financing agreement was issued on 11 May 2015, thus satisfying the main
condition subsequent included therein. In this connection, as indicated in Note 27, the Parent’s dircctors
consider that the remaining conditions subsequent, which depend basically on measures that must be taken by
the Parent and certain subsidiaries, will be met within the time periods established in the agreement.

This auditor’s report replaces the auditor’s report that we isswed on 30 April 2015, in which we expressed an
unqualified opinion, in relation to the consolidated financial statements that had initially been authorised for
issue, Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2014 contains the explanations which the Parent’s directors
consider appropriate about the situation of Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries, the evolution of
their business and other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. We have
checked that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is consistent with that contained in
the consolidated financial statements for 2014. Our work as auditors was confined to checking the consolidated
directors' report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any information other than that
drawn from the accounting records of Grupo Empresariat San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries.

7 A Martin-Gonzilez
20 May 2015
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Translation inte English of consofidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the eveni of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails.

GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A. and Subsidiairies
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR

YEARS 2014 AND 2013
(Thousand of Euros)
YEAR YEAR
" 2014 2013 (%)
A) CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue {Note 23.1) 465,082 525,964
Other operating income 10,078 14,511
Change In Invenfories of finlshed goods and work
In progress (Notes 13 and 23.11) (1.7814) (15,809)
Procurements (Note 23.2) (282,414) (334,834)
Cost of raw materials and other consumables used {142,005) {177,581)
Works performed by other companies {141,352) {156,650)
tmpairment of goods held for resale, raw materials and other supplies {Note 13) 943 {603)
Staff costs {Note 23.3) (61,411) {86,488)
Other operating expenses (92,568) (81,500)
Losses on impairment and change in allow ances for lrade receivables (18,006) {10,276)
Other current operaling expenses (74,562) (71,224)
Depreclation and amortisation charge {Notes 7,8 and 10} (6,374) (4,778)
Excessive provislons {Notes 16 and 23.10} 128 463
Im palrment and galns or losses on disposal of non-current assets {Note 23.9) 682 7,359
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 11,422 24,888
Finance Income {Note 23.7) 22,220 10,420
Finance costs (Note 23.8) (18,297) (26,141)
Exchange differences 2,060 277
Im palrment and gains or losses on disposal of financlal Instruments (9,418) 113
FINANCIAL PROFIT / (LOSS) (3,435) (15,331)
Profit! {loss) of com panles accounted for using the equity method (Notes 14.4 and 16) (864) 987
PROFIT {LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7,123 10,544
Income Tax (Note 21} {49,603) (5.527)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (42,480) 5,017
B) NON-CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit for the year from discontinued operations {Nole 12.1} (80,202) {163,599)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (122,682) (158,582)
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EXTERNAL PARTNERS (2,628) (3,340)
PROFIT {LOSS) FORTHE YEAR {120,054) (155,242)
Earnlngs per share {Euros/share)
-Baslc {1.85) (2.39)
+Diluted (1.85) (2.39)

(*) Re- expression data (see Nole 4.23)
Accompanying noles 1 to 27 to the Annual Report and Anex I, ll and B form an infegral part of
the Consolidaled Income Slalement at 31st December 2014

ESVEFARIL CRLVO IGLESIAS

INTERPRETE JURSYT INGLES-ESPANOL
CiSerafif Jubio, 5, 1°
36900 Mar 4 Penlevedra)
calvo.estefatizgigmail. GOIE

690390705 986390498




Translation into English of consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issied in Spanish. In ithe event of

discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails.

GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR YEARS 2014 AND 2013

{Thousand of Euros)

1213112014 31202013 (4

CONSOLIDATED PROFITS / {LOSSES) OF THE YEAR (122,682) (158,582)

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity
-For cash fow hedges (11,457) (1,816)
-Other 15 97
-Tax effecl 2,555 316
(8,887) (1,403)

Transfer to income statement

-For cash flow hedges 5,440 (2,222)
-Other (322) (414)
-Tax effect (475} 545
4,643 {2,091}
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOMES / (EXPENSES) (126,928) {162,076)
a) Altributable to Parent (124,247) (158,873)
b) Altribulable to minority inlerests (2,679) {3,203)

{*) Re- expression dala (see Nole 4.23)

Accompanying noles 1 1o 27 to the Annual Report and Anex |, [ and Bforman inlegral part of
of the consolidated slalemenl of recognised income and expenses at 31 December 2014

INTERPRETE JU1:

36900 A

ESTEEArR CALVOIGLESIAS
WGLES-ESPAROL
o, 5, 1°
Cntevedra)
calvo.estefanisiigmail.co
690320705 - GB6B90498
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Translation into English of consolidated financial statemenis for the year ending 31 December 20143 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails,

GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A. and Subsidiaries
GONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR YEARS 2014 AND 2013
{Thousand of Bxos)
YEAR 2014 YEAR 2013 )
Cash flows from operating aotivitios:
(+) Profit (Loss) before tax 7123 10,544
{+) Depreciation and amorlisation charge 6,374 4,778
{+I-) Changes in operaling allowances 18,021 4,222
() Financial income (22,220) (10,420)|
{+)} Financlal costs 18,297 26,141
{+!-) Exchange differonces {2,060) (277)
{+/-) Resull of companies aceounled for using Lhe equily method 864 (987)
(+1-) Other galns or losses 7,286 {4,985)|
Tolal Cash Flows from operating asllvities 3,786 29,016
Othor adjustmonts
(-} Tax benefils paid in the year - {22}
(19 (merease) / Decrease In working capilal
a) (inarease) /Decrease ininvenioies {7.013) 8,498
b) (narease) /Decreas e in deblors and othes recelvables 51,785 62,502
¢) (Increase) fdecreas e In other cumont assels {3,475) {320)
dj (lnurease)  Doarease in rade payables {17,405) {16,978)
a) {Incraase) / decrease in othar cuirent labilitas 5,001 330
(+1:) Other collections / (paymenis) due lo operaling activlies {5.659) {04 1)
1. TOTAL HET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 57,019 70,084
Investments:
) Properly, plaM and equipment and investmenl proparly (2,886) (2,975)
{-) Intangible assels (1,042) {162)
{-} Shares and olher financial assels (8,075) (72,113)
Total Investimeonts (13,003) {82,260)
Dividends recelved - 671
Disposals:
(+} Properly, plant and equipmant and invesimenl properly 7,156 -
(+) intangible assels 7 -
Total Disposals) 7,163 -
Other collections f (payments) due to financing actvilies 47,819 104,243
2. TOTAL NET GASH FLOWS FROM FINANGCING ACTIVITIES 41,979 22,564
Other collections f (payments} due to treasury share ransactions - {456)]
Dividends payed {2,802} -
|
Inorease f (decrease) In borrowlngs {33,748) {91,666)
Hon cument {22,073) (89,286)
Currenl {11,675) (2,380)
NetIntorests: (11,355)) {17,328)
Recelved , 8,044
Paid {20,285) {25,372)
Olher cotlootions f {(payments) due (o financlal activities {6,879) {19,010}
3. TOTAL NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (53,884) {128,469)
TOTAL CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR 45,114 (36,611)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 169,581 197,398
Changes in the year 45,114 {35.811)
Discontinued operation (Note 12.1} (1.435) {2.006)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 203,260 159,581

{*) Re- expression dala (see Note 4.23)

Acconpantying noles 10 27 lo the Anmsal Report and Anex | | and W form an ilegeal par of

e oA o Sy ESTERAnin CAAIGLESIAS
INTERPRETE JURA0&AHSLES-ESPANCL
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Translation info English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originafly issuwed in Sponish. fn the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated
Notes for the year ended 31 December 2014

Activities of the Group

Incorporation

Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. (hereinafer "the Parent”), formerly Udra S.A., was incorporated on 18 August
1987 for an unlimited period of lime by virtue of a public deed executed in Pontevedra in the presence of Ponlevedra
notary, Rafael Sanmarln Losada, under number 1539 of his protocol.

At the Ordinary and Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeling of the Company held on 17 June 2008, it was
agreed to change the corporate name into that of "Grupo Empresarial San Jos S.A.", which was duly formalised by
means of a public deed dated 17 July 2009.

The Parent is registered in the Mercantile Register of Pontevedra on sheet 88 of the Companies book 586, entry no.
1 on page no. 8119. it holds tax identificalion number A-36.046.993.

Its regislered office is located in Pontevedra, at calle Rosalia de Castro, 44..
The shares of the Parent are listed on the Spanish Stock Exchange since July 2009,
Activities

The activilies carried on by the Parent and its investees (Grupo San Jose) are classified into the following business
unils:

1. Development of all forms of real eslate construction.

2. Performance of all manner of public or private construclion work, mainly buildings, road networks and hydraulic
works.

3. Purchase and sale, administration, operation and any other similar activilies in relation 1o all manner of rural or
urban properly.

4. Lease of all manner of assets.

5. Design, construction and management of electricily and renewable energy facililies.

6. Slorage, distribulion, purchase and sale and import of manufaclured products.

7. Management and recruitment of personnel for all types of company, association and organisation.

8. Study, design, development and purchase and sale of all manner of electronic, computer, telecommunications
and audiovisual components, preducls and syslems.

9, Full maintenance of hospital facilities, maintenance of operaling theatres and eleciro medical equipment, and
manufacture and sale of integraled systems for operaling theatres, ICUs and patient rooms.

10. Study, design and installalion of air conditioning, healing, industrial cooling and plumbing facililies; purchase and
sale or manufaciure of all kinds of relaled mechanisms; to sell and acl as representative for lhird-parly producls.

11.Heallhcare: construction of hospitat facilities and public and privale healthcare maintenance services; eleclro
medicine and gas facililies and maintenance.

ESTEFamin DR IGLERIAS
INTERPRETE JuRANQTRSLES-ESPANOL
ClSeralin ¥ 5,17
36900 Marin {(Nd]evedra)

calvo.estefanizggmait.com
£90320705 - HB6B0498 6




Translation inte English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 Deccinber 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

12. Inslallation work and services: integral installalion work, electrical, mechanical and hydraulic installation work,
furnkey projects and special inslallation work, as well as the maintenance of all manner of other facilities not
related to the heallhcare industry such as industrial facililies, other properties, elc.

13. Infrastruclure and transport: performance of infrastructure and transporl sltudies, projects and installalion work,
including those relaling to airports, ports, railways and other types of transport infrastructure.

14. Energy and environment: performance of studies and projects focused on the production and sale of energy and
industrial maintenance, wasle water treatment, installation of water treatment plants and other environmental
activities.

Under no circumstances shall the company object be deemed to include aclivilies the performance of which requires
any lype of administralive authorisation which the Company does not hold.

Also, the Parent may subscribe to, purchase or acquire by any other means shares and/or olher equity interests in
olher public and private limited companies, even if their company object differs from thal of Grupo Empresarial San
Jose, S.A., and may form new public or private limited companies wilh other legal enlities or individuals, whatever
valid purpose or aclivily the newly formed companies may have.

Furthermore, Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. is the Parent of the San Jose Group. Its main object is the
managemen! and control of all the business activities performed by the companies in which it has a material and
Iasling ownership interest.

The San Jose Group's activities are led by Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. {a holding and real eslate company},
which in lurns mainly participates in: Conslructora San José, S.A. (consltruclion), San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios,
S.A\U. (real estale- see Note Nola 12.2), Sanjose Concesiones y Servicios, S.A.U. (mainlenance services), San
José Energia y Medio Ambiente, S.A. {energy) y Desamollos Urbanisticos Udra, S.A.U. (urban developments).

The Group companies, whose business activities have to meet cerlain environmental requirements, have adopled
the relevant environmental measures in order to comply with current legislalion in this connection. Since the costs
relaling to these requirements are not considered to be malerial with respect to equity, financial posilion and resulls
of these companies, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these noles lo the
consolidated financial statements.

The specific lines of business of each subsidiary, jointly controlled entity and associale are disclosed in Appendixes
I, Il and ill.

Transactions executed within the previous years:

Spin-off of "Sanjose Tecnologias, S.A.U." in favour of "Constructora San Jose, S.A.", "Sanjose Energia y
Medio Amblente, S.A." and "Sanjose Concesiones y Servicios, S.A.U." .

The Board of Direclors of San Jose Tecnologias, S.A.U., Construclora San Jose, S.A., Sanjose Energia y Medio
Ambiente, S.A. and Sanjose Concesiones y Servicios, S.A.U., have agreed on the spin-off of the company San Jose
Tecnologias, S.A.U. and its division into lhree business activilies. Integrating elements of the same have been
valued by Directors of the company on EUR 11,409 thousand, being the detail as follows:

- Engineering and industrial conslruclion: the beneficiary company of this business activily is "Constructora San
Jose, S.A". Nel value of the business activity branch amounts to EUR 5,045 thousand.

- Maintenance of alt type of facilities: the beneficiary company of this business aclivity is "San Jose
Concesiones y Servicios, S.A".  Net value of the business activity branch amounls to EUR 2,386 thousand.

- Maintenance of all lype of facililies: the beneficiary company of this business aclivily is "San Jose
Concesiones y Servicios, S.A.". Net value of the business aclivity branch amounis to EUR 3,978 thousand.

Total value of the spin-off company, as well as of each branch of activily of the same were qualified as posilive by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., acling and independent professional experts appointed by the Register of
Companies of Pontevedra and included on their report issued on 19 October 2010.
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Translation into English of consolidated nofes for the year ending 31 Decentber 2014 originally issucd in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
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This transaction was approved by lhe General Shareholders' Meeting of the Company held on 256 November 2010
and granted by public deed on 27 December 2010. As of 20 July 2011 it was recorded at the Trade Registrar of
Companies of Pontevedra.

The aforemenlioned spin-off will qualify for taxalion under the tax neutrality regime provided for Act 2005/18/CE and
in Chapter Vill of Tille VIl on the Special regime of mergers, spin-off and exchange of shares established by lhe
Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004 of 5 March approving the Consolidaled Spanish Corporalion Tax Law..

Segregation of the real estate branch of activity of Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. (formerly, Udra, S.A.)
in favour of "San Jose Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, $.A." (formerly, Inmobiliaria Udra, S.A.) and capital
Increase of the beneficiary company.

As of 17 and 18 of March 2010, the Board of Directors of lhe Company “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios S.A."
and its main shareholder *Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A." passed, respeclively, the segregation of the branch of
activity of the later, by means of a non-monelary capital increase, of all real estate assets and liabililies of "Grupo
Empresarial San José, S.A.°, pursuant to provisions set forth no Title Il of Act 3/2009 as of 3 April regarding
Struclural Modificalions of Companies. Said transaclion was approved at the Ordinary and Exiraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders of company, held on 28 June 2010. The identification of assets of the segregated branch
of aclivily, as well as their valuation and assessment by independent experts was included within the financial
slalements for year 2010,

The total value of the branch amounts to EUR 33,945 thousand according to the segregalion balance at 31
December 2009, according to the study executed by KPMG, acling as independent expert appointed by the Trade
Registrar of Pontevedra, and ils report issued on 11 May 2010,

Consequenlly, the receiving company increases its share capital in EUR 31,267 thousand arranged inlo 5,211,192
shares of EUR 6.00 par value each and share premium of EUR 2,678 thousand. The new shares bear the right to
share profit from 1 January 2010, There is no preferenlial subscription. This transaclion was recorded at the
Registrar of Companies of Pontevedra on 7 Seplember 2010.

Said segregation has been execuled pursuant lo the Structural Modifications Act 3/2008 and Chapter VIII of Title VI
on the Special Regime of mergers, spin-off and exchange of shares established by the Legislalive Royal Decree
42004 on 5 March approving lhe Consolidated Spanish Corporalion Tax Law.

Merger of Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A. and its investees Parzara, S.L.U., Guadalmina
Inversiones, S.L.U., Fomento inmobiliario de Gestion, 5.A.U., Parquesol Promociones y Desarrollos
Inmobiliarios, S.L.U. and Parque Usera, S.L.

On 7 April 2008, the directors of the group company Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A. (absorbing company)
and of its subsidiaries Parzara, S.L.U., Guadalmina Inversiones, S.L.U., Fomento Inmobiliario de Gestin, S.A.U.,
Parquesol Promociones y Desarrollos Inmobifiarios, 5.L.U. and Parque Usera, 5.L. signed a merger by absorption
plan, which was filed al the Madrid and Valladolid Companies Regislry for subsequent publicalion at the Official
Gazelte of the Companies Mercantile Registry (BORME).

The aforementioned "Merger Plan" was approved by lhe shareholders al the respective Annual General Meetings of
the companies involved in the merger on 26 June 2008, and was recorded on 16 June 2009,

On completion of this merger, Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A. (currently and by vifue of the
aforementioned merger, Grupo Empresarial San Jos S.A.) now occupies lhe legal posilion of the absorbed
companies and will be the sole legal person in terms of the ownership, management and disposal of the assets of
the absorbed companies

Transaclions execuled by absorbed companies are taken into consideralion by Parquesol inmobiliaria y Proyeclos,
S.A for accounting purposes as on 1 January 2008.

Since alt the date of the merger all the share capital of the absorbed companies was owned direclly or indirectly by
the absorbing company, il was nol necessary to increase the share capilal of the latter or exchange shares or olher
equily interests.

This merger qualified for taxation under the special tax regime provided for in Chapter VIll of Tille Vil of Legislative
Royal Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, approving the Consolidated Spanish Corporation Tax Law, of which the tax
authorities will be formally notified
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Merger of "Udra, S.A," (currently GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A.) and “Grupo Empresarial San
José S5.A, "San José Infraestructuras y Servicios, S.A.", "Udramed, S.L.U.", "Parquesol Inmobiliaria y
Proyectos, S.A." and "LHOTSE Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L."

On 7 April 2008, the directors of the group company Parquescl Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A. {absorbing company)
and of its subsidiaries Parzara, S.L.U., Guadalmina Inversiones, S.L.U., Fomento Inmobiliario de Geslion, S.A.U.,
Parquesol Promociones y Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L.U. and Parque Usera, S.L. signed a merger by absorplion
plan, which was filed at the Madrid and Valladolid Companies Regisiry for subsequent publication at the Official
Gazette of the Companies Mercanlile Registry (BORME}.

On 19 and 20 May 2008 the independent valuers' reports were prepared on the content of the merger plan detailed
and on the assels and liabilities contributed by the absorbed companies, fogether wilh the direclors' report explaining
and giving reasons for the merger from the legal and economic standpoint, making special reference to the share
exchange ralio and the specific valuation difficulties encountered.

The aforementioned "Merger Plan" was approved by the shareholders at the respeclive Annual General Meelings of
the companies involved in the merger on 26 and 27 June 2008.

The date as form the transactions of the absorbed companies qualify for accounling purposes as performed by the
Company is 1 January 2008. The aforemenlioned public deed was registered at the Mercantile Registry on 17 July
2009. After completion of said registration on 20 July 2009, the Company started to quote on the stock exchange.

Said transaction also includes the following:

a. Split of shares of the Company, issuing 200 new shares for each former share and reducing, therefore, the par
value from EUR 6,00 to EUR 0.03.

b. In order to allow entrance of minority shareholders of absorbed companies and pursuant to exchange terms
and conditions agreed upon by the General Meelings of lhe involved companies, released by public deed
granted on 10 July 2009, a capilal increase was executed for a total of 21,298,083 shares of EUR 0.03 par
value each and an issuance premium amounting to EUR 6.93676 per share.

On complelion of this merger, GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A. (formerly Udra, S.A.) now occupies the
legal posilion of the absorbed companies and will be the sole legal person in terms of the ownership, management
and disposal of the assets of the absorbed companies

The aforementioned merger entails proporlionally consolidating 100% of the balances and lransactions of the
Company Lhotse Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L, in the Group's Consolidaled Financial Statements. As by 31
December 2008 said company was under joint control, it was therefore proportionally consolidated. The effect on the
Consolidated Equity attributable to the Group at 1 January 2009 consisls of an increase of EUR 17,257 thousand,
due to the capilal increase in order lo include this company's minorily share. Further, complelion of said merger
entails that cenlain effects on Equily, such as adjusiments to equity, which at 31 December 2008 were allributed to
minorily interests, may now direclly affect the Parent’s shareholders.

This merger qualilied for taxation under the special tax regime provided for in Chapler VIl of Tille VIl of Legislalive
Royal Decree 4/2004, of 5 March, approving the Consolidated Spanish Corporalion Tax Law, of which the tax
authorilies will be formally notified

Capital increase of "San José Desarrcllos Inmoblliaries, S.A."

The shareholders of "San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A." at lhe Extraordinary General Meeling held on 19
Seplember 2008 agreed a non-monetary capital increase, without right of preferential subscriplion of minorily
shareholders.

The efficiency of said capital increased depended on the inscription at the corresponding Trade Registries of the
public deeds which formalise: (i) The merger by "Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyeclos, S.A." and five associates; and
(i) the merger by "Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A.” of "San José Infraeslrucluras y Servicios, S.A.", "Udramed,
S.L.U." “Parquesol Inmeobiliaria y Proyeclos, S.A." and "Lhotse Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L.".

The merger balance sheet, at 31 December 2008, as well as olher relevant information, was disclosed on lhe
financial statements of the associate for the year of Iransaction.

i AR BLESIAS
lNlERE’R%TE W O‘l_I-JGLE‘;S;EbPANOL
sratinf Iybio, &,
36%:]80(“!@'” \1 J ’gﬁlE\fedra)

ivo.esteld (o gmail.com
ca(5903’20705 - 936800498 9




Translation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
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Merger of "Sanjose Tecnologias, S.A.U." and the investees: “Artel Ingenieros S.L.U.”, “Sefri Ingenieros
S.AU.Y, “Instal 8 S.A.U." and “SM Klima S.A.U.”

The shareholders at the Annual General Meetings of Sanjose Tecnologias, S.A.U., Artel Ingenieros S.L.U.,
Sefrilngenieros S.A.U., Instal 8 S.A.U. and SM Kiima S.A.U., held on 30 June 2008, approved the plan for the
merger of these companies through their absorplion by Sanjose Tecnologas, S.A.U. The merger balance sheets
approved are those al 31 December 2007, which were included in the audiled annual financial stalements of that
year.

The aforementioned merger took place through the absorption of Artel Ingenieros S.L.U., Sefrilngenieros S.A.U.,
Instal 8 S.A.U. and SM Klima S.A.U, by Sanjose Tecnologas, S.A.U., and the absorbing company acquired all of the
assels and liabililies of the absorbed companies through the transfer en bloc of all the assels, rights and obligations
of all lypes of the absorbed companies to the absorbing company, which acquired them by universal succession and
which was subrogated o all the rights and obligalions of the absorbed companies, which will be dissolved without
liquidation once the merger has been definilively registered at the Mercanlile Regislry.

Pursuant {0 Arlicle 250 of the Consolidaled Spanish Companies Law, since Sanjose Tecnologas, S.A.U. owns all the
shares of Artel Ingenieros S.L.U., Sefiilngenieros 3.A.U,, Instal 8 S.A.U. and SM Klima S.A.U,, it is not necessary to
increase the share capital of the absorbing company or fix a share exchange ratio. Similarly, neither the directors nor
independent valuers are required lo prepare reparts in relation to the merger plan.

The assets and fiabilities transferred in the merger were included in the accounting records of Sanjose Tecnologas,
S.A. at the same amounts as those at which they had been carried in the accounting records of the absorbed
companies.

The date as from the transactions of the absorbed companies is laken into consideration by Sanjose Tecnologias,
S.A. for accounting purposes is 1 January 2008.

The aforementioned merger qualified for laxation under the tax neutrality regime provided for in Chapter VIl of Tille
VIl of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, on 4 March, approving the Spanish Companies Tax Act.

No tax benefils were enjoyed by Artel Ingenieros S.L.U., Sefri Ingenieros S.A.U., Instal 8 S.A.U. and SM Klima
S.A.U., in respect of which Sanjose Tecnologas, S.A. must assume the fulfilment of certain requirements, pursuant
to Articles 90.1 and 20.2 of the aforementioned Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004,

Spin-off of investee Tecnocontrol, 5.A.U, branch of activity in favour of Tecnocontrol Servicios, S.A.U.

Al the Annual General Meeling held on 30 June 2009, Tecnocontrol Servicios S.AU., Tecnocontrol S.A.U. and San
Jos Tecnologas S.A.U. approved the partial spin-off of "Tecnocontro! S.A.U." and "Tecnocontrol Servicios S.A.U." by
unanimous decision of the sole shareholder of both companies -"San Jos Tecnologas S.A.U."- as regards the
deparlment engaged in corrective and preventive maintenance of mechanical, electrical and plumbing facilities of
“Tecnocontrol, S.A.U." in favour of "Tecnoconlrol Servicios 5.A.U". The approved merger balance sheets are those
closed at 31 December 2008, which were included in the audited financial statements for thaf year.

As a resull of the parlial spin-off of Tecnoconlrol S.A.U. assels and liabililies, Tecnoconirol Servicios S.A.U., by
universal succession and fransfer en bloc, will acquire all the lega! obligations related to the aforementioned asseis
and liabilities, wilh the beneficiary company assuming all the impairment and obligations arising from lhe spin-off
equify. The aforementioned partial joint spin-off project has been duly formalised through public deed dated 28
December 2009, and submitted to the Mercanlife Register for regisiration on 30 December 2009. The
aforementioned public deed was registered at the Mercanlile Registry on 22 January 2010.

The aforementioned merger qualified for taxation under the lax neulrality regime provided for in Chapter VIl of Title
Vil of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, on 4 March, approving lhe Spanish Companies Tax Act.

No tax benefils were enjoyed by Tecnocontrol S.A.U. in respect of which Tecnocontrol Servicios S5.A.U and San
José Tecnologias S.A.U must cemply wilh cerlain requirements pursuant to sections 1 and 2 of Article 90.1 and 90.2
of said Royal Decree 4/2004.
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Merger of "Sanjose Tecnologias, S.A.U." and the investees: "Tecnocontrol, S.A.U."

Sanjose Tecnologias S5.A.U., and Tecnocontrol S.A.U. Annual General Meetings, held on 30 June 2009, approved
the joint spin-off of business branch and merger by absorption project of Tecnoconlrol S.A.U. as the absorbed
company by Sanjos Tecnologias, S.A., as absorbing company. The merger balance sheets approved are those al 31
December 2008,

The aforementioned merger was executed through the absorplion of Tecnoconirol 5.A.U. by San Jose Tecnologias,
pursuant to article 233 SCA, which implies the exlinction of the absorbed company, the transfer en bloc of its assels
and liabilities to the absorbing company, acquiring by universal succession the absorbed company's righls and
obligations. The aforementioned joinl merger project has been duly made public through public deed dated 28
December 2009, and submitted to the Mercanlile Regisler for registralion on 30 December 2009. The
aforementioned public deed was registered at the Mercantile Regislry on 22 Janvary 2010.

Pursuant to Article 250 of the Consolidated Spanish Companies Law, since Sanjose Tecnologas, S.A.U. owns all the
shares of Artel Ingenieros S.L.U., Sefrilngenieros S.A.U,, Instal 8 S.A.U. and SM Klima S.A.U., it is not necessary to
increase lhe share capital of the absorbing company or fix a share exchange ratio. Simitarly, neilther the directors nor
independent valuers are required to prepare reports in relalion to the merger plan.

The assets and liabilities transferred in the merger were included in the accounting records of Sanjose Tecnologias,
S.A.U. at the same amounts as those at which they had been carried in the accounting records of the absorbed
companies.

Transaclions executed by absorbed companies are laken into consideration by San Jose Tecnologias, S.A.U. for
accounting purposes as on 1 January 2009. These transactions were reflected in the accounts upon completion of
the merger through its registration at the Mercantile Registry.

The aforementioned merger qualified for taxation under the tax neutrality regime provided for in Chapter VI of Tille
Viil of Legistative Royal Decree 4/2004, on 4 March, approving the Spanish Companies Tax Acf.

No tax benefits were enjoyed by Tecnoconlrol S.A.U. in respect of which Tecnocontrol Servicios S.A.U and San
Jose Tecnologias S.A.U must comply with cerlain requirements pursuant lo sections 1 and 2 of Ardlicle 90.1 and 90.2
of said Royal Decree 4/2004.

Merger of “Constructora Sanjose, S.A." and the investees: “Alcava Mediterranea, S.AU.”, “Constructora
Avalos, §.AU.”, “Balltagi Mediterrani, 5.A.U.” and "Construccion, Rehabllitacion y Conservacion, S.L.U."”

The shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Constiuclora San José, S.A. held on 28 June 2008 and those al
the Annual General Meetings of Alcava Medilermea, S.AU., Conslruclora Avalos, S.A.U., Balltagi Mediterrani, S.A.U.
and Conslruccién, Rehabilitacion y Conservacion., S.L.U. held on 30 June 2008 approved the plan for the merger of
these companies through the absorplion of the latter companies by Constructora San José, S.A. The merger balance
sheets approved are those al 31 December 2007, which were included in the annual financial statements of that
year.

The aforementioned merger took place through the absorplion of Alcava Meditlerrnea, 5.AU., Construclora Avalos,
S.A.U., Balltagl Mediterrani, S.A.U. and Construcciéon, Rehabilitacién y Conservacion., S.L.U. by Consiructora San
José, S.A,, and the absorbing company acquired all of the assefs and liabilities of the absorbed companies through
the transfer en bloc of all the assels, rights and obligations of all types of the absorbed companies lo the absorbing
company, which acquired them by universal succession and was subrogaled 1o ali the rights and obligalions of the
absorbed companies, which were dissolved without liquidalion once the merger plan had been executed in a public
deed and registered at the Mercantile Registry on 17 February 2009.

Purstant to Arlicle 250 of the Consolidated Spanish Companies Law, since Conslructora San José, S.A. owns all
the shares of Alcava Medilerrnea, S.A.U., Consliuctora Avalos, S.Al., Balllagi Mediterrani, S.A.U. and
Construccion, Rehabililacion y Conservacion., S.L.U., il is not necessary to increase the share capital of the
absorbing company or fix a share exchange rafio. Similarly, neither the directors nor independent valuers are
required to prepare reports in relation to the merger plan.

The assels and liabilities iransferred in the merger were included in the accounting records of Consfructora San
José, S.A. al lhe same amounls as {hose at which {hey had been carried In {he accounting records of the absorbed
companies.
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Transactions of the abscrbed companies are considered to have been performed by Conslruclora San José, S.A. for
accounting purposes as from 1 January 2008,

The aforementioned merger qualified for taxation under the tax neulralilty regime provided for in Chapter VIl of Tille
VIl of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, on 4 March, approving the Spanish Companies Tax Acl.

Capital increase and reduction of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, §.A."

Cn 7 November 2014, lhe General Shareholders' Meeting of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A." agreed lo
repay the 100% shares, 11,852,479 shares of € 6 par value each to offsel the loss of previous years. A capital
increase by majority shareholders only to place at the same time. "Grupo Empresarial San José, 5.A.°, as main
shareholder of the company attended a said capilal increase for a total amount of EUR 30,000 thousand, equivalent
to 6 million shares of € 6.00 par value each, lo offset outstanding amounts payable by “San José Desarrollos
Inmobiliarios, S.A." and becoming the sole shareholder.

Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements and hasls of consolidation

2.1 Regulatory framework and accounting principles

The consolidated financial statements of Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. and Subsidiaries were prepared by the
Board of Direclors on 25 March 2015. On 20 May 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company, assessing the
significance of the evenls that had taken place, which are described below, has deemed appropriate to include
additional descriplive information in some notes in order to provide an updale on the financial siluation of the
Company for a belter reading and underslanding of these consolidaled financial statements without this addilional
information affecting in any way to magnitudes of information within the consolidated financial statements. Said
additional information consisted mainly in incorporating the court approval dated 13 February 2015, granted on 11
May 2015, being legally approved contracts for the syndicaled loan entered into by Grupo SANJOSE, the group of
companies the Company belongs to, thereby fulfilling the main preliminary conditions of such financing agreements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board of Direclors on 25 March 2015 are
replaced for all purposes by these reformulated financial statements reformulated

These consolidated financial statements for 2014 of Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. and Subsidiaries are formally
prepared by the Parent's directors, in accordance with Internalicnal Financial Reporling Standards as adopted by the
European Union, taking info account all the mandatory accounting principles and rules and measurement bases in
IFRSs, and, accordingly, lthey present fairly the Grupo San Jose's consolidated equity and financial position at 31
December 2014 and the results of ils operations, the changes in consolidaled equily and the consclidated cash
flows in lhe year then ended.

Grupo San Jose's consolidated financial stalements were prepared from (he accounting records of the Company and
of the olher Group enlilies. Each company prepares ils individual financial statements in accordance with the
accounting principles and rules in force in the country in which it operates and, accordingly, the required adjusiments
and reclassificalions were made on consolidation to unify the policies used and to make them compliant with IFRSs.

The conselidated financial stalements of Grupo San Jose and Subsidiaries for 2013, prepared in accordance with
EU-IFRSs, were approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of Grupo Empresarial San Joes, S.A.
{formerly named Udra, S.A)} held on 30 June 2014. Also, 2014 consolidaled financial statements of the Group and
the individual financial statements of the Group companies for the year have nol yet been approved by the
shareholders at the respeclive Annual General Meestings. However, the Parent's direcltors consider that the
aforementioned consclidaled financial slatements will be approved without any changes.

Standards and interpretations applicable for the year

During year 20114 the following slandards and interpretations, compulsory as from year 2014 onwards and adopled
by the European Union, became in force and have been applied by the Group for the elaboralion of the
accompanying consolidated financial stalements for the year ended al 31 December 2014:
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New standards and amendments:

Compulsory application for the
Group:

Adopted for use within the EU

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial
statements({released in May 2011)

It replaces current consolidation
requirements set oul IAS 27.

Annual terms starting as of 1

January 2014 (1)

IFRS 11 Consolidated financial
statements(released in May 2011)

It replaces current consolidation
requirements set out IAS 31.

Annual terms starling as of 1
January 2614 (1)

IFRS 12 Breakdown on slakes in

Slandard on lhe breakdown of stakes

Annual terms starling as of 1

olher enlities (released in May 2011) | in  subsidiaries, associates, joint | January 2014 (1)
venlures and non consolidated
entities.
IAS 27  Individual financial | Standard is reviewed, IFRS 10 [ Annual terms starting as of 1

slatements(released in May 2011)

involves only the submission of
individual financial statements.

January 2014 (1)

IAS 27 (reviewed) invesiments in
associates and joint  ventures
(released in May 2011)

Paralle} revision in compliance wilh
IFRS 11 on joint ventures

Annual terms starling as of 1
January 2014 (1)

Transitional rules: Amendment IFRS
10, 11 and 12 (released in June
2012)

Clarification of transitional rules.

Annual terms slarling as of 1
January 2014 (1)

Investment companies: Amendment
IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27 (released in
October 2012)

Consolidation of lhe Parent in order
to meet lhe definition of investment
company.

Annual terms starling as of 1
January 2014 (1)

Amendment of IAS 32 "Financial
instruments: Offset of financial assels
and liabilities (released in December
2011)

Additional clarifications regarding lhe
compensation of financial assets and
liabilities pursuant to IAS 32

Annual terms slarting as of 1 January
2014 (1)

Amendment IAS 36 Breakdown on
lhe recovery amount of non financial
assels (released in May 2013)

it clarifies whenever it is necessary lo
provide breakdown and details on lhe
recoverable amount of non financial
assels based on fair value once
deducled sale costs.

Annual temms starting as of 1 January
2014 (1)

Amendment of IAS 39 -
Reassessment of derivalives and
accounting of hedges (released in
June 2013)

Amendmenls determine whether lhe
reassessment of derivalives does not
involve the interruption of accounting
of hedges.

Annual terms slarting as of 1 January
2014 (1)

(1) Compulsory application was postponed by lhe European Union for at least a year. Inflially, application date set

oul by lhe IASB was 1 January 2013.
The enforcement dale approved by the IASB is 01 January 2014.

The aforemenlioned standards have not had a significant impact on the consolidated financial statemenis of the
Group. Additionally, the UE adopted standards and amendments on the new consolidation method (IFRS 10, 11, 12
and those associated to IAC 27 and IAS 28) as compulsory as of 1 Januvary 2014 and volunlary as of 1 January
2013. Grupo SANJOSE has applied this slandard as of 1 January 2013. Likewise, on 1 January 2013, Grupo
SANJOSE pursuant to powers granted by IAS 31 on the integrafion of "Join venlure stakes” integrated the same
trough the equily method being recorded under "Investments in associated and joint ventures! in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet. The participation in the profitloss of these companies is recorded under "Profit/(Loss)
of companies accounting for using the equity method” in the accompanying consolidated income statement. The
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parlicipation in the profitloss of these companies is recorded under "Profit/(Loss) of companies accounting for using
the equity method" in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

Non applicable issued standards and interprelations

As of the dale of issue of hese consolidated financial stalements, the following standards had been published by the
IASB, yet their applicalion was not compulsory either because the effective date is subsequent to the date of issue of
these siatements or because they had not been adopted by the EU.:

New standards and amendments:

Compulsory application as
from:

Adopted for use within the EU

IFRIC 21 Taxes and charges (released In May
2013)

To Identify liabilities as laxes or encumbrances
arising from lhe participation of the company in a
particular aclivily al a specified dale

17 June 2014 {1)

Amendment of IAS 19 — Employees’ conlribulions | The amendment faciiilates the deduclion of this 1 July 2014
to funds (released In June 2013) cosls provided certain crileria is fulfilled.
Improvement of IFRS years 2010-2012 and years | Minor amendments of a series of slandards 1 July 2014

2011-2013 (released in December 2013)

Non adopted for use within the EU

Amendment IAS 16 and IAS 38 Impaliment and
amorlisation methods (released in May 2014)

it classifies the accepted impaliment and
amortisation methods of properly, plant and
equipment and intangible assels.

01 January 2016

Amendment IFRS11 Record of stakes in Jolnl
venlures (released in May 2014)

[t specifies how to record the acquisilion of stakes
in a joint ransactions whose aclivily involves a
business itself.

1 January 2016

Improvement of IFRS years 2012-2014 and years
2011-201 {released in December 2014)

Minor amendments of a series of slandards

01 January 2016

Amendment [FRS 10 and IAS 28 on the sale or
provislon of assels between and Investor and ils
joinl assoclate business (released in September
2014)

It classifies these transaclions according to final
oulcome as business or assels.

1 January 2016

Amendmenl IAS 27 Consclidation of individual
financial stalemenls (released in Augus! 2014)

It atlows the consolidation of independent financlal
statements of an inveslor.

1 January 2016

Amendment of IAS 16 and 41 Produclion plants
{released in June 2014}

Production plans shall be recorded under expense
and not falr value.

1 Janvary 2016

{1} The European Union has issued IFRIC 21 (EU Official Gazelte 14 June 2014), amending the delivery date sel pul by IASB (1 January

2014) for 17 June 2034.

The Directors of the Parent are assessing the potential impact of applying these standards in the fulure and consider
that their entry into force will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

2,2 Responsibility for the information and use of estimates

The information in these consolidated financial statements is the responsibility of the Direclors of lhe Parenl..

In the preparation of the accompanying consolidaled financial statements eslimates were occasionally made by
management of the Group and of the consolidated companies to quantify certain of the assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and abligations reported herein. These eslimates relate basically lo the following:

1. The usefu! life of the properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets (see Notes 4.3 and 4.4).

2. Measurement of goodwill arising on consolidation (see Nole 4.2).
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3. The budgelary estimates which are considered for the recognilion of resulfs on conlracis to which the
percentage of complelion method is applied (construction and industrial areas, see Note 4.12),

4. The assessment of potential impairment losses of certain assets (see Notes 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4,45, 47, 4.8

The probability of occurrence and the amount of uncertain or conlingent liabilities {(see Note 4.17 and 4.18).

and 4.9) .

5.

6. The fair value of cerlain financial instrumenls (see Note 4.9).

7. The fair value of assets and liabililies resulling from business combinations (see Note 2.4 and 9).
8. The probability of recovery of financial loans (see Note 4.16).

9. Management of financial risk (Note 20)

Allhough these estimales were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December 2014 on the
events analysed, events that might take place in the future mighi make il necessary fo significantly change these
eslimates (upwards or downwards) in coming years. Changes in accounting estimates would be applied
prospeclively in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8, recognising the effects of the change in estimates in the
consolidated income statements for the years affected.

2.3 Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Euros, since lhis is the functional currency of lhe main
economic environment in which the SANJOSE Group operates. Foreign operalions are recognised in accordance
wilh the policies established in Note 4.14.

The breakdown of the closing and average exchange rates of the period used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements for 2014 is as follows:;
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Year-end | Average
exchange | exchange
Country Currency rate rate

The United States | US Doliar (USD} 1.2515 1.3257
Mexico Mexican Peso 17.9391 17.6734
Argentina Argentine Peso (ARS) 10.3769 10,7743
Cape Verde Cape Verde Escudo 110.2650 | 110.2650
Panama Panamanian Balboa 1.2155 13119
Uruguay Uruguayan Peso 28.7482 30.1385
Paraguay Guarani 5,499.45 |5,833.8954
Peru Peruvian Sol 3.5597 3.7097
Chile Chilean Peso (CLP) 7363660 | 752.8213
Brazil Brazilian Real 3.2580 3.1297
India Indian Rupee 712925 80.9462
Morocco Morocco Dirtham 10.9469 11.0459
Colombia Colombian Peso 2,856.89 2,638.83
Republic of Congo | Congo France 655.957 655957
Nepal Nepal Rupee 122.4830 128.0913
Mozambique New Metical 40.1108 40.1108
United Arab UAE Dirhiam 44336 48682

None of these countries are considered to be hyperinflalionary economies as defined by IAS 29,

Main balances and transactions in foreign currency correspond to those executed in Chile, Peru, Argentina, Cape
Verde, Abu Dhabi, Nepal and Congo. Note 6.2. of the accompanying consolidated financial stalements includes total
assels and revenue provided by companies with operating currency other than the Euro.

2.4 Basis of Consolldation
a} Subsidiaries

"Subsidiaries" are defined as companies over which the Parent has the capacily to exercise conlrol; this
capacily is evidenced by the power to manage the financial and operating policies of an investee so as to obtain
benefits from ils activities. Control is presumed to exist when the Parenl owns directly or indirectly haff or more
of the voting power of the inveslee or, if this percentage is lower, when there are agreements wilh other
shareholders of the inveslee (hat give the Parent control.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated with those of the Parent. Accordingly, all
balances and effecls of the transaclions between consolidated companies were eliminaled on consalidation.

On acquisition, the assels, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are recognised at their fair values at
the date of acquisilion. Any excess of the cosl of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assels
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable
net assels acquired is recognised at acquisilion date.

The interest of minority shareholders is sfated at the minority’s proporifion of the fair values of the identifiable
assels and liabilities recognised. The minorily's share of:
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1. The equity of their investees: It is presenled within the Group's consolidated equily under "Minorily
Interests" in the consolidated balance sheel..

2. Differences are recorded under "Exc¢hange rate differences” in the accompanying income statement.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during lhe year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
date of acquisilion fo year-end, Similarly, the resulls of subsidiaries disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from the beginning of the year to the date of disposal.

Appendix | to the consolidated financial statemenls delails the subsidiaries included in consolidatlion and
significant information thereon.

b) Joint venlures
"Joint ventures” are deemed to be ventures lhat are jointly controlled by two or more unretated companies.

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more companies ("venturers") have interests in
entilies {joinlly controlled entities) or undertake operalions or hold assets so that stralegic financial and
operating decisions affecting the joint venture require the unanimous consenlt of lhe venturers.

The financial statements of multi-group entities are fully consolidated wilh those of the Parent in compliance with
the parlicipation method according to IFRS 11.

The Group develops ils aclivity through its participation in joint ventures in Spain and overseas (different types
of joint venlures ), which are unincorporated enlities withoui independent legal status, through which a
partnership relationship is incorporated in order {o develop a concrete service or project. In these cases, in
which an individuatised control of assels and liabilities is executed, as well as Similarly, interesis in Spanish
UTEs (unincorporated joint ventures), joint properly entilies and economic interest groupings were included in
the accompanying consolidated financial statlements in proportion to the Group's inferest in the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses arising from the fransaclions performed by lhese entilies, and reciprocal assel and
liability balances and income, expenses and profits or losses not realised with third parties were eliminated.

Assels and liabililies assigned by the Group to jointly controlled operations and the Group's share of the joinily
controlled assels are recognised in the consolidated balance sheel classified according to their specific nature,
Similarly, the Group's share of the income and expenses of joint ventures is recognised in the consolidated
income slatement on the basis of the nafure of the related items.

Financial informalion provided by consolidated financial statements of the Group by multi-group companies, in
aggregate, at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Millions of Euros
31/12/2014 3171272013

Current assets 30.5 16.6
Non-current assels 24.5 9.1
Current liabilities 3.1 1.1
Non-current

liabilities 19.0 19.2
Total income 10.1 038
Total expense 10.8 2.8

Appendix Il to the consolidated financial slalements delails joinl venlures included in consolidation and
significant information thereon . "
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¢) Associales

Asscciales are companies over which the Parent is in a posilion to exercise significant influence, bul not
effective control or joinl managemenlt. It usually holds -directly or indirectly- 20% or more of the voting power of
the inveslee.

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method,
i.e. at the Group's share of net assets of the investee, after taking into account the dividends received there from
and other equily eliminations. In the case of transactions with an associate, the related profils and losses are
climinaled to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate, less any impairment of the individual
investment.

Any excess of the cosl of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assels acquired is recognised at
acquisition date as goodwill. Any defecl of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised at acquisition dale as profit or loss.

if as a resull of losses incurred by an associale ils equity were negative, the invesiment should be presented in
the Group's consolidated balance sheet with a zero value, unless the Group is obliged to give it financial
support.

The financial slatements of multi-group enlilies are accounted through the equily method, SANJOSE Group has
followed the consolidalion method for "Stakes in joint venlures" established by IAS 11 including the same under
"Invesiments in associates and joint ventures” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Appendix Il to the consolidaled financial statemenls delails the subsidiaries included in consclidation and
significant information thereon.

d} Changes in the scope of consofidation
The main changes in the scope of consolidation in 2014 were as follows:

1. "San José Mozambique, Sociedade Limitada® was incorporated on 8 July 2014 by the Group companies
*Conslructora San José, S.A.” and “Constructora Udra Limitada® in a ratic 60:40, respectively. The social
capital amounts to MTn 10,000,000, equivalent to EUR 249 thousand, being only the 50.25% dully paid-up.

2. On 16 December 2014 took place a capital increase by “Constructora San José, S.A." in the Group
company “"Conslructora San José Argenlina, S.A." by the capitalisation of debt for a tolal value of ARS
1,340,304 (equivalent to EUR 126 thousand).

3. During 2014, as a result of customers' debl colleclion claims, and on the basis of a courl decision,
“Conslructora San José, S.A." became the majority sharsholder of the company “Folovoltaica El Galto 10,
S.L.%, holding B3% of ils social capital by means of offsel of a commercial debt amounting to EUR 14,542
thousand. Net value of the business aclivily branch amounts to EUR 17,528 thousand. The effect of this
acquisition on the consolidated financial stalements for year 2014 Is not signilicant.

4. On 7 May 2014, the Group company "Conslructora San José Brasil Limitada® increased its social capital in
BRL 44,865 (neariy EUR 15 thousand), being said amount dully paid-up by "Constructora San José, 5.A."
Al 31 December 2014, “Construclora San José, S.A” holds 99.49% ownership and "Conslructora Udra
Lida.”. holds the outstanding.

5. During year 2014, the Company "San Jose Panama, S.A." attended a capital increase for a lotal amount of
USD 50,000 (nearly EUR 38 thousand), being fully subscibed and paid-up by "Constructora San Jose,
SA"

6. During year 2014, the Company "Udra Mexico, S.A. de C.V." atlended a capital increase for a lolal amount
of USD 2,150 (neasly EUR 1,559 thousand}, by means of capitalisation of the loan granted to "Constructora
San Jose, S.A." Al 31 December 2014 the ownership percenlage of "Constructora San José, S.A." in “Udra
Mexico, S.A. de C.V." amounis to 99.9%.

7. On 30 July 2014, the Group company "Green Inmuebles, S.L." attended a capital increase by its main
shareholder “San José Desarrollos Inmabiliarios, S.A." of EUR 925 thousand by means of capitalisation of
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ihe outstanding balance of loans. At 31 December 2014, the Group holds an ownership interest of 82.31%
of the company's share capilal.

8. On 27 Oclober 2014 the General Shareholders' Meeting of “Desarrollos Urbanisticos Chamartin, S.A."

10.

i1.

passed on a capital increase. The group company “Desarrollos Urbanfsticos Udra, S.A.” has not attended
its preemplive right. This, the stake of "Desarrollos Urbanisticos Chamartin, S.A." was reduced from
25.336% 1o 24.459%.

On 22 July 2014 the Company "San José Desarrollos Inmaobiliarios, S.A." sold ils 50% slake of the company
“Kantega Desarrolios Inmobiliarios, S.A,". Consequently, the Company recorded an impairment loss
amounting to EUR 1,617 thousand

On 7 November 20114, the General Shareholders' Meeling of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A"
agreed to repay 100% of total shares, amounling to 11,852,479 shares of EUR 6.00 par value ach, and to
devole the issuance fee and lhe reserves of lhe company to offset loss of previous years.- Simultaneously, a
capilal increase of the company by its main shareholder "Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A” took place by
means of the subscription of shares for a fotal amount of EUR 30,000 thousand to offsel loans granted.
Pursuant to said fransaclion, at 31 December 2014 the Group holds an ownership interest of 100% of the
company's share capital.

On 6 February 2014, the company “Udramedios Edilora de Galicia, S.L.U.” was dissolved by its sole
shareholders, “Udramedios S.A.U.”, integrating inlo the same assels for a total amount of EUR 3 thousand,
without liabililies of any lype.

During year 2013, the main changes in the scope of consotidation in were as follows:

1.

On 1 January 2013, the companies "Finar de Villanueva, 5.L.", “Desarrollos Inmobiliarios Makalu, S.L.°,
"Kanlega Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A." and “"Cresca, S.A.", where the Group holds a 50% of its share
capital, joined into the equity method under IAS 31 on the integration of "Joint Venture Shares" {see Note
2.1).

On 1 November 2013, “SCI Parquesol Rue de La Bienfaisance” has been sellled.

On 21 January 2013 the Company has incorporated in Santiago de Chile (Chile) the company “San Jose
Tecnologias Chile Limietada" and "Tecnocontrol Chile Limilada", wilh a total share capital amounting to
CLP 700,000 (EUR 1.114 thousand), fully paid up by the Companies of the Group "Construclora San Jose,
AA" and “Inversiones SANJOSE Chile Limitada™ having subscribed CLP 699,930 and CLP 70,
respeclively, amounting their ownership % to 99.99 % for "Constructora San Jose, S.A" and 0,01% for
“Inversiones SANJOSE Chile Limitada".

During year 2013, the Group Company "Construclora San Jose Brasil Lomitada" altended a capilal
increase for a folal amount of BRL 363,855 (nearly EUR 135 thousand), being fully subscribed and paid-up
by "Constructora San Jose, S.A."

On 6 February 2013 the Company incorporated "San José Tecnologlas Peril, 5.A.C." with a total share
capital amounling to PNS 1,000 (EUR 281), was fully paid up and subscribed by the Group Companies
*San José Inmobiliaria Perd, S.A.C.” and Mr. Sandro Gustavo Fuentes®, having subscribed PNS 999 and
PNS 1, respeclively.

During year 2013, the Company of the Group “Udra Mexico, S.A.” attended a capital increase through the
partial capilalisation of the loan granted by “Constructora San José, 5.A." and amounting to USD 4,613
thousand (nearly EUR 3,496 thousand}.

On 19 July 2013 the Company of the Group "Construclora San José, S.A.” incorporaled the associate
“Constructora San José Timor, Unipersoal Lda”", with a lolal share capital amounling to USD 5,000 USD
{nearly EUR 3,837).

On 25 July 2013 the Group Company "Constructora San José, S.A." incorporated the associale “San José
Colombia, 5.A.5", with a total share capital of COP 2,000. miillion (nearly EUR 803 thousand ), being fully
subscribed and paid up in a 50%.

On 26 Augusl 2013, "Constructora San Jose, S.A." incorporated a branch office in Timor-Leste in order to
develop its main business aclivily (construclion} in said country. A IGLESIAS
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10. During year 2013, the Company "San Jose India Infrastructure & Construclion Private Limited” attended a
capital increase for a lotal amount of INR 31,730 thousand (nearly EUR 455 thousand), being fully
subscribed and paid-up by "Conslructora San Jose, S.A."

11. On 27 November 2013 the company “Conslructora San José, S.A° has acquired 428 shares lo the
associate “San José Conslruction Group, Inc.”, for a total amount of USD 603,934 (nearly EUR 444,200),
becoming the owner of the 100% of its share capital.

12. During year 2013, the Company of the Group "Conslruclora San José, S.A." allended a capilal increase in
its associate "Eskonel Company, S.A." for a total amount of UYU 27,058 thousand (nearly EUR 1,051
thousand}.

The consolidated financial statemenis do not include the tax effect, if any, that might arise from the inclusion of the
reserves of lhe consolidated companies in the equity of the Parent, since it is considered thal these reserves will be
used as a source of self-financing at each consolidated company.

2.5 Comparison of information

Information recorded on the consolidated financial statemenls for year 2013 is provided for comparison purposes
only wilh that provided as of lhe year ended 31 December 2014,

As defailed in Note 12, on 30 December 2014 Grupo SANJOSE entered into a modifying novation agreement for its
syndicated credit facilities in Spain pursuanl lo which the main commilment of the group is the sale of its investee
“San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.", through which lhe Group develops the real estate business in Spain
and Porlugal.

In consideration of the sale to be highly probable, along with the compliance with other requirements of IFRS 5, the
stake in said investee has qualifies as non-current assets held for sale and its consideralion as a discontinued
operation to the extent that a significant business line is stopped and separated from the other business lines.

Pursuant to IFRS 5, the Group has re-expressed the comparative figures of the consolidated income stalement and
the cash flow statement for year 2013, recording in a single amount the net profit/{loss) after taxes for the
disconlinued operation and detailing separale net cash flows for the operation, invesiment and financing of said
aclivity. Thus, the consotidated income stalement and the consalidated cash flow statement for year 2013 include
for comparison purposes only within these consolidaled financial statement are different lo those included within the
consolidaled financial statements for the year approved by the General Shareholders' Meeling on 30 June 2014.
The impact of the consolidated income stalement and the consolidaled cash flow statement for year 2013 is detailed
in Note 12,

2.6 Changes in the accounting criteria
Accounling criteria applied during year 2014 is the same as that implemented in year 2013.
During year 2014, no significant changes have been applied compared {o those applied in year 2013.

Distribution of the Parent's profit

Parent Company Direclors will propose to the General Shareholders' Meeling the recognilion of 2014 losses, EUR
105,488 thousand, with a charge to "Prior years' losses", to offset the profits the Parent Company generales in the
future.

Accounting principles and policles and measurement bases

The accounting principles and policies and measurement bases used in preparing lhe Group's consolidaled linancial
statements for 2014 were as follows:

4.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assels classified as held for sale relate to assels whose sale in their present condition Is highly
probable and whose sale is expected to be completed within one year from the reporting date. Therefore, the
carrying amouni of these ilems will be recovered through the proceeds from their disposal rather lhan through

continuing use.
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In general, non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount at the
classificalion date and fair value less eslimaled cosits lo sell. Tangible and inlangible assels thal are
amorlisable because of their nature are not deprecialed or amorlised while they are classified as held for sale.
Likewise, liabililies associated to said assels are also classified as held for sale as long as transferred in the
disposal of properly.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value less estimaled costs {o sell, the carrying amount of
the assets is adjusted by the amount of the excess with a charge to the consolidated income statement. If the
fair value of the assels subsequenlly increases, lhe losses previously recognised are reversed and the carrying
amount of the assets is increased up to the limit of the carnrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised, with a credit to the consolidated income slalement..

Noncurrenl assels are classified as held for sale as long as the carrying amount is recovered by means of sale
and not by means of use. This condition is salisfied only when the sale is highly probable and the assets is
immediately available for sale, Sale shall be fulfilled within a year after the classification date.

Income and expense from noncurrent assets held for sale that do not fulfil the requirements to be classified as
disconlinued operations are recorded under the income statement according to their nature.

As a consequence of the financing agreement signed by the Group on 30 December 2014 (see Nole 17.3), the
consolidated financial statement at 31 December 2014 and 2013 include noncurrent assets held for sale of the
real estate division of the Group, since pursuanl lo said agreement there is a formal commilment to sell said
division throughout year 2015 (see Note 12).

4.2 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisilion over lhe Group's interest in (he
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associale or jointly controlled entity at the date
of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of the invesiments in the consolidated companies and associates over the
corresponding underlying carrying amounts acquired, adjusted al the dale of first-time consolidation, is allocaled
as follows:

1. If it is allributable to specific assets and fiabililies of the companies acquired, increasing the value of the
assels (or reducing the value of the liabililies) whose markel values were higher (lower) than the carrying
amounts at which lhey had been recognised in their balance sheels and whose accounling lrealment was
simitar o that of the same assets (liabililies) of the Group: amoriisalion, accrual, elc.

2. If it is attributable lo specific intangible assets, recognising it explicitly in lhe consolidaled balance sheet
provided that the fair value at the date of acquisilion can be measured reliably.

3. The remaining amount is recognised as goodwill, which is allocated to one or more specific cash-generating
units.

See Nole 9 for detafls on the alloiment of gains on from business of the Group.

Goodwill is only recognised when it has been acquired for consideralion and represents, therefore, a paymentl
made by the acquirer in anticipalion of fulure economic benefils from assets of the acquired company that are
nol capable of being individually identified and separately recognised.

Goodwill acquired on or after 01 January 2005 is measured al acquisilion cost and that acquired earlier is
recognised at the carrying amounl at 31 December 2004, In both cases, af the end of each reporting period
goodwill is reviewed for impairment (i.e. a reduction in its recoverable amounl lo below its carrying amount) and,
if there is any impairment, the goodwill is wiilten down with a charge to "Impairment or Gains or Losses on
Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the consolidated income slatement. Under IAS 36, Impairment of Assels,
an impairment loss recognised for goodwill must not be reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joinlly conlrelied entily, the attribulable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising in the acquisition of companies with a funclional currency other than the Euro is translated to
Euros al the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the balance sheet.
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Translation inte English of cansolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issuwed in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish fangiage version prevails

Any deficiency of the cost of investments in consolidated companies and associates below the related
underlying carrying amounts acquired, adjusled at the date of first-time consolidalion, is classilied as negalive
goodwill and is allocated as follows:

1. Ifitis attributable to specilic assels and liabilities of the companies acquired, increasing the value of the
assets (or reducing the value of the liabilities) whose market values were higher (lower) than the carrying
amounls at which they had been recognised in their balance sheels and whose accounting treatment was
similar to that of the same assets (liabilities) of the Group: amorlisation, accrual, etc.

2. The remaining amount is presented under "Other Operating Income" in the consolidated statement for the
year in which the share capital of the subsidiary or associale is acquired.

4.3 Other Intangible assets

The olher intangible assels are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance which arise as a
result of a legal transaclion or which are developed internally by the consolidaled companies. Only assels
whose cost can be eslimated reasonably objeclively and from which the consolidated companies consider it
probable that future economic benefits will be generated are recognised.

Intangible assels are recognised initially at acquisition or preduction cost and are subsequenily measured at
cost less any accumulaled amorlisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

In both cases, the consdlidated companies recognise any impairment loss on the carrying amount of these
assets with a charge to "Impairmenl and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the
consolidated income statement. The crileria used to recognise the impairment fosses on these assels and,
where applicable, the recovery of impairment losses recognised in prior years is similar to those used for
property, plant and equipment (see Note 4.5).

Administrative concessions and palenls

Administrative concessions are recognised as assels when they have been acquired by the Group for
consideration in the case of concessions that can be transferred or for the amount of the expenses incurred to
directly obtain the concession from the related public agency.

This ilem included concessions within IFRIC 12 and that correspond, mainly, to energy and environmental
infrastructure investment by subsidiaries of Grupo SANJOSE and "Project finance" funding (limiled funding
applied fo projects), eilher whenever the group or the grantor assume related risks. Cash llows generated by the
involved companies and assels aclt as hedge.

Main features to be laken into consideration are as follows:

«  Assels object of concession regime are usually property of the Grantor.

«  The Granlor controls er monitors the Concessionaire, as well as funding conditions and terms.

+ Concessional Rights imply the monopoly exploitalion of a service for a period of time according to
concession terms. Upon completion of the concession period, real eslale necessary for the provision of

services becomes property of the concessional company

« Income derives from the provision of services c¢an be received directly from customers or from the
- concessional company. Prices for services are usually established by the concessional company.

In general, there are lwo clearly marked sfages, one in which the concessionaire provides construclion or
restoration services, according lo level of the works pursuant to IAS 11 "Conslruction Contracts” for an
intangible or financial asset, and a second stage in which maintenance and operalion services of said
infrastructure are provided in accordance with 1AS 18 "Ordinary income”.

Intangible assets are recorded whenever risk is assumed by the concessionhaire and linancial assels are
recorded if risk is assumed by the grantor, bearing the concessionaire the right to be paid for provided
construction or improvement services. Royalties for awarding of concession regime are also recorded as assels.

The Group amorlises these rights on a straight-line basis over the estimated term of the concession.
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Translation info English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish langnage version prevails

In the event of non-compliance, leading to ihe loss of the concession rights, the carrying amount of the
concession is wrillen off.

Compuler software
Computer software may be conlained in a tangible asset or have physical substance and, therefore, incorporate
both tangible and intangible elements. These assels are recognised as properly, plant and equipment if they

constilule an integral part of the relaled tangible asset, which cannot operate without that specific software.

Computer software is amortised on a straighl-line basis over three years from the entry into service of ‘each
applicalion.

Computer system maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated income statement for the year in which
they are incurred.

Issuance nighls

Issuance rights are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as of the date of arising rights. They are
recorded as fellows:

Initial recognition -

Issuance rights shall be valued at acquisition price or produclion cost. In the case of rights available for free or for
a price substanfially below market value, said rights shall be recorded at acquisition market price thereof at the
{ime of purchase.

Issuance rights arising from the National Altocation plan shall be recorded ai the beginning of the nalural year.
Subsequent recogniﬁbn -

After their recognition as assets, issuance righls shall be valued at acquisition price or production cost and are
not subjecl to deprecialion.

Provisions for their lower value at the end of each year shall be recorded as long as recorded carrying value in
book may not be recoverable.

Expenses related lo lhe emission of greenhouse gases accrue as greenhouse gases are rendered. A provision
for risks and related costs shall be recorded as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets until setttement of
lhe same by delivering relevant issuance rights,

4.4 Property, plant and equipment and investment property
Properly, plant and equipmen!

Properly, plant and equipment for own use is recognised at cost less any accumulated deprecialion and any
recognised impairment losses.

Replacements or renewals of complete ilems that lead to a lenglhening of the useful life of the assels or to an
increase in their economic capacity are recognised as additions to property, plant and equipment, and the items
replaced or renewed are derecognised.

Periodic mainlenance, upkeep and repair expenses are recognised in the income stalement on an accrual basis
as incurred.

Borrowing cosls are only capilalised when significant investments in qualifying assets are made, which are those
{hat take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use (see Note 4.13). Borrowing cosls incurred
lo acquire property, plant and equipment for own use are charged to the consolidaled income slatement on an
accrual basis and are not capilalised.

The Group works on their own assets are enlered al the accumulated cost {external costs plus in-house cosis),
determined on the basis of in-house materials consumpiion and manufacturing costs, calculated using absorption
rates simitar to those used for he valuation of inventories
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Transtation into English of consolidated notes for ihe year ending 31 December 2014 originally isswed in Spanish. fn the event of discreparicy,
the Spanish language version prevails

Depreciation is calculated, using the siraight-line method, on the basis of the acquisition cost of the assets less
their residual value; the land on which the buildings and other structures stand has an indefinite useful life and,
therefore, is not depreciated.

The period properly, plani and equipment depreciation charge is recognised in the consolidated income
stalement and is based on the applicalion of the following depreciation rates, which are determined on the basis
of the average years of estimated useful life of the various assets:

Annual
Percenlage
Buildings 2
Technical facilities 10
Machinery 15
Other fixtures, tools and furniture 12-33
Other items of property, plant and equipment 12-33

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
delermined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment losses. Cosl includes professional fees.
Deprecialion of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their inlended use.

Assels held under finance leases are classified on the basis of their nature and are deprecialed over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

The consolidated companies assess at each reporting dale whether there is any inlernal or external indication
thal an assel may be impaired (i.e. its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount). If so, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced fo its recoverable amount and future depreciation charges are adjusted in
proportion to the revised carrying amount and to the new remaining useful life, if the useful life must be re-
estimated.

Similarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of an item of properly, plant and equipment, the
consolidated companies recognise the reversal of the impairment loss recognised in prior years and adjust the
future depreciation charges accordingly. Under no circumstances may the reversal of an impairment loss on an
asset raise ils carrying amount to above thal which it would have had had no impairment losses been recognised
in prior years.

Property, planl and equipment is recognised at cosl less any accumulated deprecialion and any recognised
impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an assel is delermined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Investmenis in concessions

Concession agreemenis imply an agreement between a concessional eniily, usual a public enlity, and
companies of the Group for providing public services though the operation of several assels necessary for the
provision of services.

Concessional Righls imply the monopoly exploitalion of a service for a period of time, after which, real estale
necessary for the provision of services becomes property of the concessional company.

Income derives from the provision of services can be received directly from customers or from the concessional
company. Prices for services are usually established by lhe concessional company.
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Translaiion inte English ef consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

This iype of projects is usually financed wilh long-term borrowings; cash flows generated by the involved
companies and assets as hedge. Since cash flow is the main hedge for refurning borrowings, shareholders will
not receive profits till certain annual conditions have been salisfied.

Investmen{ properly

"Investment Properly” in the consolidated balance sheel reflects the net values of land, buildings and other
structures (whether they are owned by lhe Group or are being used by the Group under a finance lease) held
either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. At 31 December 2014, lhe assets recognised under "Investment
Property" related mainly to office buildings, hotels, ileisure cenires, land and parking spaces and lhe items of
property, plant and equipment associated with them, such as machinery and furniture, whether owned by the
Group or held under finance lease.

Hetels and leisure centres leased to third parties in which the Group does not participate in management and has
not retained the risks associated therewilh are classified as “Investment Property”. If the Group participates in
management, these assets are classified as "Properly, Plant and Equipment”.

Investment propertly is presented at acquisilion or production cost, where appropriale, pursuant to the applicable
legistation. The same measurement basis, depreciation methods, eslimated useful fives and recognition criteria
are used for investment properly (see Note 8).

Properties under conslruclion or development for future use as inveslment property are classified under
“Investment Properly in Progress" in the consolidaled balance sheet (see Note B) unlil their construclion or
developmenl has been completed, al which time they are transferred to "Investiment Property”.

However, those property invesiments that meet the criteria to be classified as "Assels held for sale" are
measured according to the rules applicable to non-current assels held for sale and discontinued operations (see
Note 4.1).

Borrowing Cosls

The accounling freatment of borrowing costs is described in Note 4.13,

n 2014 and 2013, the Group has nol capitalised borrowing costs under "Properly, plant and equipment” and
"Investiment Properly” in the aftached consolidated balance sheet.

4.5 Asset impairment

Al the end of each year, or whenever il is deemed necessary, the value of assets is analysed lo determine
whether there is any indication that these assels have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is eslimated in order to determine the amount of the required write-down (if
any). Where an idenlifiable assel does nol generate cash flows independently, the Group eslimales the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In the case of cash-generaling units lo which goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life have
been allocated, recoverabilily is systemalically analysed at the end of each reporling period or whenever it is
deemed necessary lo perform such an analysis on the basis of the exisling circumstances.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted lo their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects
current marke! assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which lhe
estimales of fulure cash flows have nol been adjusled. In calculating the recoverable amount of properly, plant
and equipment and goodwili, the Group uses value in use in praclically all cases.

To eslimate value in use, the Group prepares future pre-tax cash flow eslimates based on the most recent
budgets approved by Group management. These budgels include the best estimales available of income and
costs of the cash-generaling units based on induslry projeclions, past experience and fulure expeclations.

These projeclions cover the coming five years and cash flows for the following years are eslimaled by applying
zero growth rates. These cash flows are discounted to present value al a pre-tax rate which reflects the cost of
capilal of the business and lhe geographical area in which it is carried on. In order to calculate the rate, the
current time value of money and the risk premiums generally used by analysls for the business and the
geographical area are taken into account.. ESTECAein 400 [GLESIAS
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Translation info English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally isswed in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

in both cases, the consclidated companies recognise any impairment loss on the carrying amount of these
assets wilh a charge to "Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assels” in the
consolidated income statement.

The fair value of assels and liabilities resulfing from business combinalions (see Note 8 and 13).
4.6 Leases
4.6.1 Finance Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Therefore, finance
leases are deemed to be those in which substantially all the risks and rewards relaling lo the leased assel are
transferred to the lessee.

When lhe consolidated companies act as lhe lessor of an asset, the aggregate present values of the lease
payments receivable from the lessee plus the price of exercising lhe purchase oplion are classified as financing
provided to third parties for the amount of the Group’s nel investment in the leases.

In this event, the finance income and charges arising under finance lease agreements are credited and charged,
respectively, to the consolidated income statement so as o reflect a conslant periodic rate of return over the
lerm of the agreements.

4.6.2 Operaling Leases

In operaling leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the
leased asset remain wilh the lessor.

When the consolidated companies act as lhe lessor, they present the acquisition cost of the leased asset under
"Properly, Plant and Equipment". These assels are depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor's
normal depreciation policy for similar items and lease income is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis.

When the companies of lhe Group act as the lessee, lease cosfs, including any incentives granted by the lessor,
are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis.

4.7 Inventories
"Invenlories” in the consolidated batance sheet reflects the assels that the consolidated companies:

- Hold for sale In the ordinaty course of business.
- Arein the process of constructing or developing for such sale.
- Expeclto consume in the preduction process or in the provision of services.

Consequently, land and other properly held for sate or for inclusion in a property development in the ordinary
course of the Group's business and not for capilal apprecialion or to earn renlals are frealed as invenlories.

Inventories are stated al the lower of acquisition or production cosl and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direcl materials and, where applicable, directs labour costs and production overheads, including the costs that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present focation and condilion at the point of sale. Trade
discounts, rebales and other similar items are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.

The cost of invenlories is calculated by using the weighted average cost formula. Nel realisable value is the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs of complelion and costs to be incurred in markefing, selling and
distribution.

Land is staled at acquisition cost, plus the cosls of demolishing buildings and other expenses related to the
acquisilion (non-recoverable faxes, regislration expenses, etc.). The Group does not capitalise the borrowing
cosls incurred on he loans oblained to finance the purchase of land to the carrying amount thereof during lhe
period between ils acquisition and the date on which the conslruction begins, which is when they are transferred
to "Developments under conslruction”.
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Translation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 orviginally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
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"Developments under conslruction” includes the land development costs incurred up to year-end and the cosls
of construction or acquisition of real estale developments, increased by the expenses direclly altocable to them
{cosis of construction subcontracted to third parlies, fees inherent to consiruclion and project management
fees), in addition to lhe reasonable portion of the costs indirectly allocable to the related assets, to the extent
that these costs correspond lo the development period, and the borrewing costs incurred during the construclion
period. During year 2014, no borrowing costs have been capitalised to “Inventeries". During year 2013,
capilalisation amounled to EUR 296 thousand (see Note 13).

The Group assesses the net realisable value of the inventories at the end of each period and recognises the
appropriate loss if the inventories are overslaled. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to
be wrilten down no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of
changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed.

Further, at 31 December 2014 and 2013, "Inventories" includes advances lo suppliers for the purchase of
inventories amounting to EUR 18,460 thousand and EUR 40,875 thousand , respeclively (see Note 13).

4.8 Trade receivables and customer advances

Trade receivables do not earn interest and are recognised at the fair value of the consideration given, reduced
by the estimated non-recoverable amounts

The amount of customer advances received prior to the recognition of the sale of the buildings is recognised
under "Current Liabilities - Trade and Other Payables" in the consolidaled balance sheel (see Notes 13.6 and
19.3).

4.9 Financial Instruments
Definitions

A “financial insirument” is any contracl that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equily instrument of another entity.

An "equity instrument” is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an enlity after deducling
alt of its liabilities.

A “financial derivalive” is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an
observable market variable (such as a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, financial instrument price
or market index), the initial investment in which is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts
that would be expecled to have a similar response 1o changes in market factors, and which is generally sellled
al a future date.

The following transaclions are nol treated for accounting purposes as financial instruments:

* Investments in associates.

¢ Righis and obligations under employee benefit plans.

¢ The rights and obligalions arising from insurance policies.

# Contracls and obligalions relaling to share-based employee remuneration.

Initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are inilially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group becomes a
patly to the conlraclual provisions of the instrument. Specifically, debt inslruments are recognised from the date
on which the legal right to receive or the legal obligation to pay arises. Derivative financial inslruments are
generally recognised from the trade date. ‘

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assels, defined as one in which the pariies' reciprocal obligations
must be discharged wilhin a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace and that may
not be setlled net is recognised on the date from which the rewards, risks, righls and obligations attaching to all
owners are for the purchaser, which, depending on lhe type of financial asset purchased or sold, may be the
{rade date cr the settlement or delivery date.
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Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets are only derecognised when:

* The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or

e The financial assel is transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
{ransferred or, even if they are not substantially transferred or retained, control over the financial asset
is transferred.

Financial liabilities are only derecognised when the obligations they generale have been extinguished or when
they are repurchased, even if they are going to be placed on the marke! again in the future.

Fair value of financial instruments

The "fair value” of a financial instrument on a given date is taken lo be the amount for which it could be bought
or sold on thal date by two knowledgeable, willing parlies in an arm's length transaction. The mosl objeclive
and common reference for the fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be paid for il on an
organised, ransparent and deep market ("quoted price” or "market price”).

If there is no market price for a given financial instrument, ils fair value is estimated on the basis of the price
established in recent transactions involving similar inslruments and, in the absence thereof, of valuation
techniques sufficiently used by the inlernational financial community, taking into account the specific features of
the instrument to be measured and, particularly, the various types of risk associated with it.

Specifically, the fair value of financial derivatives fraded on organised, transparent and deep markets included in
the portfolios of financial assets or liabililies held for trading is deemed to be their daily quoted price and if, for
exceptional reasons, the quoted price cannot be determined on a given date, these financial derivalives are
measured using metheds similar to those used lo measure the derivalives nof traded on organised markets.

The fair value of OTC derivalives or derivatives traded in scantly deep or fransparent organised markets is
taken to be the sum of the future cash flows arising from the instrument, discounled to present value at the date
of measurement (“present value"} using valuation techniques commonly used by the financial markels ("nel
present value", option pricing models, etc.).

Amortised cost of financial instrumen({s

“Ameortised cost" is understood to be the acquisilion cost of a financial asset or liabilily plus or minus, as
appropriate, the principal repayments and interest payments, plus or minus, as appropriate, the porlion
allocated to the consolidated income statement, calculatled using the effeclive interest methed, of the difference
between the initial cost and the repayment value of the financial inslruments. In the case of financial assets,
amortised cost also includes any write-downs due lo impairment.

The "effeclive inlerest rate" is lhe discount rate thal exactly malches the carrying amount of a financial
instrument to all its estimated cash flows of all kinds through its residual life. For fixed rate financial instruments,
the effective interest rale coincides wilh the conlractual interest rate established on the acquisition date
adjusted, where applicable, by the fees and transaction costs that must be included in the calculation of the
effeclive interest rate. In lhe case of floating rale financial instruments, the effective interest rate is estimated as
for fixed rale instruments and is recalculated on each contraciual reprising date on the basis of lhe changes in
{he fulure cash flows arising there from.

Classification and measurement of financial assels and liabilifies
Financial instruments are classified in the consolidaled balance sheel into the following calegories:
Financlal Assels

»  Held-for-trading financial assels: financial assels acquired wiith the intenlion of realising them at short term
or those which are pact of a portiolio of identified financia! instruments thal are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent aclual paltern of short-term profit taking and derivalives not designated
as hedging instruments.
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¢ Held-to-maturily investiments: financial assets wilh fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity thal
the Group has the positive inlention and abilily to hold from the date of purchase to the dale of maturity.
They do not include loans and accounts receivable from third pariies. These assels are measured at
"amortised cosl.

« Originated loans and receivables: financial assets originated by the Group in exchange for supplying cash,
goods or services direcily to a debtor, which are measured at amorlised cost.

¢ Available-for-sale financial assets: these include securities acquired that are not held for trading purposes
and are not classilied as held-to-maturily investments, and equity instruments owned by the Group and
issued by entities other than subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

Held-for-trading financial assels and available-for-sale financial assels are measured at fair value at subsequent
measurement dates. In the case of marketable securilies, the gains and fosses from changes in fair value are
recognised in net profil or loss for the year. In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, the gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity unlil the asset is disposed of or it is determined that it
has become impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equily are
recognised in the net profit or loss for the year.

Financial Liabililies

Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the content of the contractual arrangements. The main
financial fiabilities held by the Group are held-lo-malurity financial liabililies, which are measured al amortised
cost.

Interest-bearing bank loans and credit facililies are recognised at lhe proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Borrowing cosls, including premiums payable on settlement or redemplion and direct issue cosls, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and
are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not sellled in the period in which
they arise.

Trade payables, which are not interest bearing, are stated at their face value.

Grupo SANJOSE recognises the derecognising of financial assets when they expire or whenever cash flow
rights over the financial assets have been transferred together with the inherent risks and profits through sale of
assets, facloring credit transfers, sale of assets with put oplion at fair value.

On the other hand, Grupo San Jose will not recognise the derecognising of financial assels and will recognise
financial liabilities equal to the received consideration in transfers of assets in which risks and profils are not
transferred.

Net equily:

Equity instruments are classified in accordance wilh the content of the confraciual arrangements.  Equily
instruments issued by the Parent are recognised in consolidated equity at the proceeds received, nel of direct
issue costs.

4.10 Shares of the Parent

Grupo SANJOSE did not hold any treasury shares at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

In year 2014, no lransaclions with treasury shares took place.

4.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's aclivities expose it mainly to interesl rate risk and, accordingly, the Group uses financial derivalive
instruments, basically interesl rate swap (IRSs), as part of its strategy to reduce its exposure lo interest rate risk.
When these transaclions meet certain requirements, lhey qualify for hedge accounling.

In order for a lransaclion to be classified as a hedge it must be carried out at the inceplion of the lransactions or

of the instruments included in the hedge, provided there is adequale documentation of the hedging relationship.
The hedge accounling documentation must include adequate identification of the hedged ilem(s) and the

ESTERRA TR
INTERPRETE JURS
ciSerali

36900 hMar!
calvo.esteint

2@ gmail.com
690320705 - 536580498




Translation inta English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originafly issucd in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

hedging instrument(s), the nature of the risk lo be hedged and the criteria or methods used to assess the
effectiveness of the hedge over its enlire life, taking into account lhe risk to be hedged.

Consequenlly, only hedges that are considered to be highly effeclive over their entire life are considered to
qualify for hedge accounting. A hedge is considered lo be highly effective if, during ils expected life, the
changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item lhat are atiribulable fo the risk hedged in the hedging of
the financial instrument or instrumenls are offsel substantially in full by changes in the fair value or cash flows,
as the case may be, of the hedging instrument or insiruments.

To measure the effectiveness of hedges, il is analysed whether, from inception to the end of the term defined for
the hedge, it can be expected, prospeclively, thaf the changes in the fafr value or cash flows of the hedged item
that are attributable 1o the hedged risk wilt be offset substantially in full by changes in the fair value or cash
flows, as the case may be, of the hedging instrumenl(s) and, retrospectively, that the resulls of the hedge are
within a range of 80% lo 125% of the results of the hedged item.

Hedges are classified into the following categories:

« Fair value hedges. These hedges hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of financial assets
or liabilities or unrecognised firm commitments, or of an identified porlion of such assets, liabililies or
firm commitments, (hat is altributable to a parlicular risk, provided that it could affect the consolidaled
income slatement.

s Cash flow hedges. These hedges hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that is attribulable
to a parlicular risk associated wilh a financial asset or liability or to a highly probable forecast
transaction, provided that it could affect the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or Is sold, when the hedge no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting or the designalion as a hedge is revoked.

When, pursuant to lhe foregoing paragraph, hedge accounting of a fair value hedge is discontinued, in the case
of hedged items carried at amorlised cosl, the value adjustments made as a result of the hedge accounting
discussed above are recognised in the consolidated income statement through malurily of the hedged items
using the effective interest rate recalculated at the date of disconlinuation of hedge accounting.

Also, when hedge accounting of a cash flow hedge is discontinued, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognised in consolidated equily is relained in equity untii the forecast hedged transaction occurs,
when it will be fransferred to consolidated income statemenl or the cost of acquisition of the asset or liability to be
recognised will be adjusted, if the hedged ilem is a forecast iransaction which resulls in the recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liabifity.

In the case of the derivative financial instruments arranged by the Group lhat meet the aforementioned
requirements for classification as a cash flow hedge, the changes in the fair value in 2014 were recognised under
"Equily - Valuation Adjustments” in the accompanying consclidated balance sheel (see Nole 15.6).

Changes in the fair value of the derivalive financial inslruments arranged by the Group that do not fully meet the
aforementioned requiremenls for classificalion as a hedge were recognised under "Changes in Fair Value of
Financial Instruments" in the consolidated income slalement (see Note 18).

To determine the fair value of the interesi rate derivatives (IRSs), the Group uses an in-house IRS valualion
model where the inputs are the Euribor markel curves and long-term swap rates lo establish the fair value of the
interest ratle derivalive structures. In order to calculate the fair vafue of option-based derivalives (collars), the
Group uses Black-Scholes oplion pricing models and varialions (hereon, taking as an input the implied volatility
in the markefts for the corresponding strikes and times to expiry.

IFRS 13, Measurement of Fair Value, became into force on 1 January 2013 and shall be mandatory for financial
years commencing upon said date. Its applicabilily was approved by UE Regulation 1255/2012 as of 11
December, applicable to the Group because the Parent is a listed company.

The new accounting standard IFRS 13 considers credit risk in the measurement of fair value. Pursuant to IFRS
13, fair value is defined as the price to be charged for selling an assets or to be paid for lransferring a liability at a
markel transaction at measurement date (for example, slarting price) regardless said price has been eslimaled
or corresponds to market conditions.
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IFRS 13 indicales that fair value of assets and liabilities shall include credit risk of the entity itself and of ils
counterparty. This principle affects derivative financial instruments of Grupo SANJOSE.

For calculating fair value of derivative financial instruments, the Group has applied several methods which
include current and fulure exposure, possibility of defaull and potential loss in the event of default. Consequently,
CVA (Credit Value Adjusiment) or credit risk of the counterparty and DVA (Deblt Value Adjusiment) or its own
credil risk are defined.

Total exposure of derivatives is determined by the market, taking into consideration interest rate changes,
exchange rate changes and any other changes subject o market conditions.

Possibilily of default has been based on credit spread of financing of the Company, verifying it is similar to that of
similar companies.

Further, for the adjustment of credit risk, total exposure of the Company to counterparlies has been laken into
consideration. In lhe event of counterparlies with credit information . credit spreads are provided by CDS (Credil
Default Swaps) listed on the stock exchange; companies lacking credit informalion use reference ifnormalion
available. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group held interesl rate swaps (IRSs and collars) for a total
notional amount of EUR 349,316 thousand million and EUR 469,090 million, respeclively, with maturity dates in
2017 and 2024. The negative impact on the consolidated net equily of the Group of ihe changes in fair value
resulting from lhese arrangemenls al the end of 2014 and 2013 was EUR 24,385 thousand and EUR 20,533
thousand, respectively.

4.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. when the aclual flow of the related goods and
services occurs, regardless of when the resulling monetary or financial flow atises:

1. Sales of goods are generally recegnised when the goods have been delivered and litte thereto has been
transferred.

2. Specifically, revenue is measured at the fair value of lhe consideration received or receivable and
represents the amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts, VAT and other sales-relaled laxes.

3. Revenue from completed work or projects (in both the construction and industrial businesses) is recognised
using the percentage of completion method, whereby revenue from completed work is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract al year-end. Under this method, revenue is delermined
on the basis of the percentage of total revenue per the main contract or approved amendments or addenda
thereto. This percentage is established on the basis of the proporlion thal costs incurred for work performed
to date bear to the lolal conlracl costs.

An expecled loss on the construction conlracl is recognised as an expense immediately.

Contract costs are recognised on an accrual basis, and costs aclually incurred in completed construction
units and cosls which may be incurred in the fulure but must be charged to the construction units thal have
been currenlly completed are recognised as an expense.

The application of this method for the recognition of the outcome of construction contracts is combined wilh
the preparalion of a budgel for each construction contract detailed by construction unif. This budgel is used
as a key management too! in order to closely follow up, for each construclion unil, any variances between
budgeled and actual figures.

In exceplional cases in which it is not possible to eslimale the total contract profil, the total contract cosls
incurred are recognised and reasonably assured sales relating to completed construction work are
recognised as contract revenue up to the limil of the aforementioned contracl costs incurred.

As regards construction work or projects performed on an order basis and by contract, lhe revenue from
work perdormed not included in the contract, such as addilional refurbishment and construclion
modifications, is recognised using the same method as for the main construction project, provided thal there
are no doubls as to their subsegquent approval and that they are technically justified.
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Consequenlly, progress bilings and the amounls to be billed for work performed are recognised in the
related trade receivables account with a credit to sales.

The amount of progress billings for work not yel performed is recognised under "Advances Received on
Orders" on the liabifily side of the balance sheet.

Income and expense relating to conslruclion services or improvement of infrastruclure are recorded in the
consolidated financial stalements as construction margin. Likewise, interesi income from concessions are
recorded as sales for qualify as common aclivilies regarding overall action. Income providing from
maintenance services or operalions are recorded as common income.

4, The main activity carried out by the Real Estate Division is the sale of houses and land. Revenue from this
activity is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been iransferred to the
buyer which usually is the date on which the public deed is executed. In this regard:

a. Sales of properlies and land, and related costs, are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have been (ransferred, i.e., when the
properlies are delivered and the sale is executed in a public deed. The deliveries of cash by the
cuslomers as payments on account, from the dale of the signing of the privale agreement to the date
on which the sale is executed in a public deed, are recognised under "Trade Payables" on lhe liabilily
side of the consolidated balance sheet..

b. The sales of building plots on which the Group has acquired the obligation with the local aulhorities to
carry out urban development work, which affects all the building plots under the urban development
plan, and which cannol be considered to be carried out specifically for the owners of the parcels sold,
are broken down into two items: the sale of the building plot and the sale of the urban development
work associated therewith.

The revenue relating to the sale of the building plot is recognised when substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred, usually when the property is delivered and the sale is
execuled in a public deed.

The revenue attributable to the sale of the urban development work (which is determined on the basis
of the projected cosls of the urban development work as a whole, calculated in proportion to the
square mefres of the building plot sold with respect fo the tolal square meters of the urban
development work plus the estimated profit margin on the sale) is recognised when the urban
development work has been substantially completed, al which time a provision is recognised for the
estimated costs lo be incurred in completing the work.

c. Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis and incentive-related income and the initial cosls of
lease agreemenls are allocated to income on a straight-line basis.

d. Asset exchange lransactions. An assel exchange transaclion is an acquisition of property, plant and
equipmenl or intangible assels in exchange for the delivery of other non-monetary assels or of a
combinalion of monetary and non-monetary assets.

The assels received in an exchange transaclion are recognised at their fair value, provided thal it can
be considered that the exchange has commercial substance and that the fair value of the asset
received, or otherwise of the asset given up, can be reliably measured. The fair value of the asset
received is taken to be the fair value of lhe asset given up plus, where applicable, the fair value of any
monetary consideration paid in exchange, unless lhere is clearer evidence of the fair value of the
assel received.

Asset exchange Iransaclions lhat do not meet the above-mentioned requirements, the asset received
is recognised at the carrying amounl of the asset given up plus the amount of any monelary
consideration paid or commilted on the acquisilion.

Income relating to the derecognition of assets given up in an asset exchange transaction is recognised
when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset have been transferred to lhe
counterparty in the exchange, with the value assigned 1o the assel received being recognised as the
balancing ealry.
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Amounts collecled or insirumented in notes and bills under conlracts execuled at lhe balance sheet date in
relation to properlies nol yet delivered are recognised under "Trade Payables™ or "Other Non-Currenl Liabilities"
on the liability side of the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet, depending on whelher they fall due in less
than or more than one year, respeclively.

5. Interest income is accrued on a fime proporlion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effeclive interest rate applicable, which is lhe rate thal exaclly discounts eslimated future cash flows over
the expecled life of the financial asset {o that assel's carrying amount.

8. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have
heen established.

7. Governmenl grants related to properly, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated balance
sheel as deferred income when the Group has satisfied the condilions established for their award and,
consequently, there are no reasonable doubts as fo their collection. These grants are allocated to income,
with a credit to "Other Operaling Income" in the consolidated income stalement, systematically over the
years of useful life of the assels, for which lhe grants were provided.

Granls awarded for (he purpose of covering or financing expenses incurred by the Group are recognised as
income in the periods in which the related expenses are incurred ence the condilions have been met.

An expense is recognised in the consolidated income statlement when there is a decrease in lhe future
economic benefit related to a reduction of an asset, or an increase in a liabilily, which can be measured reliably.
This means lhat an expense is recognised simultaneously lo the recording of the increase in a liability or the
reduclion of an assel.

An expense is recognised immediately when a disposal does not produce future economic benefits nor meets
accounting criteria to be recorded as an assel.

Likewise, an expense is recognised when a liability is incurred and no assel is recognised, as in the case of a
liabilily relaling to a guarantee

4.13 Borrowing Costs

Barrowing cosls directly altributable to the construction or produclion of property developments or invesiment
propeirty, which are assets that necessarily take a subslantial period of time {o get ready for their inlended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, unlil such fime as the assels are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. If borrowings have been obtained specifically for the construclion of such assels, the
interest and the olher capitalised finance charges relate to the aclual costs incurred in the year, less the income
eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendilure on qualifying assets. To
the extent that funds have been borrowed generally, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying the capitalisalion rate that relates to the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable 1o the average borrowings oulstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

However, the capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during exlended periods in which aclive
development of a qualifying asset is suspended.

invesiment income earned on the temporary inveslment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from lhe borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are
incurred, on an accrual basis, using the effeclive inlerest method.

4.14 Currency

The Group's functional currency is the Euro, Therefore, all balances and transactions denominated in currencies
olher than lhe euro are deemed to be “foreign currency balances and transaclions”.

On consolidalion, the balances in the financial stalements of the consolidated companies with a funclional
currency other than the Euro are transtated to Euros as follows:
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1. Assels and liabilities are translated to Euros al the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet dale.

2. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rales for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly.

3. Equity is iranslated at the historical exchange rates.

4. Any translation differences arising are classified separately in equily. Such translation differences are
recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which the foreign operation is realised or disposed of.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign company is treated as an asset of the foreign company and is
translated al the closing rate. Goodwill and fair value adjusiments arising on the acquisilion of a foreign
company qualify as assels and liabililies of said foreign company and are {ranslated at lhe closing rale.

The delail of the main companies which contribute assets and liabililies denominated in currencies other than
the Euro is as follows:
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Company

Address

Aclivily

Consiructora San Josin companies whic

CIMSA Argentina, S.A.

Tecnoartel Argenlina, S.A.

Centro Comercial Panamericano, S.A.

Argenlimo, S.A.

Inmobiliaria Sudamericana de Desarrollos Urbanute assets an
Udra Argentina, S.A.

Cartos Casado, S.A.

Branch office of Constructara San Jostos Urbanute assets
San Josction (Argentin

Eskonel Company S.A.

San Jose Construction Group, Inc.

San José Real Esfate Development, LLC

1681 West Avenue, LLC

Branch oflice of Constructora San Jos¢ in Panama

San José Panama, S.A. (former Construcoira Panamefia de
Acropuerios, 5.A.Panama)
San José Pert Inmobiliaria, S.A.C.

Inmobiliaria 2010, 5.A.

San José Perd Constructora , S.A.

San José Tecnologfas Peru , 5.A.C.

Sanjose Maroc, S.A.R.L.A.U,

Sefri Ingenieros Maroc, S.AR.L.

Udra Mexico S.A. de C.V.

San José India Infraestructure & Construction Privale
Limited

Pontus Euxinus Tehnologii Renovabile, S.R.L.

Conslructora Sanjose Brasil Ltda.

Hospes Brasil Participaciones ¢ Empreendimientos Lda.

Aprisco Salvador Inv. Hoteleiros e Imobiliientos Lda. |
Branch office of Constructora San José in Nepal
Constructora San Josstruclorerde, S.A.

Branch ofTice of Constructora San Jos¢ in Cape Verde
San José Congo, S.A.

Constructora San José Timor Unipessoal Lda.

Branch office of Constructora San José in Timor

Concesionaria San Jose Tecnocontrol, S.A.

Branch office of Constructora San José in Chile
San José Tecnologlas Chilte Limitada

Teenocontrof Chile Limitada

Inversiones San José Chile, Limitada

Buenos Aires (Argentina)
San Luis (Argentina)

Buenos Aires (Argentina)
Buenos Aires (Argentina)
Buenos Aires (Argentina)
Buenos Aires (Argenlina)
Buenos Aires {(Argenting)
Buenos Aires (Argentina)

Buenos Aires (Argentina)
Colonia Sacramento
(Uruguay)

Uruguay

Washington (USA)
Delaware (USA)
Delaware (USA)

City of Panama (Panama)

City of Panama (Panama)
Lima (Peru)

Lima (Peru)
Lima (Peru)

Lima, Peru
Casablanca (Morocco)
Morocco

Mexico

New Delhi (India)
Bucarest (RomanTeh

Salvador de Bahnjose Brasi
Brazil

Brazil

Kathmandu (Nepal)
Cape Verde

Paria (Cape Verde}

Congo
Timor

Timor

Sanliago de Chile (Chile)
Santiago de Chile (Chile)
Chile
Chile
Santiago de Chile (Chile)

Construclion

Civil works

Maintenance and facilities
Real Estate Development
Real Estate Development
Real Estate Development
Real Estate

Praperiy holding

Consiruction

Industriafisation and Trade
Energy

Construclion

Real Estate Development
Real Estale Development

Construction

Construction

Canstruclion
Construction and Real Estate
Development

Construction
Consiruction and Real Estate
Development

Conslruction
Engineering and installations

Holding company

Construction
Industrialisation and Trade

Construclion
Construction and Real Estate
Development
Construction and Real Estate
Development

Construction
Construction

Construction
Construction and Real Estate
Development

Construciion

Construction
Construclion and Hotel
Management

Construction
Construction

Construction

Investmeint and real estale

Ftodrt S8 SRR LI
ColErAnr s

INTERPRETE JU
CiSeralin Tu
36900 Mo .

UDIGLESIAS
HGLES ESPANOL

.1t'e\.'cdra) 35




Transiation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issned in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,

the Spanish language version prevails

Inversiones San José Andina, Limitada
Inversiones Hospitalarias, Limitada
Inversiones Viales Andina, Limitada

San José Mozambique, Sociedade Limitada
San José Colombia, S.A.S

Santiago de Chile (Chile)
Santiago de Chile (Chile)
Santiago de Chile (Chile)
Mozambique

Colombia

Investment and real estale
Capital investment
Capilal invesiment

Construction

Consiruction

None of these counlries are considered to be hyperinflalionary economies as defined by IAS 29.
4.15 Profit {Loss} from operations

"Profit (Loss)} from Operations" in the consolidated income slatement includes the profits and losses from the
Group companies' ordinary operations, excluding lhe financial loss and the share of resulls in associates.

4,16 Income tax

The income tax expense of the Spanish companies and lhe taxes of a similar nalure applicable to the
consolidaled foreign companies are recognised in the consolidated income statement, except when they arise
from a fransaclion whose results are recognised directly in equity, in which case the related tax is also
recognised in equily.

The income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and the changes in the deferred lax
assets and liabilities recognised (see Note 21).

The difference, if any, befween the taxable profit or tax loss and the tax income or expense recognised is
trealed as a deferred tax asset or liability, as applicable. A deferred tax liabilily is one that will generate a fulure
obligation for the Group to make a payment to the related tax authorities. A deferred lax asset is one that will
generate a right for the Group to a refund or to make a lower payment to the related tax aulhorities in the future.

The Group's liability for current income lax is calculated using tax rates which have been approved on the
balance sheet dale.

Tax assets refating to ax credits and tax relief and lax loss carry forwards are amounts that, afler performance
of the aclivity or oblainment of the profit or loss giving entillement to them, are not deducted for tax purposes in
the related tax return until the condilions for doing so established in the related tax regufations are met. The
Group considers it probable that they will be deducted in future periods.

Deferred tax assels and liabililies are laxes expecled (o be payable or recoverable on differences between the
carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the consolidated financial stalements and the relaled tax bases
used in the calculalion of the taxable profit or tax loss. Deferred lax assets and liabililies are accounted for using
the balance shest liabilily melhod and are measured by applying to the relaled temporary difference or tax asset
the tax rale thal is expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is seltlled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable lemporary differences. A deferred tax liability is recognised
for taxable temporary differences arising from invesimenis in subsidiaries and associates and from interesls in
joint ventures, excepl when the Group is able fo control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that these differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Notwilhstanding the foregoing:

1. Deferred tax assels arising from temporary differences, tax credits, tax relief and tax loss carry forwards, if
any, are recognised to the extent (hat it is considered probable that the consolidaled companies will have
sufficient fulure laxable profits against which they can be utilised; and

2. No deferred tax liabilities are recognised for non-deductible goodwill arising on an acquisition.

The deferred lax assets and liabilities recognised are reassessed al each balance sheet date in order 1o

ascertain whether they sfill exist, and lhe appropriate adjustments are made on the basis of the findings of the
analyses performed.

ESTEFANIA GALVB 6L ESIAY
INIERPRIE’:EJU 40O JNGLLE'S-ESPANOL
era io, 5,17
36900 Maikd (D 'Il?tevuljra)
calve.estc L= gmail.com 38
690320705 936890458




Translation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the eveni of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

Since 1 January 2006, the Parent forms an integral part of lhe consolidated tax group. At 31 December 2014,
the following SANJOSE group companies fited consolidated tax returns, acling "Grupo Empresarial San Jose,
S.A." as the head of the consolidated tax group:

Construclora San José, S.A.

Carluja Inmobiliaria, S.A.U.

Desarrollos Urbanisticos Udra, S.A.U.

Inmobiliaria Europea de Desarrollos Urbanisticos, S.A.U.
tnmobiliaria Americana de Desarrollos Urbanisticos, 5.A.U.
Tecnoconlrol Instalaciones, S.L.U.

Tecnocontrol Sistemas de Seguridad, S.A.U.
Tecnocontrol Servicios, 5.A.U.

Basket King S.A.U.

Arserex S.A.U.

Comercial Udra S.A.U.

Udramedios S.A.U.

Cadena de Tiendas S.A.U.

Trendy King S.A.U.

Outdoor King S.A.U.

Alhletic King, S.A.U. (former Ewan Connection, S.A.U.)
Vislon King, S.A.U. (antes, Fashion King S.A.U.)
Running King S.A.U.

Enerxias Renovables de Galicia, S.A.

Xornal de Galicia, S.A.U.

Asesoramienlo y Geslion Integral de Edificios, S.A.U. (AGEINSA).

Azac, S.AU.

Hote! Rey Pelayo, S.L.

Lardea, S.L.

Parquesol Construcciones, Obras y Mantenimientos, S.L.
Sofia Hoteles, S.L.U.

Urbemasa, S.A.U.

San José Concesiones y Sevicios, S.A.U.
SanJosé Energia y Medioambiente, S.A.
San Jose Desarrollos Inmobitiarios, S.A.U.

Udralar, S.L.U.

Udramar Inmobiliaria, S.L.U.

Udrasol Inmobiliaria, S.L.U.

Udrasur Inmobiliaria, S.L.U

Copaga, S.L.U

Douro Atlantico, S.L.U.
Poligeneraciones parc de L'Alba, 5.A.
Xornal Galinet, 5.A.U.

Inmoprado Laguna, S.L.U.
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- Gestion de Servicios de Salud, S.A.U.
- Aliptano Desarrollos inmobiliarios, S.L.U.

4.17 Provisions
When preparing its consolidated financial statements, the San Jose Group made a distinction between:

1. Provisions: credil balances covering present obligalions at the balance sheet date arising from past events
which could give rise lo a loss for the companies, which is certain as to ils nature bul uncertain as lo ils
amount and/or timing; and

2. Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the
consolidated companies.

The Group's consolidated financial statements include all the material provisions with respect to which it is
considered that it is more likely than not that the obligalion will have fo be setlled. Conlingent liabililies are not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but rather are disclosed, as required by IAS 37.

Provisions, which are quantified on he basis of the best informalion available on the consequences of the evenl
giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusled at lhe end of each year, are used lo cater for the specific
obligations for which they were originally recognised. Provisions are fully or partially reversed when such
obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

4.17.1 Provisions for urban development costs

These provisions relate to the eslimaled costs not yet incurred in the urban development of previously sold plots
of land (basically in relalion lo the second phase of the Valladolid Parquesol Subdivision Plat), eslimaled on the
basis of technical and ecenomic studies carried oul. The distribution among the various plots of the total costs to
be incurred in the urban development work is made in proportion to the square metres of the previously sold
plots with respect to the total urban development area (see Note 16).

4.17.2 Provisions for completion of construction projecls and warranly cosis

Provisions for the completion of conslruction projects are recognised for the estimaled amount required to meet
the expenses necessary for the completion of the property developments in progress when lhese developmenls
have been substantially completed, and the cost thereof is transferred to "Compleled Buildings". Provisions for
warranty costs, particularly after-sales expenses, other costs and the ten-year warranty required under Spanish
regulations governing real estate companies, are recognised al the date of sale of the relevant products, based
on the best estimate of lhe expenditure required to setile the Group's liability (see Note 16}. However, the Group
has taken out insurance policies to cover the potential risks arising from the ten-year wairanty.

4.17.3 Liligation and/or claims in process

At the end of 2014 cerlain litigalion and claims were in process against the consolidated companies arising from
the ordinary course of their operations. The Group's legal advisers and the Parenl's directors consider lhat the
oulcome of litigalion and claims will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial slatements for the
years in which they are seltled.

4.18 Termination benefits

Under the legislation in force in each case, the Spanish consolidated companies and certain Group companies
located abroad are required to pay termination benefits to employees terminated without just cause. There are
no redundancy plans making it necessary lo recognise a provision in this connection.

Also, lhe Company has recognised sufficient provisions under "Other Current Liabilities” on lhe liabilily side of
the accompanying consolidated balance sheel at 31 December 2014 to meet the contract termination cosls of
temporary employees in accordance with legal provisions.

Provistons for restrucluring costs are recognised when the Group has a delailed formal plan for the restructuring
that has been communicated to affected parlies.

368900 Man .“'ont'uv'edra)
calvo.eslciaz ™ omail.com a8
890320705 - 986800498




Translation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

4,19 Classification of current assets and liabilities

In the consolidated balance sheet, assets and liabililies expected lo be recovered, used or seltled within twelve
months from the balance sheet date are classified as currenl items, exceplt for inventories, which are presenied
in full under "Current Assets” in the consolidated balance sheel, since it Is expecled that they will be realised in
the normal course of the building plot and property sale business, and the liabilities associated with inventories
(borrowing costs and customer advances), which are presenled under "Current Liabilities” in the consolidated
balance sheet, regardless of heir maturity. Prior to year-end, if a liability does not give the Group an
unconditional right to defer the selllement for at least twelve months from the balance sheet dale, the liabilily is
classified as a current item.

The Group holds financia! liabilities which are classified as current liabililies in the consolidaled balance sheet,
since they are subject to the financing of current properly assets (see Nole 17}).

4,20 Transactions with associales

Grupo SANJOSE executes all fransaclions wilh associates al market price. [n addition, transfer prices are borne
appropriately, and therefore, Company Directors believe there are any significant risks in this regard for any
potential substantial liabililies arising in the future.

4.21 Assets of natural environment

Assels of nalural environment are those which are used for the Group's business activity and whose main goal
is to minimise environmental impact and protection of the environment, as well as the reduclion and elimination
of future pollution.

The Groups' business aclivily, due to its nalure, does not have a significant impact on the environment.
4.22 Consolidated cash flow statements

The following terms are used in the consolidated cash flow stalements, which was prepared using the indirect
method, wilh the meanings specified:

1. Cash flows: inflows and oufflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are shori-term, highly liquid
investments ihat are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2. Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activilies of the Group and other aclivilies that are not
invesling or financing activities.

3. Investing aclivilies: the acquisilion and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in
cash and cash equivalents.

4. Financing activities: aclivilies that result in changes in the size and composition of the equity and
borrowings of the Group companies thal are not operating aclivities.

4.23 Profit/{Loss) from discontinues activities

Pursuant to IFRS 5, the income statement shall include a single figure including tolal profit/{loss) after laxes of
disconlinued activities. Disconlinued activilies refer lo the income and expense associated lo assels and/or
liabililies of the Group transferred or classified as held for sale for being:

-  aseparale business line,

- or for forming an integral parl of a disposal plan,

- orfor being a subsidiary acquired for the sole purpose of selling il.

On 30 December 2014 Grupo SANJOSE enlered inlo a modifying novation agreement for ils syndicaled credit
facilities in Spain (see Note 17) pursuant to which the main commitment of the group at 31 December 2014 is
the sale of ils inveslee "San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.", through which the Group develops lhe real
estate business in Spain and Porlugal. Consequently, said aclivity has been discontinued.
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5. FEarnings per share

5.1 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit altributable to the Group (after lax and minaority
interests) by the weighled average number of shares outstanding during the year, excluding the average

number of ireasury shares held in the year. Accordingly:

Year Year

2014 2013 Changes
Net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the Parent (thousand of Euros) (120,054) | (155,242) 23%
Net profit/(loss) for continued operations attributable to the Parent (thousand of Euros) (39,852) 8,357
Weighted average number of shares (shares) 65,026,083 | 65,026,083 -
Basic profit/(loss) per share (Euros/Share) {1.85) (2.39) 23%
Basic profit/(loss) for continued operations per share (Euros/Share) (0.61) 0.13 -

5.2 Diluted earnings per share

There was no potential dilulive effect arising from share oplions, warranls, convertible debt and other
instruments al 31 December 2014 and, accordingly, the diluted eamings per share coincide with the basic
earnings per share.

6. Segment reponriing

6.1 Basis of segmentation

Segment reporting is generally structured on a primary basis by business segment and on a secondary basis by
geographical segment.

Primary business segmenis

The business lines described below were established on the basis of the organisational structure of Grupo
Empresarial San José, 5.A and Subsidiaries at 2014 year-end, taking into account, on the one hand, the nature
of the goods and services offered and, on the other, the cuslomer segmenls at which they are largeted.

in years 2014 and 2013, Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A and Subsidiaries engaged mainly in lhe following
major lines of business, which were the basis for the Group's primary segment reporting:

1. Conslruclion (civil engineering, building construction and industrial works).
2. Property and urban development.

3. Energy activity

4, Concessions and Services.

Likewise, income and expenses thal cannot be specifically attributed to any operating line are recorded under
"Other”.

Secondary business segments

The Group's operations are located in Spain, the Uniled States, Latin America (Argentina, Uruguay, Peru,
Panama, Paraguay, Chile and Brazil), Africa (Cape Verde, Morocco and Congo), Asia (India, UAE, and Nepal)
and other European counlries {Portugal, France, Germany and Romania).

6.2 Basis and methodology for segment reporting
Segment revenue is revenue that is directly attributable to the segment.

This revenue does not include interest or dividend income or gains arising from sale of invesimenls or

redemption or seltlement of debts. The Group includes in segment revenue the share of resulls of associales
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and joint ventures accounted for using the equily method and the share of the revenue of proporlionately
consolidated joint ventures.

Segment expense is expense resulting from lhe segment's operating aclivities that are direclly attributable to the
segment. These expenses do not include interest or losses arising from lhe sale of investments or redemplion
or settlement of debts, income tax expense or general administrative expenses corresponding to the head office
that are not relaled o the operating activities of the segments. Segment expense includes the share of lhe
expenses of proportionalely consolidated joint ventures..

The segment's results are presented before any adjusiments relating to the consolidalion process, which are
included in the "Consofidation Adjusiments” column.

Segmenl assets and liabilities are those direclly related to the operalions of the segments and include the
proporlional par relating to joint ventures. Segment liabilities do not include income tax liabilities.

Segment informalion about these businesses is presented below:

Year 2014:
Thousand of Euros
Real estate
and property Concessions | Adjustments
Consiruction | development Energy and Services and other TOTAL
Inconte:
Net Revenues:
External sales 363,609 32,229 11,321 40,695 17,228 465,082
Inter-segment sales 18,062 - - 113 (18,835) -
381,671 32,229 11,321 41,468 (1,607) 465,082
Profit /(L.oss):
Profit (Loss) from operations 8,448 10,748 (665) (3,272) (3,817) 11,422
EBITDA 18,122 10,485 2816 3,684 (1,279) 33,828
Profit/(loss) from associales (140N 1,393 (283) - {573) {864)
Financial income 6,895 1,645 4 16,195 (2,519 22,220
f;';‘;’l‘l‘;g' costs and  similar (12,055) (1,130) (531) (13310) 37t @s6ss)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,887 12,656 (1,475) (387) (5,558) 1,123
Year 2013:
Thousands of Euros (*)
Real estate and
praperty Concessions and Adjustments
Conslruciion development Energy Services and other TOTAL
Income:
Net Revenues:
Extemal sales 344,076 43,941 11,586 107,831 18,530 525,964
Inter-segment sales 83,050 314 - 453 (83,817) -
427,126 44,255 11,586 108,284 (65,287) 525,964
Profit /{L.oss):
Profil (Loss) from operalions 876 18,911 1,100 6,856 (2,855) 24,888
EBITDA 11,034 13,335 2,630 8,368 (2,433) 32,934
Profiv(foss) from associates (620) 1,607 - - - 987
Financial income 10,363 1210 - 2,289 (3,442) 10,420
g:;‘:;‘c“s' cosls  and  similar (7,792) (1,155) ©21) (22,030) 6,147 (25,751)
Profit/(Loss) before fax 2,827 20,573 179 (12,885) {150) 10,544
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Sales between segments take place at market prices and consist mainly in conslruclion, real estate and urban
development transaclions.

Information regarding the amount of assels and liabilities contributed to the Group by lhe defined segments is as

follows:
Thousand of Euros
Property and real Concessions and
Conslruclion eslale development Energy Services Adjusiments and other TOTAL
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Other disclosure:
Additions to fixed
assels
Tn Spain 988 M - % 225 161 20 19 73 49 1,306 393
In foreign couniries 2,606 2,706 3 140 895 - 2 4 (886) - 2,622 2,350
3,5 2,780 5 230 1,120 161 22 23 (813) 49 3,928 3,243
3')““”"""”“ charge 1,973 1324 156 1,087 3667 1659 80 642 198 66 6374 4,718
Balance sheel:
Assels-
Asegment assets-
In Spain 624,952 506,110 25,723 | 1,395,116 22,789 24,719 13,344 15,391 899,138 (199,282) 1,585,946 1,742,114
In foreign countries 313,750 201,592 39,678 | 225,101 25,390 - 273,631 238,251 166,853 58,187 819,302 723,131
938,702 707,702 65,401 | 1,620,277 48,179 24,719 ] 286,975 253,642 1,065,991 (141,095) 2,405,248 2,465,245
Liabilities-
Segmenl liabililies 742,523 489512 | 1,468,167 | 1,842,777 25,662 21,525 | 294306 | 254,581 67955y | (200,329) 2462703 | 2,399,066
(") Reformulaled data for year 2013 (see Note 4.23)

There are no signilicant non-operating assets

Information on secondary segmenls:

The following table provides breakdown on several consolidated balances of the Group according to geographical
distribution of arising entlities:

ESTERATA
INTERPRETE JURGEYD IN
ClScralj-Fubia, 5, 12
36900 MaNpf(Conlevidia) 4o
calvo.estelalizstymail.com

890320703 - H56530493




Translation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,

the Spanish language version prevails

Thousand of Euros
Additions to Property, planl
Net and equipment and
Revenue Total assels invesiment properly
2014 2013 (% 2014 2013 2014 2013

Spain 201,987 270,776 1,738,758 1,742,114 1,436 393
Portugal 51,992 41,981 65,271 191,340 12 24
Cape Verde 351 15,737 34,081 35,721 - -
The Uniled States - 6,085 - 2 - -
Argentina 3,672 4,959 93,495 104,511 26 17
Uruguay - 369 153 153 - -
Peru 57,061 65,767 75,311 82,830 9 128
Panama - - 197 16t - -
France - - 1,546 1,274 - -
Germany - - 164 164 - -
Brazil - 6 9,767 9,820 - -
India 355 732 886 327 4 70
Chile 21,312 87,078 282400 246,076 2 17
Morocco - - 64 61 - -
Abu Dhabi 68,825 27,388 71,599 28,944 1,152 108
Nepal 5,162 1,659 10,622 6,701 247 484
Timor 3,762 - 4,143 1,583 145 960
Republic of Congo 13,442 3427 16,791 13,444 895 1,042
Other - . - - - . -

TOTAL 465,082 525,964 2,405,248 2,465,245 3,928 3,243

(*) Reformulated dala (see Nole 4.23)

Note 2.3 of the accompanying consolidated Notes includes a list of the main countries where the Group operates in
a currency other than the Euro. From total assets at 31 December 2014 and 2013, EUR 599,509 thousand and EUR
530,353 thousand, respeciively, correspond fo assets in foreign currency. Likewise, from total revenue for years
2014 and 2013 the aclivity developed in said countries amounts to EUR 205,103 thousand and EUR 213,207

thousand, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Changes in 2014 and 2013 under “Property, Plant and Equipment” in the consolidated balance sheel were as

follows:

O .
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Year 2014:
r Thousand of Euros
Activity Additions
Discontinued ! . Translation
Balance Provisions | Disposals | Transfers Changesin | gifgerences | Balance
(Note 12) the scape of
31/12/2013 consolidation | and other |31/12/2014
Cost:
Land and buildings 52,616 (4.101) 239| (9,716) - . (,769)| 37275
Plant and machinery 14,646 (1,188) 1831 (16 (22) 17,693 267| 33,058
Other items of property, plant and 30.282 (2,532)
equipment v 8il an 23 - 57 28,611
Total Cost 97,544 (7,821) 2,881 (9,914) 1 17,693 (1,440) 98,944
Accumulated amortisation:
Land and buildings (4,328) 616 (273) 8 - . @ 690
Plant and machinery (11,020) LIS (2,368) 38 - (4,714) 62| aznen
Other items of property, plant and 27,175) 2,424
equipment (27, (1,441) 25 n - 180| (25.988)
Total accumulated amortisation | (42,523) HISS| 4,082) 7 () (4,714) 105]  (46,980)
Total Accumulated Impairment ) . .
(Note 23.9) (173) 168 (C)] - ()]
Net carrying amount 54,848 (3:498) |  (1,204)] (9,843) - 12,979 (1,335 51955
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
- Exchange
Balanee II\,'::",;;?E:; Disposals T&?:tirgzs rate Balance
differences
3171222012 31/12/2013
Cost:
Land and buildings 51,800 95 - 1,698 977) 52,616
Plant and machinery 13,276 2,057 (340) (22) (325) 14,646
Other items of property, plant and 30,255 821 (579 2 @n| 30282
equipment
Total Cost 95,301 2,973 (919) 1,698 (1,539} 97,544
Accunwulated amortisation:
Land and buildings (3,752) (560} - (16) - {4,328)
Plant and machinery (11,314) (452) 409 20 7] (11,020)
Other items of property, plant and
equipment (26,260) (1,385) 175 @ | @719
Total accumulated amortisation (41,326) (2,397) 884 - 16 (42,523)
'zf;tga)l Accumulated Impairment (Note @4) } 19 (168) } (173)
Net carrying amount 53,981 576 (16) 1,530 (1,223) 54,848
Year 2014.
Additions occurred in year 2014 correspond mainly to inveslment in machinery and technical facilities incurred into
by the Group when beginning conslruction aclivity in Nepal, Republic of Congo and Abu Dhabi.
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During year 2014, as a result of taking controf of the Company “Fotovoltaica el Gallo 10, S.L." (see Note 2.4), he
assets provided by the company, corresponding to the facililies of the PV power plant for a net amount of EUR
12,979 thousand are included within the scope of consolidalion .

Disposals under "Land and buildings" refate mostly to the sale of land that the Group company "Carlos Casado SA"
has formalised during the year, amounting to EUR 9,716 thousand, recording a benefit of EUR 1,755 thousand
under “lmpairment and gains on disposal of financial instruments" in the Consolidaled Income Statement for year
2014 altached.

Year 2013:

Addilions occurred in year 2013 correspond mainly to inveslment in machinery and technical facililies incurred into
by the Group when beginning construction aclivity in Nepal, Republic of Congo and East Timor.

At 31 December 2014, investment hold in foreign counlries by the Group, detailed by associate, is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
31-12-2014 31-12-2013
Accum. Accum.
Cost Amort. Cost Amort.

Argentimo, S.A, 106 (95) 123 (101}
Branch office Construciora San José, S.A. Portugal, 2,084 (2,076) 2,078 (2,067)
Branch oflice of Conslructora San José, S.A. Argentina 167 (148) 169 (169)
Ute Ruta-20 15 (15) 19 (19)
Ute San Juan 9 (9 11 {(an
Constructora Udra Limitada 144 (125) 138 {119)
Constructora San José Cabo Verde, S.A. 1,274 (889) 1,114 {683)
Sociedad Concesionaria San José — Tecnocontrol, S.A. 58 (38) 57 (30
Constructora Sanjose Chile Lida. 144 (92} 14§ (78)
San Jose India Infrastr. & Construction Privale Limited 103 an 88 (23)
Constructora San José¢ Argentina, S.A. 108 (107) 126 (125)
San José Perlt Inmobiliaria, S.A. 918 (707) 856 (568)
San José Constructora Perit, S.A. 721 (585) 670 (406)
Inmobiliaria 2010, S.A. 10 (10) 10 (10}
San Jose Construction Group, Inc 4 @) 3 (39}
Grupo Carlos Casado 22,536 24 34,055 (186)
Tecnoartel, S.A. 2 (2) 2 {2)
Constructora San José Congo, S.A. 1,796 {395) 1,047 (63)
Conslruciora San José Timor, Unipessoal Lda, 857 (103) 757 -
Branch office of Constructora San José, 5.A. Abu 1,374 (223) 104 (2)
Dhabi

Branch office of Constructora San José, S.A. Timor 352 (53) 171 4)
Branch office of Construclora San José, S.A. Nepal 746 (247 444 (43)
TOTAL 33,528 {5,984) 42.183 {4,749)

As stated on Nole 17.1, al 2014 and 2013 the Group had many leasing operalions in coutse. Breakdown al 31
December 2014 is as follows:

Thousand of
Euros
Term of contract (years) 8
VYaluc in cash 108
Quistanding balances (Note 17.1)
Non-current -
Current 9

Finance leasing agreements hold by the Company at year-end 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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- Two lower cranes for the urban development "Condominio Parques de la Huaca". The lease term commenced in
June 2009 and ended in May 2014, with a total term of 5 years. The nominal amounts of purchase oplion amounts
fo 1 Euro and has been executed wilhin the year. The rent paid in 2014 amounted to EUR 25 thousand, which
included a finance charge of EUR 1.1 thousand.

- Pumps and pipes for the associate “Rexa Consliuctora, S.A.". The lease term commenced in April 2012 and
ended in March 2015, with a total term of 3 years. The nominal amount of purchase oplion amounts to 1 Euro. The
reni paid in 2014 amounted to EUR 32 thousand, which included a finance charge of EUR 0.3 thousand.

At year-end 2014. total items pending amortisation corresponding to finance leases amounted to EUR 1,607
thousand (see Nole 17.1}.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the cos! of the land upon which property for own use is located amounted lo EUR
4.1 and EUR 41.4 million, respectively {including items provided by Carlos Casado).

At 31 December 2014 and 2013 there are specific property acting, with a carrying amount of approximately EUR
8,767 thousand and EUR 11,899 thousand, respeclively, as collateral for part of the loan syndicated by the Group
which amounted o EUR 32.9 and 41.1 million, respeclively (see Note 17.3).

Fair value of own use buildings at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounls to EUR 18.3 million in both years,
according to eslimates carried by independent valuers (at 31 December 2014 and 2013 said studies were carried
out by "Inslituto de Valoraciones, S.A."). Carrying net cost at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounts to EUR 8.8
million and EUR 9.0 miltion, respectlively.

Al year-end 2014 and 2013 there were fully amortised assels amounling to EUR 19.5 million and EUR 22.1 miillion,
respeclively.

At year-end 2014 the Group does not hold significant investment commilments in property, plant and equipment.

The Group takes out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which ils investment properly is subject. The
Parent's directors consider (hat the insurance coverage arranged is sufficient.

8. Investment property and investment properly in progress
8.1 Investment property

The balance of invesimenl properly arose mainly from the company of the Group "San Jose Desarrollos
Inmobiliarios, S.A.", parent of the real eslate division of the group (see Note 1). The detail of "Investiment Property”
and changes therein in 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Year 2014:
Thousand of Euros
Actives transfers | Additions/
Balance to non Provisions | Transfers Exchange Balance
current held for rate
/122013 sale (Note 12) differences | 31/12/2014
Casl:
Land and buildings 574,557 (567,534) - - (802) 6,221
Plant and machinery 17,115 (15,505) 5 - (191) 1,424
Furnilure, 1ools and other items 3,852 (3.673) - - (25) 154
Assels under construclion and 37,059 (37,059)
advances
Total Cost 632,583 (623,771) 5 - (1,018) 7,799
Accumulated amortisation:
Buildings (62,557) 39473 (109) 256 77 (2,560)
Technical facilities (12,508) 11,227 27 - 170 (1,130)
Furniture, tools and other items (3,618) 3447 () - 22 (150
Total accumulated (78,683) 74,147 (137) 256 569 (3,840)
amor(isation
Total Accumulated
Impairment (Note 23.9) (66,551) 66,424 - (256) 306 n
Net carrying amount 487,349 (483,200) (132) - {143) 3,882
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
- Exchange
Balance ‘;dd'!".ms ! Disposals | Transfers rate Balance
rovisions .
differences
31/1272012 3171272013
Cost:
Land and buildings 600,229 19 (21,732)| (1,698) (2,260) 574,557
Plant and machinery 17,548 89 - - (522) 17,115
Furniiure, tools and other itemis 3,919 - - - {68) 3,852
Real eslale invesiment in progress 37,059 - - - 0 37,059
Tatal Cost 658,755 108 (21,732) | (1,698) (2,850) 632,583
Accumulated amortisation:
Buildings (60,120) (7,994) 4,532 - 1,025 (62,557)
Technical facilities (11,854) (1,135) - - 481 (12,508)
Furniture, loots and other items (3,614) (71} - - 05 (3,618)
Total accumulated amortisation (75,587) (2,199) 4,532 - 1,51 (78,683}
Total Accumulated Impairment
(Note 23.9) (83,239 (4,279) 21,778 168 (979) (66,551)
Net carrying amount 499,929 (13,370) 4,578 (1,530) (2,258) 487,349

The cost of the investment properly at 31 December 2014 and 2013 includes approximately EUR 2.7 million and
EUR 273.9 million, relating to the carrying amounl of the land relating thereto.
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During year 2014, pursuant to the assessment of invesiment assets commilted by Grupo SANJOSE to independent
valuers, no significant reduction in value of investment properly was recorded (see Nole 8.2).

Additions at 2014 and 2013 are nol very significant.

Use or nature of the investment property

Substantially all of the Group's investment properly relates to properties earmarked for lease. The detail of the use or
nature of the Group's investment property devoled to leasing purposes at 31 December 2014is as follows:

2014
Surface

Lease purpose For lease (m2) | Percenlage
Adminisirative building 3,837 2%
Holels - -
Shopping Centres 171,006 97%
Cther 1,849 1%

176,692 100%

Morigaged investment property
At 31 December 2014 the Group does not have real eslate assels as collateral for morigage investments.

In addition to this, certain investment properly recorded for a total net cost amounting at 31 December 2014 to EUR
282 thousand act as security of the loan syndicaled by the Group for EUR 1,858 thousand (see Note 17.3).

Income and expenses from rental of Investment property

Al 31 December 2014 commercial premises, office building and car park spaces had been leased out to third parties
under operating leases.

The detail, by maturity, of the lease payments payable to the Group under the operaling leases and subleases
contracted for by the Group wilh lhird parties (excluding potential costs charged to clients) at 31 December 2014 is
as follows:

7

Thousand
of Euros
Term 2014
Up lo a year 2,103
FFrom one to five years 2,771
More than five years 894
5.768

Calculation has nol taken into consideration increase of CPl and, regarding variable rate contracts, amount for year
2014 has been considered.

Total investment property rental income of the Group for year 2014 excluding potential costs charged to clients,
amounts to EUR 3,342 thousand recorded under "Provision of services” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement for year 2014.

Insurance policy

The Group takes out insurance policies fo cover the possible risks to which substantially all ils invenlories are
subject. The Parent's Directors consider insurance coverage arranged lo be sufficient.
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Translation into English of consolidated noles for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issied in Spanish. Iu the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails :

8.2. Fair value of investment property

Each year the Group commissions studies from independent valuers to determine the fair value of ils investment
properly al year-end. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the aforementioned studies were conducted mainly by
Inslituto de Valoraciones, S.A. Such valualions were performed on the basis of the sale value and lease value of the
property on the market (which consists of capitalising the net income from each property and discounting fulure
flows), as defined by the Royal Instilution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and in accordance with the Internalional
Valualion Standards (IVS) published by the International Valuation Standards Commiltee (IVSC}), which group
logether inlernational and European asset valualion instilutions. The fair value was calculated using the discount
rates acceplable to a prospeciive investor and in line with those applied by the market for properties of similar
characterislics in similar locations.

According lo the above mentioned study, no change has been record under the real estate investments of the Group
(see Notes 8.1 and 23.9).

At 31 December 2014, the fair value of the Company’s inventories based on the aforemenlioned sludy amounted to
EUR 81.5 thousand. Said amount, at 31 December 2014, includes EUR 35.5 million corresponding lo real estate
investments of assoclates at lhe equity percentage of the Group.

9. Goodwlll
The delail of "Goodwill" in the consolidated balance sheel, based on the companies giving rise lo the various items,
is as follows:
Thousand of Euros
31/12/2014 | 35/12/2013

Cartuja Inmobiliaria, S.A.U. 600 600
San José Perl Inmobiliaria, S$.A. (antes, Sar José
Perdd, S.A)) 1,601 1,601
Constructora San José, S.A. 7,662 8,401
Subgrupo San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios - 2,117
Other 121 488
Total net 9,984 13,207

According to the eslimales and projections available to the Directors of the Group, lhe eslimated revenue
allributable to the Group of these companies adequately supports the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the
relevant regislered CGUs, Likewise, the sensilivity of executed impairment tests allows deviations of key hypothesis
(increase of sales, operaling margin and disount rates} within standardised margin, without identifying impairment.

10. Intanglble assets
This item includes the Group's concessions and licences.

The delail in the consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Year 2014:
Thousand of Euros
Transfer Changes in
ASNOT- 4 A dditions / the scope of
Balance cursent | ppovisions Disposals | consolidation Balance
assets held
for sale
31/122013 | (Note 12) 31/1272014
Cost 29,956 (251) 1,042 (100) 3,293 33,940
Total Cost 29,956 {251) 1,042 (100) 3,293 33,940
Accumulated amortisation (10,347) 249 (2,155) - (394) {12,647}
Total accumulated amortisation {10,347) 249 (2,155) - (3%83) (12,646}
Total Accumulated Impairment
(Note 23.9) (1,045) - - 63 - {982)
Net carrying amount 18,564 {2) (1,113) (37) 2,900 20,311
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
Additions Exchange
/ rate
Balance | Provisions | Disposals | differences | Balance
31/12/2012 31/12/2013
Cost 30,186 162 (391) () 29,956
Total Cost 30,186 162 {391) (1) 29,956
Accumulated amortisation (8,345) (1,802) - - (10,347)
Total accumulated amortisation (8,545) (1,802) - - (16,347)
Total Accumulated Impairment (Note
23.9) {951) (94) - - (1,045
Net carrying amount 20,690 {1,734) (391) (1) 18,564

Main additions during year 2014 refer fo counterparts received as legally claimed collections by the Group. The
Group has received during year 2014:

- The company “Cartuja, S.A.U." has received the operation under concession regime of a car park in Olvera,
valued for EUR 817 thousand.

- Additionally, arising from the stake of the Group in the company “Fotovoltaica el Gallo 10, S.L." (see Note
2.4), at 31 December 2014 leasing rights for a period of 25 years referred to the use of tand where the PV
plant is located are recorded for a total amount of EUR 3,293 thousand.

Further, during year 2014, the Group has recorded greenhouse gas emission issuance rights (CO2) of the company
"poligeneracin Parc de Alba ST-4, S.A." related to the aclivily during the year, amounling to EUR 15 thousand and
recorded under "Received granls®. -
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Additionally, as a result of new contracts with new clients during the year 2014, the Group company "Polygeneration
Parc de 'Alba ST-4, SA" registered as a higher cosl of the plani expenses incurred in pipes and adjustmenls made
to providing power supply 1o new customers in year 2014 amounting to a lotal of EUR 210 thousand.

In year 2014, this company proceeded to redemption againsl the Public Administration of the issuance rights
corresponding fo CO2 emissions for year 2013 amounting to EUR 100 thousand, being fargely provisioned under
"Short-term provisfons™ under current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group at 31 December
2013.

At 31 December 2014 there are no significant investment commitments i intangible assets.

As slated on Note 17.1, at 2014 year end the Group had many finance leasing operations in course. Breakdown at
31 December 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of
Euros
Term of contract (years) 8
Value in cash 4,340
Outstanding balances (Note 17.1)
Non-current 884
Current 714

Finance leasing agreements hold by the Company al year-end 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

- Thermal Power Installation at Puerto Real Hospital (Cadiz). The lease term commenced on 20 December 2005
with a total term of 114 months. Net value of the business activily branch amounls fo EUR 65 thousand. The rent
paid in 2014 amounted to EUR 757 thousand, which included a finance charge of EUR 8 thousand.

- Thermal Power Plant for Torrecardenas Hospilal (Almeria). The lease term commenced on 22 May 2008 with a
total term of 10 years. Net value of the business aclivity branch amounts to EUR 33 thousand. The renl paid in
2014 amounted to EUR 312 thousand, which included a finance charge of EUR 60 thousand.

Investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group's mosi significanl investments in associates at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Thousand of Euros

31/12/2014 | 31/12/2013

Desarrollo Urbanistico Chamartin, S.A. 21,667 2l.6l6
Panamerican Mall, S.A. 16,156 16,002
Pontegran, S.L. - 8,923

Antipua Rehabitalia, S.A. - -
Desarrollos Inmobiliarios Makalu, S.1.. (1) - -

Fingano, S.A. 1,148 543
Vengano, S.A. 631 67
Corporacidn San Bernat, S.L. (Corsabe) 2,803 4,204
Cresca, S.A. 8,999 3,391
Pinar de Villanueva, S.L. - 4,600
Kantega Desarroilos Inmobiliarios, S.A. - 3,790
Other 129 29
Total net 51,533 63,165
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The associate “Desarrollos Urbanisticos Chamartin, S.A.” has as main business aclivity the urban development of
the plot of land comprising the area of the "Extension of the Castellana” in Madrid. Said urban development has
been approved at the beginning of 2015. The company is currently modifying the project according to current market
conditions and building restriclions, whal leads {0 market value uncertainty. However, different polential future
scenarios contemplate the feasibility of the projecl, so that the Group does not have doubts regarding recovering the
investment made.

Changes in 2014 and 2013 in this item in the consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

Thousand of Euros

31/12/2014 | 31/12/2013

Qpening balance 63,165 69,455
Profit/(Loss) for the year (364) (1,041)
Changes in the scope of consolidation (Note 2.4) 860 -

Additions 4,493 96
Paid-up dividends - (1,150)
Exchange rate differences 1,219 (4,195)
Transfer as non-current assels held for sale (17,340) -

Closing balance 51,533 63,165

During year 2014 the investee “Cresca, S.A." has atlended a capital increase by means of contribution in kind by its
shareholders for a total amount of EUR 9,588 thousand.

During year 2014, no dividends have been received.

Dividends received in year 2013 correspond io those received by the company of the group “Centro Comercial
Panamericano, S.A.", for its stake in "Panamerican Mall, S.A.”

Appendix !l includes a list of the main ownership interests in associales, detailing name, counlry and participalion
percentage. Total aggregate for main items in the financial slatements at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Million of Euros
31/12/2014 | 31/12/2013

Total Assels 98.5 224.1
Total Liabilities 24.6 55.7
Nel Revenue 12.8 36.5
Profit/(L.oss) for the year 1.7 (20.1)

Nen current assets held for sale, liabilities linked to non current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations,

12.1. Disconfinued operations

On 30 December 2014 Grupe SANJOSE has entered into a modifying novalion agreement of the syndicated credil
facilities in Spain wilh a majority of creditor banking entilies of the Group, including a commilment to sale the stake
of the Group in the company “San José Desarroltos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.", what involves the loss of conlrol of lhis
company and its subsidiaries, and which shall be performed during the first semester of year 2015, for EUR 1 upon
satisfaclion of all the terms and conditions therein {(see Note 27).

The consolidated income statements includes separately the discontinued operations. The profit or loss arising from
the disinvestment of assels, as well as thaf from the operation of the business until ils effeclive sale shall be
recorded under "Nel profit/(loss) from disconlinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheel.

Next is enclosed the consolidaled balance sheef for discontinued operations:
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Translation info English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally isswed in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,

the Spanish langnage version prevails

Additionally, the item "Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations” for year 2014 includes EUR 18,962 thousand
corresponding to the negalive result of fair value of assels once deducled linked liabitities held for sale (see Nole

12.2).

Thousand of Euros

Year2014: | Year 2013:
Net Revenue 36,313 41,482
Other operaling income 3,583 8,636
Provisions and changes in inventories {22,276) (224,482)
Staff costs (1,174} (1,258)
Other operaling expense (12,096) (12,089)
Amortisation (8.565) (8,620)
Surplus of provisions 11 25
Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-
current assels (13,678) 9,999
Profit(Loss) from operations {17,882) (186,30
Financial profit/(loss) (48,556) (31,136
Profit/{Loss) form companies accounting for the
equity method (2,808) (12,721)
Profit/(Loss) before tax {69,240) (230,164)
Income tax income /{expense) (10,956) 66,566
Profit/(L.oss) for the year (80,202) (163,598)

The cash flow details for disconlinued operations are as follows:

Thousand of Euros
Year 2014: | Year 2013:
Cash flow for operaiing activities 26,591 49,017
Cash flow for investment activities 42,925 8,630
Cash fow for financing activities (67,895) (59,659
Total 1,621 {2,006)

12.2. Noncurrent assets held for sale and liabllities linked to noncurrent assets held for sale

At 31 December 2014 noncurrenl assets held for sale are those nef assets of the company "San José Desarrollos
Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.” and subsidiaries as a result of the agreement signed on 30 Dacember 2014 pursuant to which
Grupo SANJOSE assumed the commilment fo sale the company due to the assumption of the EUR 350 million debt
for EUR 1 (see Nolte 17.3).

Currently, verificalion processes set oul on the above menlioned contract are being performed in order to implement
the sale itself, being expected to be fully completed during the first half of 2015. Consequenily, said assets meel the
requirements sef out by accounling standards to be classified as noncurrent assels to be held for sale.

Within this item are recorded the assets of the real eslate division of the Group, as well as the liabililies linked to the
same. Activities developed by companies within the San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios Group refer mainly lo the
development of any type of real estate properly, devote o both sale and rental purposes.

Main assels, recorded under "Noncurrent assels held for sale" are located mainly in Spain and Porlugal and are as
follows:

- Investment properly; Substantially all of the Group's investment properly relates fo properties earmarked for
lease. During year 2014, no significant changes have been noled down under lhe same. Addilions refer
mainly to the preparation and implementation cosls of premises at shopping centres, as well as
improvement related incurred costs. Likewise, no significant withdrawals have been recorded. Those
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existent refer mainly to the sale of the urban development Poeta Uxio Novoneira by "Douro Atlantico,
S.L.U.", recording a profit of EUR 117 thousand.

- Invenlories: the real estale divisicn has also properties for sale, corresponding to plots of tand, building
under construction and completed buildings. Recorded decreases in 2014 correspond 1o sale costs of
handed over properly and mainly refer to: Estudio Marques de Monteagudo (Madrid), , Reserva de
Guadarrama (Madrid), Jardines de Zorrilla (Valladolid), Parquesur 2° Fase (Valladolid), Promocién
Camposoto (Cadiz), and Edificio Borneo (Madrid). The sale cost associaled to said derecognilions amounls
fo EUR 11 miilion. Furiher, at 31 December 2014, the real estate group records advances for land purchase
commilments amounting to EUR 5,234 thousand.

Likewise, main liabilities under "Liabililies linked to noncurrent assets held fr sale” are as follows:

- Syndicated financial liabilities: The Parent of the Real Eslate Group, as a result of the novalion of the
financing agreement has assumed a slrelch of the syndicated debt amounting to EUR 270 million (see Note
17.3). Further, and since at 31 December 2014, it records EUR 706 million for a former syndicated credit,
which, pursuant to he novation agreement, shall be capitalised during 2015.

- Bilaleral financial liabilities: The Real Estate Group has been granted several mortgage loans according to
which it has agreed to the acquisition of real estale assels, both to ils capilal and to sale. Consequently, it
has a morlgage loan over EUR 254 million. Most of this loans, amounting to EUR 211 million, have been
included within the above menlioned novation agreement with a 5-year bullet.

Al 31 December 2014, under “Noncurrent assets held for sale”, there are real estate assets amounling to EUR 457.3
million, which serve as collateral of the bilateral debt recorded under "liabilities linked to noncurrent assets held for
sale" amounting to EUR 254.3 million. Furlher, a net amount of EUR 867.4 million serve as collateral of the
syndicated credit loan under these liabilities.

"Noncurrent assets held for sale” and "Liabilities linked to noncurrent assets held for sale” at 31 December 2014 are
as follows:

Thousand of Euros
Investment properly 482,642
Intangible assels and properly, plant and 3,438
equipment
Other noncurrent assets 53,003
Deferred tax assels 115,410
Inventories 766,880
Receivables 8,237
Other current assets 62
Cash and cash equivalents 3,056
Total Asseis 1,432,728
Long-term bank borrowings 1,084,700
Other noncurrent liabilities 59,265
Deferred iax liabilitics 36,524
Short -term bank borrowings 192,587
Trade payables and other payables 9,262
Other current liabilities 50,390
Total Liabilities 1.432.728

“Other current liabifilies" include EUR 18,692 thousand which correspond to the provision recorded by the Group {o
record the fair value of assels held for sale once deducted the liabililies linked to the same (see Nole 12.1).

. _Inventories

The detail in the consolidated balance sheets al 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Thousand of Euros
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Acquired properly 10,625 17,538
Land and plots of land 33,782 884,835
Raw materials and other
supplies 3,513 2,936
Developiments under construciion
- Long-cycle developments under
construction 6,285 195,901
- Short-cycle developments under
construciion 6,150 6,070
Completed construction works 10,041 118,898
Advances to suppliers 18,460 40,875
Impairment losses on inventories (11,454) (402,829)
77,402 864,224

Borrowing cosis for financing the development of properly inventories incurred in the year are capitalised by the
Company only when they are associated wilh those inventories whose production cycle is longer than a year. During
year 2014, no costs have been recorded under the same. The amount capitalised in this way for 2013 has risen to
EUR 296 thousand.

During year 2014, and based upon the assessment of real eslate assels performed by the independent expert (see
Note 13.7), the Group has recorded a reversal for impairment for real eslale inventories for a total amount of EUR
955 thousand (see Notes 23.2 and 23.11), including in said amount the impairment of potential conlingencies arising
from the purchase commitment of land and plots of land.

13.1 Acquired property
Main changes recorded under this item correspond te deed of assignment in payment as colleclion of default rate.

Main acquired property is as follows:

e Car park spaces, commercial premises and housing units located in Legazpi, Madrid, and valued at EUR
2,116 thousand, acling as morlgage collateral for a mortgage loan pending EUR 1,185 thousand
amorlisation (see Note 17.2).

» Furlher, also under this item are recorded the housing units of Promdplis in Seville, amounting lo EUR
1,451 thousand.

e Car parking spaces and housing units in Puerto Llano, Ciudad Real, for a total value of EUR 1,286
thousand.

e Car park spaces and housing units in "Mairena de Aljarafe” (Seville), for a total value of EUR 1,093
thousand.

+  Car park spaces and slorage rooms in Manilva, Malaga, for a tolal value of EUR 1,039 thousand.
During year 2014, no significant changes have been noted down under the same.
13.2. Land and plots of land
This account balance corresponds to the acquisilion price of several plots of land in their final phase or under urban
management at 31 December 2014 basically for residenfial purposes (even though there are also institulional or

industrial plofs). The Group has planned to allocate them lo direct sale or property development by Group
companies.

At 31 December 2014, as a result of the classifications of the lands of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.” and
subsidiaries as assets held for sale (see Note 12), the Group does not hold lands as mortage collateral. In addition,
several assets recorded under this item at 31 December 2014 for EUR 652 thousand act as collateral for part of the
loan syndicated by the Group (see Nole 17.3) lor EUR 1,484 thousand.

At 2014 year-end the Group owned land wilh a lolal area of 1,342,544 m2, of which 81% amounling to 1,086,785 m2
are qualified as buildable land at 31 December 2014, The detail, by location, of the Group's land is as follows:
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Total m?
/1212014

Spain 312,408
The United States -
Poriugal 3,429
Argentina 1,011,501
Brazil 15,206

TOTAL 1,342,544

During year 2014, lhe Group has been provided wilh the Group company's "Constructora San Jose, S.A."
Portuguese properiies Porias de Lisboa * and "Quinta Do Moleao™ as payment by the Portuguese branch of the real
estate division “Douro Atlantico, S.A.” for its EUR 5 million debt.

13.3 Land purchase commitments

At 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into various memorandums of understanding or agreements with
purchase options for land totalling approximately EUR 2.4 million, of which the Group had paid EUR 651 thousand,
amount recognised under "Advance paymenls to suppliers” in the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet. Land
for which the Group has already made an advance payment is a plot of land in Vitoria, seclor 19, devoted to the
construction of 80 social housing units. Final purchase price shall depend upon final purpose of the same.

Regarding advances relales to commitment of sale of purchase, the Group does not have obligation of any type.

Remaining recorded payments in advance at 31 December 2014 are not related to real estate. Yet, they refer {o
paymenis in advance to suppliers for the acquisition of raw materials and other supplies.

13.4 Developments under construction

The balance of Lhis account at 31 December 2014 corresponds to costs incurred from the beginning in different
property developments under construction at said date.

The main element included under this item is the Feria Internacional del Pacifico, localed in Lima, Peru, started in
year 2008 by the Group company "San José Perd, S5.A.C.” (company registered in Peru}). Said urban development
consists of a tolal surface of 102 thousand m” which shall house over 3,000 homes. In year 2014 and 2013, 833 and
1,252 housing units have been compleled and delivered for a total amount of EUR 28,808 thousand and EUR
34,231 thousand.

Al 31 December 2014, the Group did nol have urban development under consfruclion acting as mortgage or
syndicated credit facililies collateral.

13.5 Completed construction works

The main property developmentls included under this item refer lo not sold items of the following property
developmenis:

- "111 housing unils in Larrein” localed in Viloria- Gasteiz properly of the Group company “Alexin XXI, S.L.U".
- "Promocion inmobiliaria Borinbizcarra” property of the company “Eraikunlza, Birgaikuniza Artapena, S.L.U.".

- Amounl of property pending sale regarding urban development comprising 62 housing unils in Marilurri®,
developmenl by "Erainkuniza Birgaikuntza Artapena, S.L.U.",

During year 2014, recorded decreases correspond to sale costs of handed over property and mainly refer to the
urban development in Larrein (Vitoria) for a total of EUR 232 thousand.

At 31 December 2014, certain real estale assels are recorded under “Completed Construction Work" in the
accompany consolidated balance sheet for a total net cost amounting fo EUR 8,191 thousand, which acl as
mortgage hedge for banking borrowings amounting to EUR 5,251 thousand (see Note 17.2).
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At 31 December 2014, the Group did not have urban development under construclion aciing as syndicaled credit
facilities collateral.

13.6 Commitments to sell property developments in progress and complefed buildings

At 31 December 2014, the Group had entered into private agreements and reservation documents for the sale of
properly developments eilher under consiruction, or completed at thal date, for a total amount of EUR 9,116
thousand, having received EUR 5,639 thousand at 2014 year-end as advances from the related customers (see
Note 19.3).

13.7 Impairment losses on inventories

Each year the Group commissions sludies from independent valuers to determine the fair value of its investment
properly at year-end. Al 31 December 2014 and 2013, said studies were conducted by "Institufo de Valoraciones,
S.A.". Such valuations were performed on the basis of the sale value and lease value of the properly on the market
(which consists of capitalising the net income from each properly and discounting future flows), as defined by (he
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and in accordance with the International Valuation Standards (IVS)
published by the International Valuation Standards Commiltee (IVSC), which group logether international and
European asset valuation instilutions.

The comparison method (for finished products) and the slatic and dynamic residual method (basically for plots of
land and developments under conslruction) were used fo calculate the fair value. Under the Residual Method, the
residual value of property is oblained by discounting the cash flows calculated on the basis of projecled expenses
and income at the established rale by taking into accounl the period until these flows are realised. The total cash
receipts deemed 10 have been received prior to the valuation dale are added to this amount in order to obtain the
total value. The discount rate used is thal which represents the average annual return on the project, withoul taking
borrowings into account, that an average developer would oblain from a development similar to that analysed.

This discount rate is calculated by adding the risk premium {determined by evaluating the risk of the development,
taking inlo account the properly assel to be constructed, its localion, liquidily, construction period and invesiment
required} fo the risk-free interest rale. When the determination of the cash flows takes into account borrowings, the
aforementioned risk premium is increased in proporlion to the percentage of the borrowings (degree of leverage)
allributed to the project and the habifiual interest rates in the mortgage market,

Al 31 December 2014, the fair value of the Company's inventories based on the aforementioned study amounted fo
EUR 159.9 million,

13.8 Insurance policy

The Group lakes out insurance policies lo cover the possible risks o which subslantially all its inventories are
subject. The Parent's Direclors consider insurance coverage arranged to be sufficient.

.__Financlal Assets

14.1 Trade receivables and customer advances

This itemn of the accompanying consolidated balance sheel includes the present value of uncollecled revenue,
measured as indicated in Note 4.8, contributed by the Group's various lines of business and which form the basis of
the profit or loss from operations.

The detail of "Trade receivables for sales and services" at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Thousand of Euros

3171272044 | 31/§2/2013
Progress billings receivable and (rade receivables for sales 181,239 241,022
Amounts to be billed for works performed 41,099 54,099
Retentions 7,122 9,684
Customers, discounted instruments 16,625 6,227
Impairment (Note 23.10) (28,248) (28,660)
Total 217,837 282,372
Advances (Note 19.3) (136,300} | (118,074)
Total net accounis receivable 86,537 164,298

Group management considers that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates lheir fair value.

"Amounts to be billed for work performed” includes the work performed during the year but nol yet billed to
customers, which is recognised as period revenue in accordance with the method of recognition of revenue for
completed construclion work (completion of the works), based on the percentage of completion method used by the
Group detailed in Note 4.12, The current liabiliies "Advances” item from the consolidated balance sheet at 31
December 2014 and 2013 include EUR 110,028 thousand and EUR 66,678 thousand corresponding to “Amounts to
be billed for work performed", which is recognised as the Group's lowest period revenue in accordance with the
method of recognition of revenue based on the percentage of completion method.

In some cases, Group companies sell lrade receivables to banks, withoul the possibility of recourse against them in
the event of default. The receivables sold at year-end, which were deducted from the balance of accounts
receivable, lolalled EUR 1,665 thousand and EUR 9,720 thousand at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respeclively.
This amount is fully derived from investments from Constructora San Jose, S.A. in joint ventures {see Appendix ill),
These fransaclions bear interest at normal market rates. Group companies conlinte to manage collection.

Substantially all the risks (bad debts and lale payment) and rewards associated with the receivables, as well as
conlrol over the receivables, were transferred through the sale of the receivables, since no repurchase agreements
have been entered into between the Group companies and the banks that have acquired the assels, and the banks
may freely dispose of the acquired assels without the Group companies being able to limit this righi in any way.
Consequenlly, the balances receivable relating to the receivables sold under the aforemenlioned conditions were
derecognised.

The Group does not have a significant concentralion of credil risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

Breakdown of frade receivables from Public Sector Customer and Private Sector Customers at 31 December 2044
and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
3141222014 | 31/12/2013

Public Sector Customers 106,354 119,126
Privaie Sector Customers 111,483 163,246

217,837 282,372

A high percenfage of trade receivables relale to transactions with Public Entities and, mainly, with the State Central
Authorily. Therelore, the Company considers credit risk is very low. Regarding privale seclor customers, the
Company has strengthen during the last years the risk policy procedure from contracling {valualion and rating of
potential customers, payment requirements, etc.) till regular revision and analysis of {he global position and
individual analysis of most customers. From this analysis late payment and default rate provision is established..

Average collection period for trade receivables is approximately 168 and 174 days for years 2014 and 2013 and no
significant changes have been experimenled during the same. .
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14.2 Cash and cash equivalents

"Cash and Cash Equivalents" includes the Group's cash and short-lerm deposits with an original maturily of three
months or less. The carrying value of these assets is its fair value (there are no limitations, apart from those arising
from syndicated credit facililies of the Group - see Note 17.3).

Breakdown at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
3171272014 | 31/12/2013
Other cash equivalents 126,241 53,469
Cash 285 286
Banks and credit entities 76,734 105,826
Total cash and cash equivalents 203,260 159,581

Out of the total balance of this item, EUR 23,575 thousand and EUR 17,738 thousand correspond to joint ventures
(see Annexure [ll) for year 2014 and 2013, respectively.

14.3 Current financial liabilities

"Other cuirent financial assets" includes deposits at banks, shorl-term deposilts and other receivables maturing in
over three months. "Olher current financial assets" includes deposils at banks, short-term deposils and olher
receivables maluring in over three months. At 31 December 201e, it mainly includes amounts arising from short-term
loans amounting to EUR 8,347 thousand.

Further, it includes short-term payments to be collected from the Ministry of Public Works of Chile, for the certificates
issued by the Group company "Sociedad Concesionaria San Jose-Tecnocontrol, S.A", for a tolal value of EUR
36,524 thousand, for the 2015 payment for the execution works of the Hospilals of Maipu and La Florida, in Santiago
de Chile,

14.4 Non-current financial assets and loans to related companies

The detail of "Loans fo related companies” and "Other financial assels" in the accompanying consolidaled balance
sheet at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
Other financial
assels, with
changes in Loans to Invesiments
income statement related available for | Invesiment

(Note 11) companies sale until maturity | Impainment Total
Balance at 31 December 2012 69,455 40,616 9,195 120,665 (16,475) 223,456
Entries or provisions 96 2,842 - 79,219 (1,148) 81,009
Translation differences (4,195) (220) (164} (14,402) 2,698 (16,283)
Disposals, withdrawals or redundancies (2,191) - - (952) 3,000 (143}
Balance at 31 December 2013 63,165 43,238 9,031 184,530 (11,925) 288,039
Discontinued operations (Note 12) {17,340) (37,287) (35) (1,771) 35 (56,398)
Entries or provisions 5,353 2,892 - 29,444 (6,280} 31,409
Transflers - - - (30,669) - {30,669)
Translalion differences 1,219 (824) 48 (1,107) 140 (524)
Disposals, withdrawals or redundancies (864) - - - - (864)
Balance at 31 December 2014 51,533 8,019 9,044 180,427 (18,030) 230,993

14.4.1 Investmenls available for sale

The financial assets presented above basically represent invesiments in equity securities of unlisted enlities. These
ownership interesls are stated at the underlying carrying amount. From total impairment recorded above, EUR 5,344
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thousand and EUR 4,182 thousand refer to invesimeni available for sale al 31 December 2014 and 2013,
respectively (see Note 23.12),

Net cost at which interest ownership of the Group is recorded, by associate, at 31 December 2014 and 2013, is as

follows:
Thousand of Buros

Company 31/§2/2014 | 31/12/2013

Bodegas Altanza, S.A. 994 994

Unirisco 8.C.R., §.A. 407 407

Filmanova, S.A. 37 37

Editorial Ecoprensa, S.A. 1,564 2,966

Other 698 445

3,700 4,849

13.4.2 Loans and receivables

"Loans and Receivables” includes mainly parlicipaling loans granted to the associale Cresca S.A. for EUR 8,019
thousand which do not earn interest income because, being participaling loans, they are linked to the profit oblained
by the associate.

14.4.3. Other investments

This item includes mainly loans and receivables due 1o certificalions issued by "Sociedad Concesionaria San José-
Tecnoconlrol, S.A.% for a total amount of EUR 164,666 thousand and EUR 169,263 thousand at 31 December 2014
and 2013, respectively, as payment of the execution works of the Hospitals of Maipu and La Florida, in compliance
with IFRIC12 (see Note 2.1) for concessions with no demand risk. Said amount is arranged into eight equal
instalments, with annual malurity, discounting the financial effect of the deferred payment. The first instalment has
been received al 31 December 2014,

The Group has recorded a provision for potential contingencies associated to the development of the concession
confract for EUR 7,602 thousand and EUR 7,744 thousand at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respeclively.

On 10 and 15 November 2013, certifications for the implementation of Ei Carmen Hospital and La Florida Hospilal in
Santiago de Chile, opened on 7 and 28 December 2013 and wilh a total buill surface of nearly 70 thousand sqm
each, were received. Further, on 13 February 2015, final implementation certificates have been received.

The company "Sociedad Concesionaria San José-Tecnocontrol, S.A." executed the design and construction of both
hospilals and is responsible for their operalion and maintenance under concession regime for a period of 15 years.

The payment of the Chilean Minisiry of Public Works is arranged into 8 annual instalments of UF 1.1 million each,
having collected the first instalment on 31 March 2014. The Group records said amount deducting the financial effect
of the deferred payment. During year 2014, finance income arising from the update of said items amounting to EUR
13,290 thousand was recorded (see Note 23.7).

15.  Net equity:

15.1 Share capital

Al 31 December 2014 and 2013, share capitaf of the Parent was represenled by 65,026,083 shares of EUR 0.03 par
value each.

At 20 July 2009, Parent Company shares can be listed on the Continuous Market, with a market value of EUR 12.86
per share. The closing and mean quole for the last quarter of 2014 and 2013 has been EUR 0.82 and EUR 0.78 for
year 2014 and EUR 1.20 and 1.30 for year 2013, respectively.

Al 31 December 2013, the Group holds an ownership interest of 10% of the company's share capital. Mr. Jacinto
Rey Gonzalez, with direct and effective ownership interest of 24.95% and 48.32%, respeclively,.
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On 30 December 2014, the Group has entered into wilh a majority of the creditor banking entilies a novation
agreement of its syndicaled credit loan in Spain, pursuant to which it commiils 1o issue Warrants for 35% of its social
capilal, whose execulion shall depend on the level of performance of the Group of the ameriisation of lhe
participating loan granted as on said date, for a total amount of EUR 100 million (see Note 17.3).

15.2 Issuance rights

The Consolidated Spanish Companies Law expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to
increase the capilal of the entities al which it is recognised and does not eslablish any specific restriclions as to ils
use.

15.3 Legal reserve

Under the Consolidated Spanish Companies Act, 10% of net profit for each year must be fransferred to the legal
reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital.

The legal reserve can be used fo increase capital provided thal the remaining reserve balance does not fall below
10% of the increased share capital amounit.

Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capilal, it can only be used lo offset losses, provided that
sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose..

In addition, and in compliance with the terms set forth in arlicle 273.4 of the Spanish Companies Act and wording of
Law 16/2007 of 4 July, on the reform and adjuslment of business law, the obligation fo provide a restricted reserve
equal to 5% of the goodwill registered at year end, with charge to the profit or loss of the year if any, and otherwise
with charge lo unrestricled reserves.

15.4 Restrictions on the distribution of dividends

There are no significant restrictions on the distribution of dividends, apari from those established for the Group's
syndicated banking funding syslem (see Note 17.3).

15.5 Consolidated reserves

Breakdown of "Reserves” within the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
31/1222014 3171272013
Reserves of the Parent (85,769) 0,892
Consolidation reserves
-From consolidated companies 78.478 136,576
-From companies considered equivalent (48,048) (36,579}
TOTAL {55,339} 106,889

The breakdown, by company, of the balance of "Consolidated reserves" in the consolidated balance sheets, after
taking into account the effect of consolidation adjustments, is as follows:
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Net profit/{loss) for the year aftributable to the Parent by Subsidiaries

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013
Profit/ (Loss) for Profit/ (Loss)
Reserves the year Reserves for the year

Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. 129,890 (18,010) 131,830 778
SJB Miillroser {5,795) (6) (5,393) (385)
Construction subgroup 199,208 (7,137) 197,904 2,284
Trade subgroup 9,526 385 9,398 140
Udra Medios subgroup {11,220) (1,044) (9,845) (1,374)
Subgrupo San Josroupp Josarear atiributable (371,045) (93,521) (221,968) (145,889)
Urban Developments subgroup 42,173 771 40,528 1,323
San Josevelopments subgroupear atsubgroup 1,348 656 1,062 351
San Jose EnergsevelopmentAmbiente (3,043) (1,185) (1,978) (736)
subgroup
Cadena de Tiendas, S.A.U. 1,667 99) 1,667 -

(7,291) (119,190) 143,205 (143,508)

Net profit/{loss) for the year and reserves alfribulable to the Parent by Subsidiaries

The breakdown, by company, of the balance of this account in

the consolidated balance sheets, after taking into

account lhe effect of the valuation adjustments, and of the translation differences recognised in equily as a result of

the valuation process, is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013
Profit/ Profit/
(Loss) for (Loss) for
Company Reserves the year Reserves the year
Desarrollo Urbanistico Chamartln, S.A. 178 (214) (251} (316)
Panamerian Mall, S.A. 2,894 1,607 1,542 1,924
Pontegran, S.1. (339) - 133 (523)
Finar de Villanueva, S.L. (5,454) - (4,572) (1,226)
Antigua Rehabitalia, S.A. (38,763) - (29,380) (9.383)
Makalu Desarrollos Inmobsiliarios, S.1.. (6,612) - (5,829) (1,309}
Corsabe, S.L. - (1,401) 587 (588)
Cresca, S.A. - (572) 1,855 -
Kantega Desarrotlos Inmobiliarios, S.A. - - {680) (859)
Other 98 (284) 16 546
(48,048) (864) (36,579) (11,734)

15.6 Valuation adjustments

"Valuation adjustments” in the consolidated balance sheet i
certain derivative instrumentls (see Notes 4.9, 4,11 and 18) du

15.7 Shares of the Parent

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not hold any treasury shares.

In year 2014, no {ransactions with treasury shares took place.

ncludes the net amount of fair value adjusiments of
e to the application of IAS 32 and 39.
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15.8 Minority interests

The detail, by consolidated company, of "Minority Interests” and "Profit (Loss) Altributable to Minority Interesis” is as

follows:
Thousand of Euros
Total | Prefit/ (Loss) for the year
Minorities attributed

Company Interests to minority
Construction subgroup 22,042 (2,182)
San Josoé Desarrollos Inmobiliarios subgroup 987 (182)
Comercial Udra subgroup (142) (138}
Udra Medios subgroup (158) 29)
San Josd Concesiones y Servicios subgroup - -
San Josiones y a y Medio Ambiente subgroup 1,573 (97)

24,302 (2,628)

Breakdown of this item for years 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros

2014

2013

Opening balance

15,299 20,635

Changes in the scope of consolidation (Note 2.4)
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Exchange rate differences

7,602 (825)
(2,628) (3.340)
3,983 (1,309)

Dividends (2,902)
Adjustments attributable to minority interests and other 2,948 138
Closing balance 24,302 15,299

15.9 Capital management

The Group's capital management focuses on achieving a financial structure that optimises the cost of capital while
maintaining a solid financial position. This policy reconciles the creation of value for the shareholder with access fo
financial markels at a compelilive cost in order to cover both debt refinancing requirements and investment plan

financing needs nol covered by the funds generated by the business.

The Direclors of the Parent consider that evidence of fulfilment of the capital management targets set is provided by
the fact that the gearing ralio is around 150-200%, taken lo be the result of dividing net financial debl by equity

(corrected based on impairment of property assels).

Al 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group was achieving this parameter, as shown below:

Thousand of Euros
31/12/2014 3171212013
Non-current bank borrowings and other financial liabilities (Note 17) 477,699 230,531
Current bank borrowings and other financial liabilities (Note 17) 77,972 1,595,512
Cash and cash equivalents (Note i4.2) (203,260) (159,581)
Total Net 352411 1,666,462
Amended net equity: 309,720 416,743
Financial debt (%) 114% 399%
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15.10 Eguity of the Parent

According to Arlicle 363 of the Companies Acl {LSC), companies musl be dissolved whenever losses have reduced
its equily to less than the half, except whether lhe same is increased or is reduced to a sufficient extent, and
provided it is not precedent to request the bankruplcy declaralion. As stated in Article 36 of the Commercial Code,
net equily for such purposes is the amount that qualifies as such in the financial statements, plus the amount of the
non required subscribed capital, as well as the nominal amount and issuance premiums or the assumplion of the
subscribed capital that is accounted as liabilities. Likewise, adjustments due to changes in cash flow hedges shall
not be classified as net equity.

On the other hand, according to arlicle 20 of Royal Decree 7/1996, as of 7 June, parlicipating loans qualify as net
ecuity for capital decrease and setllement of companies pursuant o trade regulalions.

On 30 December 2014 the Group has entered into the modifying novalion agreement of the syndicated credit
facilities, as well as bilateral liabilities with a large majorily of its financial creditors. Pursuant to this agreement, three
separate financing agreements have been assumed (see Note 17.3), and the amorlisalion calendar has been
amended, being adapted to the cash flow of the Group. Said agreement includes certain resolutory terms and
conditions.

On 11 May 2015 legal approval was granted as from 13 February 2015 by the Trade Court No 2 of Pontevedra (see
Note 17.3). Thus, the Group SANJOSE complies with the main preliminary condition set out in the novalion
agreement.

The Directors of the Company consider thal the remaining outslanding conditions will be fulfilled in the short term,
wilhin the deadline established by the novation agreement and in compliance with the terms and conditions sei oul
therein since most conditions depend on decisions of the Group, reason for which these financial slatements are
drafted as a running company.

At 31 December 2014, the parent records a negalive nel equity amounling to EUR 33,7 miillion. However, it is not in
the situation of asset imbalance pursuant to arl. 327 of the Companies Act to the extenl that it records an equity loan
amounting to EUR 100,000 thousand (see Mote 17.3), received from creditor financial institutions in order to
slrengthen its financial position.

Non-current provisions

Breakdown of this item in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for years 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros

|IBalance at 31 December 2012 44,725
Provisions 16,134
Applications {1,198)
Reversals (452)
Reclassifications and other (422)
Balance at 31 December 2013 58,787
Reclassifications held-for-trading (45,805)
Provisions 8,191
Applications (30)
Reversals (88)
Reclassifications and other (256)
Balance at 31 December 2014 20,799

Further, at 31 December 2014"Long-Term Provisions" includes the provisions for urban development work
recognised by the Group's properly development companies (see Note 4.17.1) and the balance of the provisions for
litigation.

The Directors of the Parent consider thal the probability of an outcome of liligalion and claims o occur are
insignificant fo juslify lhe registration of addilional provisions. The Directors of the Parent consider Lhat the probabilily
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of an outcome of litigation and claims to occur are insignificant 1o justify the registration of additional provisions. The
directors of the different companies within Grupo SANJOSE consider that present provisions are enough lo deal with
the current processes of liligation and claims or will nol have a material effect on the consolidated financial

statements.

Bank borrowinas and debt instruments and other marketable securities

The breakdown of said items in the consolidated balance sheets is as follows:

Year 2014:
Thousand of Euros
Derivative
Debts and financial
accoun(s payable instruments Total

Non-current financial liabilities:
Bank borrowings (Note 17.1) 473,386 - 473,386
Derivatives (Note 18) - 31,697 31,697
Other Financial Liabilities 4,313 - 4,313

Total non-current 477,699 31,697 509,396
Current Financial Liabilities
Bank botrowings (Note 17.1) 76,364 - 76,364
Other Financial Liabilities 1,608 - 1,608

Total current 77,972 - 77,972
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
Derivative
Debts and financial
accounts payable | instruments Total

Current Financial Liabilities
Bank borrowings 222,320 . 222,320
Derivative financial instruments - 30,137 30,137
Other Financial Liabilities 8,211 - 8,211

Total non-current 230,531 30,137 260,668
Current Financial Liabilities
Bank borrowings 1,592,246 - 1,592,246
Derivative financial instruments - 75 75
Other Financial Liabilities 3,266 - 3,266

Total current 1,595,512 75 1,595,587

"Other current financial liabiiities" and "Other non-current financial liabilities" include mainly EUR 197 thousand and
EUR 50 thousand, respeclively, in relation to long term borrowings with associates. Likewise, lhe non-current portion
includes the balance of current accounts with shareholders accruing market interest rate tied to Euribor and with no

defined malurity.
17.1 Bank borrowings

The breakdown of said items in the consolidated balance sheets is as follows:
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Thousand of Euros
31/12/2014 31/12/2013

Non-current:
Finance leasing (Notes 7 and 10) 884 1,605
Bank loans and credit facilities 9,795 89,272
Syndicated credit facilities(Spain) (see Note 17.3) 350,000 -
Syndicated credil facilities (Chile) (Note 17.3) 112,707 131,443

Tatal non-current 473,386 222,320
Current: .
Finance leasing (Notes 7 and 10) 723 1,124
Syndicated credit facilities(Spain) (see Note 17.3) - 1,311,805
Syndicated credit facilities{Chile) (see Note 17.3) 16,836 16,745
Payables from discounted notes and bills 16,014 46,797
Bank loans and credit facilities 36,355 30,917
Mortgage loans secured by inventories (Note 13
and 17.2) 6,436 184,858

Total current 76,364 1,592,246

TOTAL 549,750 1,814,566

All these loans bear interest at a rate lied to EURIBOR plus a markel spread.
Bank loans and credit facilities™ from non-current liabilities includes at 31 December 2014 the following:

+« A balance for EUR 8,444 thousand corresponding to Project finance, granted for the construction,
commissioning and operation of the Plant and the facilities of lhe Group company Poligeneraci Parc de
LAlba ST-4, S.A's Policy Project {see Noles 10 and 2.6). Said plant acls as collateral for credit
facilities.

“Bank loans and credit facilities" from currenl liabililies of the altached consolidated balance sheet al 31 December
2014 and 2013 includes EUR 6,036 thousand and EUR 8,023 thousand, respeclively, for linancial expenses pending
seftlement at year-end close.

17.2 Mortgage loans

The Group provides as collateral for mortgage loans real estale assets for a tolal nel cost amounting to EUR 10,372
thousand.

Morlgage loans secured by investment properly

As a consequence of the classilicalion of the real estale division as noncurrent assel held for sale (see Nole 12), the
Group did not have morlgage loans secured by investment property at 31 December 2014.

Morigage loans secuired by inveniories

As indicated in Note 4.19, all the bank borrowings associated wilh "Inventories” (regardless of the malurily lhereof)
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet under "Current Liabilities". The detail, by effective malurity, of the
mortgage loans secured by inventories at 31 December 2014 is as follows:
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Thousand of Euros

Maturity
Short- Short-
ferm terin Total

Mortgage loans secured by urban developments
under construction
Of the Parent - - -
Of Subsidiaries - - -
Mortgage loans secured by completely executed
buildings:
Of the Parent - - -
Of Subsidiaries 131 6,305 6,436

131 6,305 6,436
Mortgage loans secured by lands and plots of land:
Of the Parent - - -
Of Subsidiaries - - -
Total mortgage loans secured by inventories (Note
13) 131 6,305 6,436

These mortgage loans bear annual floaling interest at a market rate, which in 2014 ranged from 3% to 3.56%.

The outstanding principal of these loans al 31 December 2014 malures approximalely as follows:

Thousand of Euros
Year Year Year Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 and TOTAL
following
131 203 210 5,892 6,436

17.3 Syndicated credit facllitics
Syndicated credif facillties In Spaln

The SANJOSE Group concluded in year 2009 the renegoliation of lhe bank borrowings for a tatal amount of EUR
2,210 million in order to adapt the relaled obligalions to the new business plan based on the global economic
situation and taking into consideration cash requirements set oul on Business Plan for 2009-2013, under a
framework of stability

On 30 December 2014, Group SANJOSE and its main subsidiaries have entered into modifying novation
agreements for ils financial debt with a large majorily of ils creditor banks, which represent a percentage greater
than 75% of the financial liabililies and 80% of collaterals affecled by such agreements.

Said agreements have involved the novation of the syndicated credit agreement signed in April 2009, as well as a
series of bilateral funding agreements. The terms and conditions of the new financing are detailed pursuant to lhe
following (hree separate financing agreements:

a) Contract "Constructora San José, S. A"

Syndicated credit contract assumed by "Constructora San José, S.A." and arranged into the following stretches:
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b}

Stretch A: for a total amount of EUR 250 million and having a malurily of five years, renewable for another
year {provided certain terms are salisfied), wilh a progressive payment schedule;

Thousand of Euros
Year Year Year Year Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL
- - 23,100 20,700 206,200 250,000

A set of working capilal credit facilities: a set of working capital credit facilities, including discounts, confirming
and guarantees, available to Conslructora San José, S.A and
companies within ifs scope of consolidation:

= Trade and financial discount franche amounting to EUR 49 million.
=  Confirming strelch amounting to EUR 28.8 miilion.
«  Tender and performance guarantees amouniing to EUR 241.4 million.

»  Financial bank guaraniees amounting 1o EUR 98 million for recurrent financial bank guarantees
and USD 8 million for non-recurrent financial bank guarantees.

»  Strelch B: an additional funding credit facility for the execution of guaraniees amounting fo
EUR 10 million.

As a consequence of the debl, "Conslructora San José, S.A.° is released from the sole guarantees granled lo
financial creditors of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.". Likewise, it is subject to the fulfilment of
compulsory minimum financial ratios regarding EB{TDA and the debl stalus as from 31 December 2015.

Contract "Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A."

Pursuant to the modifying novation agreement of the debt of Grupo SANJOSE, the Company assumed a EUR
100 million parlicipaling loan wilh a 5-year bullet malurily, while being released from the guarantees granted
pursuant to the previous financing agreement,

Early repayment of the amount of this agreement includes certain descending repayment charges or discounts
of nominal value according to early repayment instaiments.

The part of this contract not attended at maturily shall be converted into shares of Grupo SANJOSE with a limit of
35% of tolal social capilal of the company. This conversion shall be instrumenled by means of warranls which
the Board of Direclors of Grupo SANJOSE shall submit to the Shareholders General Meeting for final approval.
Said warranls enlille holders the righl to subscribe newly issued shares of Grupo SANJOSE by offselling credil
claims which were pending repayment at maturity date (including capilalised interest). Conversion shall take
place at markel price of shares of Grupo SANJOSE by reference {o the weighled average price of the previous
20 sessions prior to the maturily dale.

Warrants will not be listed on any secondary markets and shall only be iransferable with debt of Grupo
SANJOSE.

The commilment of the issuance of the warranls has been formalized in an agreement that reflecls the conditions
and terms for issuance and the rules for their eventual conversion into shares of Grupo San José.

Additionally, in the context of the financial restructuring operalion, and by agreement between the parties, lhe
Parenl Company acquired an obligalion to pay its subsidiary "Conslruclora San José, SA" EUR 75 million, in
refurn for a right of recovery for "San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, SAU", which was contribuled at closing date
as an increase in equily of the investee. The agreement also provides for the repayment of the loan by delivering
stakes in the Company "Developments Urbanisticos Udra, S, A, U," whose fair value, determined by an
independent expert, is much higher than that recorded under the books by the Company.
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¢) San Jose Desarrolios Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.

Synduicated credit faciliies amounting to EUR 270 million with maturity within 5 years and wilth a progressive
amortisalion Schedule assumed by "San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, 5.A." as deblor.

The remaining debt under the financing agreement signed in 2009 not included in any of the three agreements
described above (i.e. approximately EUR 741 miillion}, will be cancelled by capitalising such debt in "San José
Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A."

Prior to the capitalization, Grupo San José shall transmit to the lenders of “San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios,
S.A" all the shares of “San José Desarrollos Inmohiliarios, S.A." which it holds, al a 1 EUR price.

Due to the commilment to sale of the Group of its stake in "San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A." and
pursuant to IFRS 5, assets and liabilities of the Group provided by this company and its subsidiaries shall be
classified as noncurrent assets held for sale and disconlinues operaiions (see Nole 12).

The modifying novation agreement is subject to sundry conditions which require courl approval in accordance with
the provisions of Addilional Fourth Provision of the Bankruplcy Act, obtaining vatious cerlificates and supplemenlary
reports, renewal and cancellation of certain personal and real guaranlees and the granting of new collaterals and the
issuance of warrants, the deadline for compliance exlends from January to June 2015 approximately.

On 11 May 2015 fegal approval was granted as from 13 February 2015 by the Trade Courl No 2 of Ponlevedra.
Thus, the Group SANJOSE complies wilh the main preliminary condilion set out in the novalion agreement.

The Direclors of the Company consider that the remaining outstanding conditions will be fulfilled in the shorl term,
within the deadline established by the novalion agreement and in compliance wilh the terms and conditions set out
therein.

Although reference to Group assets that guaranlee syndicated debt as a result of novation agreement is discussed
in Notes 7, 8 and 13, the companies alien the Real Estate Division Group are released from the guarantees provided
within the framework of the syndicated loan of 2009, being only borne by new sections of syndicaled debt assumed
by them. During 2015 and in the normal course of the terms of the refinancing agreement, those guarantees shall be
formally released.

Syndicated credit facilities in Chile

Al 10 February 2011, the group company "Concesionaria San Jos-Tecnoconfrol 8.A." entered inlo a syndicated
credit funding agreement in Chilean pesos with a total of eight banking entities, acting "Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, Chile" as leader arranger, for a total amount of EUR 185 million.

Object of said funding agreement is the execulion under concession regime of a health care project in Chile
"Programa de Concesiones en Infraesfruclura Hospilalaria, Hospital de Maip, Hospital de la Florida", awarded 1o
Grupo SANJOSE by lhe Ministry of Public Works of Chite. Loan shall be provided as works lake place. At 31
December 2014, the amount available amounts o EUR 129,543 thousand. The group keeps EUR 174 thousand as
bank deposit limited lo technical advance of the project (see Note 14.2).

Syndicaled loan amortisation shall be executed in eighl annual paymenis due as of 30 June from 2014 to 2021. The
outstanding principal of these loans at 31 December 2014 matures approximately as follows:

Thousands of Euros (*)
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017 Year 2018 Outstandin Total
16,836 17,630 18,347 19,064 57,665 129,543

(*) Gross amounts prior lo deducing borrowing costs, amounting to EUR 3,262 thousand at 31 December 2014.

Such repayment schedule will be modified as a resull of the operation of bonds issued in Chile by the Group
company “Concesionaria San José-Tecnoconirol S.A." on 24 March 2015 (see Note 27)
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group contracts OTC derivative financial instruments with naliona! and international high credit rating banks.

To determine the fair value of inlerest rate derivatives (Fixed Rate Swaps or struclures with options}, the Group uses
cash flow discounis based on assumplions established by the Euro interest rale curve according io market

condilions at the date of measurement.

At 31 December 2014, derivative financial instruments of Grupo SANJOSE are mainly Interest Rate Swaps and

CIOSs-CUImency swaps.

For determining the fair value of interest rate derivalives and currency swaps, the Group applies an assessment
method based on the discount of flows under implicii forward curve rates.

Interest rate derivalives contracied by the Group and effective at 31 December 2014 and 2013, together with their

fair values at said date, are the following:

Year 2014;
Thousand of Euros
L. Balance at
Remaining | 31 93 2014
Financial Initial par par value at
Company Instrum. Maturity value 31.12.2014 (Nole 17.1)
Efficlent Hedges:
Sociedad Concesionaria San José — Tecnoconlrol, S.A CCSuf 30/06/2021 169,621 133,222 -11,634
Comeicial Udra subgroup CCS-usd 10712013 771 7714 109
Poligeneracioé Parc de I'‘Alba, S.A. Swap 1511212021 15,451 9,138 -1,529
Sociedad Concesionaria San José — Tecnocontrol, S.A. Swap 30/06/2021 163,470 133,222 -18,534
TOTAL 349,316 276,356 -31,588
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
Financial Initial par Dalance at
Company Instrum. Malurity value 31.12.2013
Efficlent Hedges:
Sociedad Concesionaria San José - Tecnoconlrol, S.A CCS-uf 30/06/2021 169,621 -13,256
Comercial Udra subgroup CCS-usd Year 2014 774 -75
Poligeneracid Pare de I'Alba, S.A. Swap 15/12120214 15,451 -1,528
Sociedad Concesionaria San José — Tecnoconlrol, S.A. Swap 30/06/20214 163,470 -6,797
349,316 .21,656
Non-efficlent hedges:
SJ D.nmob., S.A. Swap 31/10/2019 9,676 -369
SJ D.amob., S.A. Swap 3110712023 10,000 =737
SJ D.lnmob., S.A. Swap AtN2R2023 25,000 -1,9M
SJ D.Inmob., S.A, Swap 27172024 10,000 474
SJ D.Inmob., S.A. Swap 9/10/2017 20,000 -1,051
SJ D.Inmob., S.A. Swap 19/01/2023 20,098 -1,324
SJ D.nmob., S.A. Swap 20/03/2024 25,000 -2,627
119,774 -§8,529
TOTAL 469,090 -30,212
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Assets and liabililies as hedge financial instruments include the changes in the measurement of fair value of hedge
financial instruments. At 31 December 2013, instruments hold by the Group companies "Sociedad Concesionaria
San José-Tecnocontrol, S.A." and “Poligeneracié Parc De L'Alba, 5.A. (ST4)" are Interest Rate Swaps and cross-
currency swaps linked to assels and liabililies of the consolidated balance sheet, as well as to potential fransactions
in compliance with requirements established by IAS 39 so as to be classified as hedge accounling.

Assets and liabilities as non hedge financial instruments include the measurement of fair value of non hedge
financial instruments. At 31 December 2013, instruments hold by the Group company “San José Desarrollos
Inmobiliarios, $.A." are Interest Rate Swap which are nol qualified as hedge accounting for not being linked fo hedge
financial instruments.

The Group records as equily the change in fair value of hedge accounting financial instruments. At 31 December
2014 and 2013 the change in fair value of Derivalive Financial Instruments allocated as Hedge Elements for their
effeclive portion accumutated in Equity amounts to EUR 24,385 thousand and EUR 20,533 thousand, respectively

During 2014 and 2013, EUR 5,440 thousand and EUR 2,222 thousand before tax have been recycled from Equily to
Interests costs as financial liabilities' interests being hedged pursuant to allocated Hedging Relalionships were
registered.

Measurement of efficiency of financial instruments

According to IAS 39, the Group has decided to adopl hedge accounting policy. Therefore, certain formal
requirements shall be implemented and tests shall be carried put in order to ensure the efficiency of hedge
accounling relationships. A hedging relationship is considered efficient as long as efficiency ratios reach 80-125%
(applicalion guide 105 of IAS 39) and meet the previous drafling requirements.

Effecliveness of financial instruments is measured according to the hypothetical derivative methed. Hypolheticai
derivative method, risks are identified as derivalives with the same features as the risk.

This method consists of comparing the changes in fair value or cash flows of the derivative acting as collateral with
the changes in fair value or cash fiows of the hypothetical derivative. The hypothetical derivative method is described
as "Method 8" at seclion F5.5. of lhe Implementalion Guide of IAS 39. A retrospective effecliveness test and a
prospeclive test shall be executed in order lo delermine whether the hedging relalionships shall be effeclive in the
future.

At the date of issue of the financial statemenls, the hypothetical derivative and the real derivative shall be measured
using the same techniques and information resources. According to seclion 96 of IAS 39, the surplus of the real
derivative compared with the value of the hypolhelical derivative shall be recorded as loss or gain, recording under
the net equily the value of the lower value of the real or hypothetical - considered as change in value of hedged
flows.

For the consideration of fair value, credit risk shall be included in the measurement of the real derivalive white not
credit risk shall be allocated to hypothetical derivalive.

Classification of financial instruments

Regarding assets and liabililies measured at fair value, the Group follows hierarchy set out by IFRS 13 for their
classification pursuant to input used for their measurement and market conditions:

Level 1 inputs are quoled prices in aclive markets for identical assets or liabililies fhat the entity can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 lhat are observable for the
assel or liabilily, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs inputs are unobservable inputs for lhe asset or liabilily.

According fo IFRS 13, the hierarchy calegorises the inpuls used in valuation lechniques of assets and liabilities into
three levels. (Level 1, Level 2, Level 3). The hierarchy gives the highesl priority lo (unadjusted) quoled prices in
aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priorily 1o unobservable inputs

Derivalives of the Group are classified as Level 2.
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No lransfers from Level 1 to Level 2 have laken place during year 2014. Neither had {aken place inputs or outputs of
Level 3 at 31 December 2013.

Sensitivity analysls of interest rate and exchange rate

Changes in the fair value of inlerest rate derivatives arranged by the Group depend on :

a) In the case of inleresl rale swaps arranged by the Group, the change in the interest rate curve in the euro
currency.

b) In the case of foreign exchange swaps arranged by the Group, the change in the interest rale curve of the
Chilean peso (CLP) or the average rate on camera, while currency swaps depend on the average rate
camera and exchange rate change between Unidades de Fomento (UF) and the Chilean peso (CLP).

Next are incfuded the delails of the sensilivity analysis of fair value of derivalives acting as accounting hedges
regrading changes in average interest rate and exchange rate swaps of UF and CLP.

- Sensitivity analysis of "Poligeneracio Parc de L'Alba, S.A.”

Sensitivity analysis in thousands of euros at 31/12/2014
Basic Scenario T/i EUR -1,149
Basic Scenario T/i EUR -1,618

- Sensitivity analysis of "Sociedad Concesionaria San José-Tecnocntrol, S.A..”

Sensitivity analysis In thousands of euros at 31/12/2014

CCS

Basic Scenario + 100 bp CLP curve -5,006
Basic Scenario - 100 bp CLP curve 5,261
Basic Scenario + 10% TC CLF/CLP -18,090
Basic Scenario +10% TC CLF/CLP + 100 bp CLP curve -23,096
Basic Scenario + 10% TC CLF/CLP - 100 bp CLP curve -12,829
Basic Scenario - 10% TC CLF/CLP 18,090
Basic Scenario - 10% TC CLF/CLP + 100 bp CLP curve 13,084
Basic Scenario - 109 TC CLF/CLP - 100 bp CLP curve 23,351
Swap

Basic Scenario TC + 100 bp CLP curve 4,685
Basic Scenario TC - 100 bp CLP curve -4,912

The sensilivity analysis shows that the derivalive interest rate records reduclions in negalive fair value as interest
rates rise since the rate of interest paid by the group is limited upward and therefore is covered with these rate
increases. Faced with interest rate movements downward, the negative value will increase.

The sensitivity analysis shows that exchange rate derivalives record deductions in negative fair values due to
decrease of interest rate curves of CLP or average interest and an increase of CLP regarding UF for being an
instrument in which the Group receives flows in CLP and pays flows in UF. Faced with interest rale movements
upwards and the depreciation of the CLP regarding the UP, the negalive value will increase.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair vatue of financial instruments at amorlised cost:

There are no significant differences between "accounting value" and “fair value" measuring of financial inslruments
at amortised cosl.

Applicable pricing lechniques and hypothesis fo measure fair value:

FriREasie CRVDIGLESIAS
INTERPRE TE JURABO INGLES-ESPASOL
CiseralifyTubio, 5. 1° 72
36900 M (! ontevedra)
calyo.esiahiaaggrnait.com
6007 T - SB6AU04E3




Translation into English of consolidated roies for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the even! of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

Fair value of financial assels and liabilities will be established as follows:

+ The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in aclive and liquid
markets will be established lied to market quoted prices.

» The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities (excluding derivalives) will be eslablished according lo
generally accepted pricing models based on cash flow discounts using markel trading prices and quotes from
contributors for similar instruments.

- To determine the fair value of interest rate derivalives, cash flow discount based on assumptions established by the
interest rate curve according to market conditions is used. To determine the fair value of the inlerest rale derivalives
(Swap of IRSs), the Group uses an in-house IRS valualion model where the inputs are the Euribor market curves
and long-term swap rales to establish the fair value of the interest rate derivalive slruclures.

Financial instruments can be grouped in levels ranging from 1 to 3 according to lhe level in which the fair value can
be observed:

« Level 1: Those lied to quoted prices (wilhout adjustment) in aclive markels for identical assets or liabililies.

+ Level 2: Those tied to other inpuls (excluding quoted prices included in level 1} observed for assets and
liabilities, either directly (i.e., prices) or indireclly (i.e., derived from prices).

« Level 3: Those lied to pricing techniques, including inputs for assels and liabilities not based on observable
market data (non-observable inputs).

The Group's derivative financial instruments at 31 December 2013 are classified under Leve! 2.

19 Trade payables_and other payables

19.1 Trade payables

"Trade and other payables” includes mainly the amounts oulstanding for frade purchases and related cosls.

Group management considers thal the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
During year 2014, the Group has paid supplies wilhin an average term of 62 days upon the provision of services.

Information on deferred payments to suppliers. Third supplementary provision. “Information duties" of Act
15/2010 on 5 July.

Regarding information required by the supplementary third provision of Act 15/2010 on 5 July, pending payment to
suppliers implies a deferment of payment higher than legal payment malurity date. Finance cosls arising from such
deferment will be assumed by the Group as stated on the agreements reached with suppliers:

Euros
2014 2013
Amount % Amount %
Payments executed within maximuem legal
payment term 243,427 95% 340,141 98%
Outstanding 11,651 5% 7940 2%
Total paymenis to suppliers for the year| 255078| 100% 348,110 100%
PMPE (days) (*) 42 47
Amount of deferred payments which exceed
maximum legal payment term. 2,734 1% 4,565] 2%

(*) PMPE: average payment time which exceeds maximum legal payment term.

According to Act 15/2010 as of 5 July, amendment of Acl 3/2004 on 29 December, modified by Law 11/2013, of 26
July, aboul default payment measures, maximum payment fime in 2014 il is 30 days, exlendable to 60 days if there
is agreement between the parlies.
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Finance costs arising from such deferrement will be assumed by the Group as slated on the agreemenis reached
wilh suppliers.

19.2 Other current Habilities

Other current liabilities" includes mainly the accounts payable relaling to joint venlures and advances to customers
{see Note 19.3). It also includes the provisions totalling EUR 4,721 thousand and EUR 4,599 thousand, at 31
December 2014 and 2013, respeclively, for remuneralion payable.

19.3 Customer advances

This item relales fundamenlally to lhe advances received from the buyers of the properties relaling fo the
developments in progress or advances for the sale of real estale assets.

Real estate advances at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amount to EUR 5,639 thousand and EUR 8,531 thousand,
respectively, and relate fundamentally to the advances received from the buyers for the properlies relaling to the
developmenls in progress or completed developments at year-end, the completion and/or delivery of which are
scheduled for subsequent years (see Note 13). Most of the advances received from customers had been guaranteed
by financial guarantees.

Al 31 December 2014 and 2013 this item includes "Amounts Billed in Advance for Construction Work" tolalling EUR
110,028 and thousand and EUR 66,678 thousand, respeclively, (see Note 14.1)} which relales to progress billings
issued during the year for construclion work yet {o be performed and which are not recognised as revenue for the
period in accordance wilth the method of recognilion of revenue for compleled construction work, based on the
percentage of completion method used by the Group, described in Note 4.12.

Risk exposure

20.1 Credif risk exposure

The Group is nol exposed to significant credit risk, since ils customers and the institutions in which cash placements
are made or with which derivalives are arranged are highly solvent entities, in which counterpart risk is not
significant.

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and olher receivables and investments,
which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets,

The Group's credit risk is mainly atlributable to trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debts, estimated by Group management based on past experience
and its assessment of the current economic climate. The amount of financial assets recoghised in the consclidated
financial statements, nel of possible impairment losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk,
excluding guaranlees or other credil improvements provided.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparis are banks wilh
high credit ratings assigned by international credit raling agencies.

The Group does not have a significant concentration of credil risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparlies and cuslomers.

The Group, depending on the business sector, took out credil insurance enabling it to reduce commercial credit risk
arising from lransactions with debtors.

The Group monitors credit management and has specific procedures in place in this conneclion, setling terms and
conditions for lhe acceptance of orders and regularly monilering orders.

20.2 Interest rate risk exposure

Interest rate risks arises {from changes in the future cash flows from variable rale borrowings {(or wilh current
malurily) as a result of changes in market interest rates.
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The objective of interest rate risk management is to mitigate the impact on borrowing costs arising from fluctuations
in interest rates. Financial derivalives which guarantee fixed interest rates or rales with caps and floors are for a
subslantial portion of the borrowings that may be affected by this risk. (see Notes 17 and 18).

20.3 Forelgn currency risk exposure

At 31 December 2014, the Group has contracted hedging transactions for exchange rate risks in order lo cover risks
arising from rate fluctuations of Chilean UF regarding Chilean peso. Further, foreign currency lransaclions are
assessed in order to hedge a high percentage of the same.

Its foreign currency risk exposure refates to ils investments in the companies detailed in Note 4.14, and which are
financed in local currency.

20.4 Liquidity risk exposure

The Group pursues the prudent management of the liquidity risk based on the mainlenance of sufficient cash and
markelable securilies, availability of financing through s sufficient level of commilted credit facililies and sufficient
capacily fo sellle market positions. The Company calculates its cash requirements through a 12-month cash budget.

The table below includes the Group's liquidity analysis for derivative financial instrumenls. The table is based on
non-discounted net cash flows. When this liquidation (receivable or payable) is not fixed, the amounl has been
established with the assumpticn calculated based on the interest rate curve:

Less thana 3-12 More than 5
Thosand of euros month  1-3months  months 1-5 years years
Hedgind Derivates Interest SWAP -138 0 -4,065 -10,919 -314
CCS 0 0 771 -4,736 -2,784
Derivatives
designated as Interest SWAP 0 0 -447 -1,218 -41
trading

Maturily dates of the remaining financial liabililies are listed in Note 17,

On 30 December 2014 the Group has entered inte the modifying novalion agreement of the syndicaled credit
facilities, as well as bilateral liabilities wilh a large majorily of its financial creditors. Pursuant to this agreement, three
separate financing agreemenls have been assumed (see Note 17), and the amorlisation calendar has been
amended, being adapted to the cash flow of the Group. Signed financing agreement was submilted to the irade
Courl of Pontevedra for the legal approval. On 11 May 2015 legal approval was granled as from 13 February 2015
by the Trade Court No 2 of Pontevedra (see Note 17.3).

At 31 December 2014, the Group records a positive working capilal amounfing to EUR 134.1 million, whal
guarantees its feasibilily regarding all current financial liabilities included within the accompanying consolidaled
batance sheet,

The treasury budget of the Group for year 2015 largely depends on the final lerms and conditions of the agreement
formalised with the financial entities.

. Taxation

The Group companies file individual tax returns in accordance with the tax legislalion in force in each country. With
regard to Spain, the San Jose Group, composed of Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. as the Parent and all the
Spanish subsidiaries in which il holds a direct or indirect ownership interest of al least 75%, files income tax
statements under the special taxation regime wilh number 002/06 (See Nole 4.16).

For each of the consolidaled companies, income tax is calculated on the basis of the accounting profit or loss
determined by application of generally accepted accounting principles, which does not necessarily coincide with the
taxable profit or lax loss.

At 31 December 2014, the following SANJOSE group companies filed consolidated lax retuins, acling "Grupo
Empresarial San Jose, S.A." as the head of the consolidaled lax group: Ly e ILESIAS
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- Coenstructora San José, S.A.

- Carluja Inmobiliaria, S.A.U.

- Desarrollos Urbanlsticos Udra, S.A.U.

- Inmobiliaria Europea de Desarrollos Urbanlsticos, S.A.U.
- Inmobiliaria Americana de Desarrollos Urbanlslicos, S.A.U.
- San José Concesiones y Sevicios, S.A.U.

- Tecnocontrol Instalaciones, S.L.U, (former, Udra Mantenimiento, S.L.U.}
- Tecnocontroi Sistemas de Seguridad, S.A.U.

- Tecnocontrol Servicios, S.A.U.

- Geslion de Servicios de Salud, S.A.

- Comercial Udra S.A.U.

- Basket King S.A.U.

- Arserex S.AU.

- Trendy King S.A.U.

- Outdoor King S.A.U.

- Athlelic King, S.A.U. (former Ewan Conneclion, S.A.U.)

- Vision King, S.A.U. (antes, Fashion King S.A.U.)

- Running King S.A.U.

- Udramedios S.A.U.

- Xornal de Galicia, S.A.U.

- Xomnal Galinet, S.A.U.

- San Jose Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.

- Asesoramiento y Geslion Inlegral de Edificios, S.A.U. (AGEINSA).
- Azac, S.AU.

- Hotel Rey Pelayo, S.L.

- Lardea, S.L.

- Parquesol Construcciones, Obras y Mantenimientos, S.L.
- Sofia Hoteles, S.L.U.

- Urbemasa, S.AU.

- Inmoprado Laguna, S.L.U.

- Altiptano Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L.U.

- Udralar, S.L.U.

- Udramar Inmobiliaria, S.L.L.

- Udrasol inmobiliaria, S.L.U.

- Udrasur Inmgbiliaria, S.L.U

- Copaga, S.L.U

- Douro Atlantico, S.L.U.

- SanJosé Energia y Medioambiente, S.A.

- Poligeneraciones parc de L"Alba, S.A.

- Enerxias Renovables de Galicia, S.A.

- Cadena de Tiendas S.A.U.
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Transiation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originaily isswed in Spanish. In i event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

21.1 Years open for review by the tax authorities

Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A. and the subsidiaries forming the consolidaled tax group have lhe last four years
and 2010 open for review.

Except for these companies and periods, the other Group companies have the iast four years open for review for all
the main taxes applicable to them.

With respect to the olher subsidiaries that are either not domiciled in Spain or do nol form part of the consolidated
tax group, the years open for review are in accordance wilth the maximum periods eslablished in the legislation
applicable in each country of residence, not having undergone tax Inspeclions during 2014.

Pursuant to available information, the Parent's Direclers consider that no additional material liabilities will arise as a
result of fulure audits of the years open for review.
21.2 Income tax

The balance of "Income Tax" in the accompanying consolidated income statement for 2014 and 2013 was
determined as follows:

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013

Profit/(Loss) before (ax 7,123 (219,621)
Increases al individual companies 10,989 -

Decreases al individual companies (4,645) (3,855)
Eliminalion trade consolidation (59,024) (4,487)
Non recorded losses lax credit - 1,724
Equity method - 11,734
Offsei of prior years' tax losses (543) (66)
Taxable profit (46,100} (214,571)
Less taxable profil of companics not resident in Spain (23,151) 5,431
Tax loss of consolidated group resident in Spain (69,251) {209,140)
Priar selting (30%) 20,775 (62,742)
Plus - deduclions - (188}
Accrued (ax expense 20,715 (62,930)
Repularisalion previous year and change of lax rate {52,263) 2,231
Non residentl tax cxpense (18,115) (340)
Tax expense (49,603) (61,039)

21.3 Tax loss carry forwards

At 31 December 2014 total tax loss carry forwards pending Offset amounts to EUR 197,134 thousand, the Group
records under "Deferred tax assels” in lhe accompanying consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014 a tax
credil arising from said tax loss carry forwards amounting to EUR 23,749 thousand.

The Directors of the Parent consider that the tax Group, pursuanl to current Business Plan and the consolidalion of
the inlernational aclivity of the Group (main in the Middle East, Asia and America), and based on the current
financing struclure (see Note 17.3), will be able to offset tax loss carry forwards in a term of 9 years.

The detail of the tax loss carry forwards of the consolidated companies at 31 December 2014 is as follows:
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Transfation into English of consolidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issned in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

Thousand of Euros
Year of Tax losses
Company inclusion
Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries From 1997 to 0
Without real estate aclivity 1999

2000 0
2001 0
2002 349
2003 66
2004 914
2005 418
2006 1,389
2007 9,088
2008 56,905
2009 49,167
2010 9,416
2011 6,192
2012 2914
2013 2,015
2014

Tolal consolidated lax group 138,833

Spanish companies nof included In the consolidated tax | From 1997 to

group 1959 65

2000 61
2001 85
2002 52
2003 735
2004 33
2005 543
2006 192
2007 1,100
2608 337
2009 241
2010 427
2011 199
2012 714
2013 263
2014 177

Total Spanish companics not included in consolidated 5224

tax groups

Foreign companies From 1997 to 1,053
1999
2000 461
2001
2002 795
2003 3,548
2004 5,376
2005 1,116
2006 1,496
2007 6,009
2008 502
2009 387
2010 5
2011 2464
2012 3082
2013 5318
2014 20,725

TOTAL companies not resident in Spain 53,077

TOTAL 197,134

in the case of the Spanish companies and under current legislation, the tax losses of a given year can be carried
forward for tax purposes for offset against the taxable profits of the following 18 years. Tax loss carry forwards of
companies for offset when becoming an integral part of the group, may be forwarded for the parent with the imit of
the individual company. However the final amount of the tax losses to be offset may be modified as a resull of the
review by the tax aulhorilies of the years in which the losses were incurred into,
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Translaiion into English of conselidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

The Diteclors of the Parent consider that the tax Group, pursuant 1o curreni Business Plan, and based on the
success of current negoliations wilh financial entities compromising the bank syndicate in Spain (see Nole 17.3}, will
be able 1o offset tax loss carry forwards

Deferred tax assets and labilities

The deferred lax assets recognised in the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet al 31 December 2014 and
2013 arose as a result of the following:

Thousand of Euros
31/1272014 | 31/1272013
Non deductible financial profit /(loss) 51t 13,836
Financial Inslruments - 4,292
Concessions and projects in progress 13,392 -
Non deductible amortisation 414 948
Impairment of financial stakes 2,152 15,960
Receivables 4,453
Other ilems 1,439 7,929
Tax credit carry forwards 4,431 8,029
Tax loss carry forwards (Note 21.3) 23,749 148,009
50,539 199,003

The balance of "Deferred lax liabilities" at 31 December 2014 relates basically to the following items:

1. Acknowledgement of tax credits arising from negative tax bases declared by companies of the Group.
2, Offset pending applicalion
3. Difference between concessions and projecis in progress in cerlain countries.

4. The differences between accounting and fiscal criteria wilhin the Spanish regulation regarding receivables,
financial profit/(loss) and amortisations.

The deferred tax assels recognised in the accompanying consclidated balance sheet al 31 December 2014 and
2013 arose as a result of the following:

Fhousand of Euros
311272014 | 317122013

Reassessment of assets - 40,762
Diflerent crileria projects in progress 10,395 -
Deferral for reinvestment of extraordinary gains 1,147 3,219
Backlog provisions 457 -
Deferred consolidation profit and other 11,969 -
Acceleraled amortisalion 1,581
Olher adjusiments 3433 8,705

28,982 52,686

The balance of "Deferred tax liabilities” at 31 December 2014 relates basically to the following items:
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Translation info English of consolidated noles for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

1. Deferred tax relating fo lhe parlicipation of minority pariner in the activation of assets and slocks produced by
effects of the merger, as well as (he revalualion of properly assets held in the heart of the former Group
Parquesol, at the time of first application of international accounling standards.

2. Investment commitments of deferred income arising from property, planl and equipment sales made in the
period from 1997 lo 2001, inclusive, was reinvested in full before 31 December 2006.

3. Eliminalion of the outcome of intergroup (ransaclions within the consolidable tax Group pending
incorporation.

4, Different criteria of projects in progress in different regulations.

21.5 Tax credits

The tax credits earned in the year in excess of the applicable legal limits may be deducted from the income tax
payable in the coming years, subject to the limits and deadlines established in this conneclion by the relaled lax

legistation .The Group availed itself of the tax benefits provided for in the aforementioned legislation and recognised
EUR 391 thousand as an increase in the income tax asset accrued in 2014, as follows:

Yearof | Thousand of
ltem inglusion Euros
Earned by the consolidated tax group Grupo Empresarial San Jose S.A.
Double taxation 1ax credil 2014 318
Tax credits for donations 2014 73
391
Al 31 December 2014 the following tax credits remain outstanding:
Earned by the consolidated tax group Grupo Empresarial Yenr of Thousand of
San Jose $.A. inclusion Euros
Double taxation tax credit 2014 318
Tax credits for donations 2004 73
Double taxation {ax credit 2013 1
Tax credits for donations 2013 4
Double 1axation 1ax credit 2012 5
Tax credits for donations 2012 10
Ré&D tax credil 2012 14
R&D tax credit 2011 268
Double taxalion lax credil 2011 18
Tax credit for training aclivilies 2011 0.4
Tax credils for donations 2011 B2
Double laxation tax credil 2010 164
Tax credils for donations 2010 45
Tax credil for training aclivitics 2010 03
R&D (ax credit 2010 368
Tax credit for environmental aclions 2010 3306
Double taxation lax credit 2009 657
Tax credits for donations 2009 42
Tax credit for (raining activities 2009 |
Tax credits for reinvestment of exiraordinary gains 2008 104
Double taxalion tax credit 2008 2,259
R&D tax credit 2008 329
Tax credils for donalions 2008 193
Tax credil for training aclivilies 2008 4
Tax credil for fairs 2008 217
Tax credils for reinvestment 2008 104
Tax credit for training aclivities 2007 02
Double taxation {ax credit 2007 4
Tax credil for fairs 2007 12
Tax credits for reinvesiment 2005 271

Total 5,71
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Translation into English of consolidated notes for ihe year ending 31 December 2014 originally isswed in Spanish, In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish langnage version prevails

The tax credit carry forwards for the year were recognised as tax assets.

Reinvestment requiremenls relaling to the full amount of the tax credits for the reinvestment of extraordinary gains
earned by the Group during the period 2003 to 2008, inclusive, had been met in full by 31 December 2013 within the
periods established by current tax legislation

21.6 Tax receivables and payables

The detail of the Group's tax receivables and payables at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
3171212014 31/12/2013
Non-
Currenl Non-current Current current

Tax assels:
Deferred tax assets 658 50,539 5,834 199,003
Tax receivables

VAT receivables 3,580 - 14,354 -

Sundry receivables 623 - 5,437 -

14,203 - 19,791 -

Total tax assets 14,861 50,539 25,625 199,003
Tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 1,797 28,982 1,170 52,686
Tax payables

Tax payable as a result of tax assessments 692 -

VAT payables 9,157 - 16,876 -

Personal income lax payable 1,394 - 1,086 -

Sundry payables 585 - - -

Social Security payables 1,303 - 2,466 -

12,439 - 21,120 -

Total tax liabilities 14,236 28,982 22,290 52,686

21.6 20.7 Restructuring transactions

Reslructuring operations have been executed pursuanl to the Structural Modifications Act 3/2009 and Chapter VIl of
Tille Vil on the Special Regime of mergers, spin-off and exchange of shares established by the Legislalive Royal
Decree 4/2004 on 5 March approving the Consolidated Spanish Corporation Tax Law.

Transaction executed within 2013.

On 3 December 2013 took place the merger trough absorption of the company Inmobiliria Europea de Desarrollos
Urbanislicos S.A. of the companies Inversiones Patrimoniales Guadaiza S.L, Inicialivas Galebal S.L. and San pablo
Plaza S.L. Merger has accounling effects as of 1 January 2013.

Transactions executed within the previous years:

1 - The company Parquescl Inmobililaria y proyeclo S.L. was incorporated on 3 February 2000 by the absorption of
several companies {Parquesol Alquileres S.l., Parquesol Inmuebles S.L., Parquesol Inmobiliaria MMM SA and
Parquesol Residencial y Desasarrollo S.L.) and the incorporalion of two new companies, one of them Grupo
Parquesol MM SL. More details of properly, righls and obligalions can be found on the Notes to the Financial
Statements for year ending 31 December 2000 of Grupo Parquesol MM S.L.

2.- Merger trough absorption of the company Parquesol Inmobitiatia y Proyectos S.L. (former Miralepa Carlera) as
absorbing company and Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyeclos S.L. and Miralepa Cartera S.L. as absorphed companies
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on 2 March 2008, with full effect as of 31 QOctober 2005. More details of properly, rights and obligations can be
found on the Notes to the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December 2006 of Parquesol Inmobitiaria y
Proyectos S.L.

3.- As of 29 December 2008 Constructora San José S.A. absorbed lhe subsidiaries Alcava Medilerranea S.A,,
Constructora Avalos S.A., Balltagi Mediterriani SA and Consfruccién, Rehabilitacion y Conservacién S.A. More
details of property, rights and obligations can be found on the Notes to the Financial Slalements for year ending 31
December 2008 of Constructora San José S.A..

4.- On 30 January 2009 took place the merger lrough absorption by Sanjose Tecnologias S.A. as absorbing
company of the subsidiaries Artel Ingenieros S.L., Sefri Ingenieros S.A. Instal 8 S.A. and S.M.Klima S.A. . More
details of property, righls and obligations can be found on the Notes to the Financial Stalements for year ending 31
December 2009 of Sanjose Tecnologias S.A..

5.- On 16 June 2009 took place the merger lrough absorption of Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A. as
absorbing company of lhe assoclates Parzara, S.L.U., Guadalmina Inversiones, S.L.U., Fomento Inmobiliario de
Gestion, S.A.U., Parquesol Promociones y Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L.U. and Parque Usera, S.L. . More details of
properly, rights and obligalions can be found on the MNotes to the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December
2009 of Grupo Empresarial Sanjose S.A..

6.- On 16 June 2009 took place the merger lrough absorption of "Udra, S.A." (currenlly GRUPO EMPRESARIAL
SAN JOSE, S.A.) with "Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A.", “San José Inlraestrucluras y Servicios, S.A.", "Udramed,
S.L.U.", "Parquesol Inmobiliaria y Proyectos, S.A." and “LHOTSE Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L.” . More delails of
property, rights and obligations can be found on the Noles fo the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December
2009 of Grupo Empresarial Sanjose S.A..

7.- On 28 December 2009 took place the merger trough absorption of Sanjose Tecnologias S.A. as absorbing
company and Tecnocontrol S.A.U. as absorbed company. More details of properly, rights and obligalions can be
found on the Notes to the Financial Slatements for year ending 31 December 2009 of Sanjose Tecnologias S.A.

8.- On 28 December 2009 Tecnoconlrol transferred its branch of activily of maintenance of mechanical facililies in
favour of Tecnocontrol Servicios SA. More details of property, rights and obligations can be found on the Notes to
the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December 2009 of Tecnoconirol Servicios SA..

9- As of the 30 July 2010, segregation of the real estate branch of activity of Grupo Empresarial San Jose, S.A.
(formerly, Udra, S.A) in favour of "San Jose Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, §.A." (formerly, Inmobiliaria Udra, S.A.) and
capilal increase of the beneficiary company. Segregation of the real estate branch of activity More details of
properly, rights and obligations can be found on the Notes fo the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December
2010 of San José Desarrollos Inmabiliarios, S.A..

10- Spin-off of "Sanjose Tecnologias, S.A.U." in favour of "Constructora San Jose, S.A.", "Sanjose Energia y Medio
Ambiente, S.A" and "Sanjose Concesiones y Servicios, S.A.U." on 27 December 2010. More details of property,
rights and obligations can be found on lhe Notes to the Financial Statements for year ending 31 December 2010 of
Conslructora San José, S.A*, "Sanjosé Energia y Medio Ambiente, S.A." and "Sanjose Concesiones y Servicios,
S.AU.

Guarantee commitments to third parties

Al 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had received from banks and insurance companies guarantees provided
to third paries amounling to EUR 353 million and EUR 242 milion (mainly project and definile tender and
performance bonds to public and private bodies). EUR 0.2 million of which correspond to the parent company and
the resl to the subsidiaries al the previous years.

In addition, some associales have guarantee commilments {o third parties, related to the corresponding business for
EUR 12,298 thousand, which correspond to a guaranlee registered by "Desarrollc Urbanlistico Chamartin, S.A."
before the Community of Madrid Tax Depariment to guarantee the suspension of the coltection proceeding in order
to file a claim before the Regional Tax Appeal Board in Madrid against the liquidation derived from the payment
record and receipt received on 23 December 1998 for Estate and Property Transfer Tax for the tender agreement for
the urban development of the RENFE rights al the Chamartin railroad building.

Parent Company and subsidiaries Directors do not consider there will be any liabilily in connectlion to the commilted
guarantees.
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Income and expenditure

23.1 Income

The detail of "Revenue” in the accompanying consolidaled income statemenls for 2014 and 2013 is as follows (in
thousands of Euros):

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 ()

Construction:
-Civil works 35,708 55,232
- Residential 52,937 47,808
-Non Residential 286,189 313,663
- Industrial 6,775 10,423
363,609 427,126
-Real Estate 32,229 44,254
Concessions and Services 40,695 108,285
Energy i1,321 11,586
Consolidation adjustments and other 17,228 | (65,287)
Net Revenue 465,082 525,964

(*) Reformulated dala (see Note 4.23)

51.9% and 55.6.% of consiruction revenues refer to sales to the public seclor in years 2014 and 2013, respeclively.

In year 2014, EUR 20 million of the more than EUR 465 million of net revenue relale o joint ventures (see Annex H1).

Virlually all the work was performed as prime contractor.

Carrying nel cost at 31 December 2014 and 2013 amounts fo EUR 1,868.5 million and EUR 2,983.6 million,
respeclively, being the delail as follows:

Million of Euros
2014 2013
Construction:
Civil works 201.2 356.5
Residential 136 38.7
Non Residential 635.83 745.7
Industrial 5.9 13.3
Subtotal construction 876.6 1,154.2
Concessions and Services. (*¥) 321.7 1,194.3
Energy 670.3 635.1
Total Backlog 1,868.5 2,983.6
Details by type of client:
Public-sector 63.41% 60.58%
-Private-secior 36.59% 39.42%
Delails by geographical area:
-Domestic market 48.38% 30.47%
-International markel 51.62% 69.53%

(*} It does nok include portlolio resulting from wind farm tenders called out by the
Xunla de Galicia resolved as 26 December 2008 for the awarding of 142 MW.

(**) Pursurant to the economic model of concesslons
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From the above total backlog of the Group, the "Loa Roads" in Chile to be executed under concession regime and
amounting to EUR 172 million have not been included within the construction activily. Although it has been awarded
to the Group, the believes that on basis of prudence said figures shall not be disclosed unfil the aclual starl of the
project

Further, the Group has a construclion and energy backlog for a total value of EUR 49.4 million and EUR 180.8 million
at 31 December 2014 and 2013, respeclively, arising from ils participation in companies integrated within theses
consolidated financial statements by the equity method.

23.2 Procurements and other external expenses

The breakdown of “Procurements” in the consolidaled income statements for 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 (%
Procurement of raw materials and other supplies 142,005 177,581
Changes in the impairment of inventories (Note
13) (943) 603
Works performed by other companies 141,352 156,650
Total procurement 282,414 334,834

(*) Reformulated data (see Nolte 4.23}
“Works performed by Other Companies® includes work that forms parl of the Group's own produclion process but is
commissioned from subconlractors or other companies.

The breakdown of “Other current management expenditure” in the consolidated income statements for 2014 and
2013 is as follows:

Thouwsand of Euros

2014 2013 (»
R&D expenditure 23 516
Utilities 5,842 6,268
Repair and maintenance services 103 750
Transport and freight costs 803 788
Insurance premiums and banking services 3,102 2,972
Independent professional services 19,203 15,998
Leases 9,354 9,223
Advertising and publicity 2,610 2,743
Other Services 19,981 22,527
Taxes and income tax 5,320 5,921
Other operating expense 8,311 3,518
Total 74,562 69,171

(*) Reformulated data (see Note 4.23)

23.3 Staff costs

The detail of “Staff Cosls® is as follows:
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Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 (%
Wages and salaries 61,810 66,577
Termination benefits 4,772 2,713
Employer social security costs 12,811 14,427
Other social cosis 2,018 2,771
Total B1,411 86,488
(*) Reformulated data {see Nole 4.23)
The average workforce by professional category is as follows:
2014 2013
Category Men Female Men Female
University graduates 289 94 299 98
University three-ycar degree
graduates 302 74 333 89
Clerical staff 66 108 106 125
Officers and technical personnel 11234 45 1.228 45
1,891 321 1.966 357

Thé average workforce at 31 December 2014 amounted to 2,309 of which 1,985 were men and 324 women
23.4 Compensation in kind

At 31 December 2014 there was no significant compensalion in kind.

23.5 Share-hased payment

There are no share-based payment systems.

23.6 Leases

Operaling Leases

At the reporting date the Group did not have any operaling leases of a malerial amount and had not assumed any
future minimum lease payment obligations.

Finance Leases

Al 31 December 2014, the Group had acquired future lease payment obligations under finance leases entered into
amounling to EUR 1,607 thousand, most of which will be amortised in the following six years. Said balance is
included under "Bank borrowings" (see Nole 17.1).

23.7 Finance Income

The delait of "Finance income” in the consolidated income slatement is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 (%)
21,569 9,678

Interest on receivables

Income from equity
investments 651 742
Other Finance Income - -

22,220 10,420
(*) Reformulated data (see Note 4.23)
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"Olher financial income™ for the year 2014 it includes mainly the financial revenues from updating the accounts
receivable from the Chilean Ministry of Public Works as a result of the deferral of payment for the construction of
hospitals in Chite, amounting approximately to EUR 13,290 thousand (see Note 14.4.3}.

“interests on receivables” for year 2014 and 2013 includes approximately EUR 2.6 million and EUR 3 million
comesponding to interests on shori-term deposits. The reminder corresponds mainly lo late interest for deferral of

collection to customers and selllement of exchange rale hedge insiruments.

23.8 Finance Expense

Breakdown is as follows.

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 (M
Interests on payables 18,297 26,141
Other Finance Expense - -
18,297 26,141

() Reformulated data (see Note 4.23)

At 31 December 2014, under this item there are EUR 1,583 thousand arising from the setllement of interests of the

syndicated credit (see nole 17.3).

23.9 Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets

The delail is as follows:

Thousand of Euros

2014 2013 (*)
Gainsfl.osses on write-offs of fixed assets (Note 7) 1,755 (141)
Impairment of fixed assets (Note 7) (4) 19
Goodwill impairment (Note 9) (739) -
Intangible assets impairment (Note 10) 63 (94)
Investment property impairment (Note 8.1) - 7.575
Other (393) -

682 7,359

(*} Reformulated data (see Note 4.23)

23,10 Changes In operating provisions

Breakdown of this item in the accompanying consolidaled balance sheet for years 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
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Year 2014:
Thousand of Euros
Insolvencies | Other operating
(Nole 14) provisions Total
Balance at 31 December 2013 29,269 37,696 66,965
Reclassifications held-for-irading 3,759 (4,541) (8,300)
Provisions 5,855 16,556 22,411
Applications {910) (1,112) (2,022)
Reversals (2,121) (5,338) (7.459)
Transfers and other {86) (336) {422)
Balance at 31 December 2014 28,248 42,925 71,173
Year 2013:
Thousand of Euros
Insolvencies | Other cperating
(Note 13) provisions Total
Balance at 31 December 2012 28,832 29,229 58,061
Provisions 7,268 10,908 18,176
Applications (4,822) (1,616) (6,438)
Reversals (1,435) (393) (2,328)
Transfers and other {(574) 68 (506)
Balance at 31 December 2013 29,269 37,696 66,965

Current provisions classified under "Shorl-term provisions” include esfimated amounts to face possible business
contingencies. During 2014 and 2013, EUR 816 thousand and EUR 880 lhousand, respectively, linked lo provisions
for conclusion of property developments, was reversed as they no longer apply

At 31 December 2013, “Provisions for traffic insolvencies™ includes an accumulated impairment amounting to EUR
609 thousand associated to "Other receivables" under assels in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

23.11 Change in inventories of finished goods and In progress

Breakdown of the item "Changes in inventories” is as follows:

Thousand of Euros
2014 2013 (%)
Changes in inventories for recorded expenses /sales 2,216 15,465
Changes in the inventories due to impairment (Note 13) (12) 503
In-house work on assels (423) (159}
Total 1,781 15,809

(*} Reformulaled dala {(see Note 4.23)

23.12 Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of financial investments

Further, recorded impairment for year 2014 amounfs lo EUR 1,149 thousand and refers mainly io financial
invesiments recorded by the Group as "Invesimenls hold for sale" (see Note 14.4.1).

Further, il also records impairment for the stakes in companies accounting for the equity method (see Notes 11 and
14.4).

_ ESTRIEmER CALYO [GLESIAS
INTERPRETE JURALD ILRSLES-ESPANOL
ClSeralin TubMb,.4°
36900 Matin (tof¥vedra) 87
calvo.esi=fani=fiqfail.con
690320705 - Y3GH0498




Transiation info English of conselidated notes for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy,
the Spanish language version prevails

23.13 Audit fees

in 2014 and 2013 the expense corresponding to the financial audil services and other services provided to the
Group by Deloilte, S.L. and companies associated of the same, as well as fees for audit services for independent
financial statements of associated and related companies was as follows:

Year 2014.

Year 2013:

Thousand of Euros
Descriplion Services provided by | Services provided by
the main auditor other audiling firms
Audit services 299 108
Other verification services 147 -
Total audit services and related services 446 108
Tax and fiscal advice services - -
Other Services - -
Total 446 108
Thousand of Euros
Descriplion Services provided by | Services provided by
the main auditor other auditing firms
Audit services 336 72
Other verification services 59 -
Total audit services and related services 395 72
Tax and fiscal advice services - -
Other Services 3 -
Total 398 72

24. Balances and transactlons with non-consolidated associates and |oint ventures

All the material balances at year-end between the consolidated companies and lhe effect of the transaclions
performed between them during the year were eliminated on consolidalion. The detail of the most significant
balances between the Group and the non-consolidated associates and joint ventures and the effect of the
transaclions performed with them on lhe consolidated income statements are as follows:
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Thousand of
Euros
2014 2013
Assels:
Antigua Rehabitalia, S.A. - 16,425
Makalu Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.L. - 20,407
Cresca, S.A. (Nofe 14.4.2) 8,019 5,950
Pinar de Villanueva, S.L. - 456
Other 10 11
Liabilities:
Panamerican Mall, S.A. 698 -
Pontegrin, S.A. - 9,757
Other 1,068 338
Transactions:
Income 253 |
Expenses 2,806 49

The item "Other” recorded under liabililies al 31 December 2014 comresponds mainly to current bank accounts at
financial entities and people linked to the Group through joint ventures.

The main item under Assels corresponds {o a loan granted by the Group to its investee “Cresca, 5.A.U.", under the
equily method (see Nole 14.4.2).

Expenses correspond mainly lo expenses incurred into by the JVs of the Group in Abu Dhabi for a lotal amount of
EUR 2,542 thousand.

Remuneration

25.1 Remuneration of Directors

The detail of the remuneration of all kinds eamed in 2014 and 2013 by the Directors of Grupo Empresarial San Josg,
S.A., 8 men and 1 wamen, and of the Group company, joinlly controlled entily or associaled obliged lo pay such
remuneration are as follows:

Thousand of Euros

Type of Directors 2014 2013
Executive board members 2,592 2,403
Independent board members 183 268
Other external board members 12 8
Total 2,787 2,679

In year 2014, tolal remuneralion consists of wages and salaries and commissions and other ilems amounting to
EUR 2,470 thousand, EUR 237 thousand and EUR 80 lhousand, respectively.

The amount for 2014 and 2013 includes Directors’ remunerations for the furtherance of their dulies as Senior
Management for EUR 2,470 thousand and EUR 2,470 thousand and EUR 2,260 thousand, respeclively.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, no advances, loans or other types of guarantees had been granted to the former or
current directors and there were no additional pension or life insurance obligations to them. In addition, the Group
does not have any other kind of transaclions with related parlies,
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Breakdown of ownership interest In companies with similar activities and activities and functions of
Dlrectors and assoclates.

In conneclion with the paricipation of the Directors of the Company or persons linked fo them, in the share capital of
companies alien to the same; or if they perform the same business aclivily or any other similar activity on their own
account; or if the same in their own name or any third parties acting on their behalf have performed with the
Company or any Group company transactions olher than those in the normal course of business or under non usual
market condilions must indicate that the Directors or any olher persons linked to them:

- Have not performed on their own account or for any other third parlies the same business activily or any other
similar aclivily.

- Do not hold stake on their own account or for any other third parties con companies with the same business
activily or any olher similar activity.

- Have not performed wilh the Company or any Group company lransaclions other than those in the normal
course of business or under non usual market conditions.

Al year-end 2014 neilher the members of the Board of Directors of the Company or any third parties related to them,
as defined in the Companies Act , have reporled to the other members of the Board of Directors any conflict of
interests, either direct or indirect, wilh the interesls of the Company.

25.2 Remuneration and other benefits of senlor executives
The total remuneration of alt kinds of the Parent's General Managers and persons discharging similar duties,

excluding those who are simultaneously members of the Board of Direclors (whose remuneration is disclosed
above), is summarised in 2014 and 2013 as follows:

Thousand
Number of people | of Euros

Year 2014:

14 Executives 1,955
Year 2013:

12 Exccutives 1,804

Additionally, the Company does not have any pension or life insurance obligations to these executives.

In view of the business aclivity carried on by the Company, it does not have any environmental liabilily, expenses,
assels, provisions or conlingencies that might be malerial wilh respecl lo its equily, financial position and resulis.
Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmenilal issues are included in these notes to the consolidated

26. Information on the environment
financial statemenls.
27. Events after the reporiing period

On 24 March 2015, the Group company "Concesionaria San Jose-Tecnocontrol, S.A.", was awarded the confract for
the execulion, repair, maintenance and operation of iwo public hospilals in Chile and has successfully completed the
issuance of dematerialised infrastructure bonds with a total value of UF 6,302,000 (approximately EUR 226.9
million).

The issue of bonds has been carried out in two tranches: Tranche A amounting o UF 5,597,000 (approximately
EUR 201.5 million) and a cover rate of 2.95%; and Tranche B for an amount of UF 705,000 (approximately EUR
25.4 million) and a cover rate of 4.00%. Both tranches have been fully subscribed. Malurily date is 30 June 2021.

Wilh the bond issue SANJOSE Group achieved three objeclives:

iy  To obtain an adequale credit rating of bonds through the provision, wilh funds from the bonds, of a series of
project accounls and the replacement by the concessionaire of bank debl with recourse by non-recourse bank
debt.
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Translation into English of consolidated noles for the year ending 31 December 2014 originally isswed in Spanish. In the event of discrepaicy,
the Spanish language version prevails

i)  Toimprove the funding of the concessionaire, reducing the finance expense for the company and improving the
flow of dividends. Parl of the funds from the bond issue will be used to repay in full the capital collected in
advance from the Chilean syndicaled credit facilities and the early termination of derivalive syndicated loan
{SWAP) and the subsequent bank debt.

i} To offset in advance the debt of the company due to the syndicaled credit facilities of the company, novated
last 30 December 2014, which will reinforce and confirm the commitment of Construclora San José, SA with its
creditors, and shall allow the company improving its financial structure and lower its cosls.

As indicated in Nole 17.3, on 30 December 2014, Group SANJOSE and its main subsidiaries entered into a
modifying novation agreement of the syndicated credit loan signed in April 2009, as well as a set of bilateral
contracls bifateral, with a large majorily of ils creditor banks. Such novalior: agreement includes several terms and
conditions to be fulfilled, among which highlights the courl approval in compliance wilh the Fourth Addilional
Provision of the Bankruptcy Act.

In this regard, the court approval has been granted on 11 May 2015 dated 13 February 2015 and issued by the
Commercial Court No. 2 of Pontevedra. Thus, the Group SANJOSE complies with the main preliminary condition
set out in the novation agreement.

The Directors of the Company consider that the remaining outstanding condilions will be fuifilled in the short term,
within the deadline established by the novation agreement and in compliance with the terms and conditions set out
therein.

There are no olher significant events occumred after 31 December 2014 which may have impacted on the
accompanying financial statementls.
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Appendix |

i

Consolidated subsidiaries

%% of voting rights con(rolled by

Parent companies

Company Ownership cosl
{Thousand of
Company Auditor Address Aclivity Direcl Indiree, QOlher Euros)
1681 West Avenue, LLC Not audiled Delaware (USA) Real Estate Development - 100 - 1
Alexin XXI, S.L.U. Nol awdiled Bilbao (Vizcaya). Real Eslale Development - 100 - 3
Aprisco  Satvador Inv.  Holeleiros ¢ Brazil Construction and Real Eslate - 100 - 4,090
Imobilidrios, Lida. Development
Argenlimo, S.A. Deloilte, S.L. Buenos Aires Real Estate Development - 100 - 20,932
(Argentina)
Arserex, S.AU. Deloitte, S.L.. Madrid Trade and distibution of spor{ ilems - 100 - 2 844
Azac, 5.AU. Mol audiled Barcelona Withoul activily - 100 - 13,339
Basket King, S.A.U, Not audited Madnd Trade and distribution of sport ilems - 100 - 977
Cadena de Tiendas, S.A L Noi audiled Pontevedra Trade, distribulion, impor and 100 - - 60
expont of clothes
Carlos Casado, S.A. Auren Buenos Aires Real Estate Development - 52,19 47.81 25,393
{Argenlina)
Carluja Inmobiliaria, S.A.U. Belaitte, S.L. Seville Coastruction - 100 - 3,884
Centro Comercial Panamericano, S.A Deloille Buenos Aires Reat Eslale Development - 100 - 10,202
Argenlina {Argenlina)
CIMSA Argenlina, S.A. Deloilte San Luis (Argentina) | Civil works - 100 - (764)
Argentina
Comercial Udra, S.A U, Deloilte, S.L. Ponlevedra Trade 100 - - 1,748
San José Panamé&, S.A (former Conslruclora | Bustamante y Cily of Panama Conslruclion - 100 - 228
Panamefa de Acropuerios, S.A). Bustamanle {Panama)
Construclora San José Argenlina, S.A. Deloille DBuenos Aires Conslruction - 96.947 3.053 754
Argenlina (Argenlina)
Consiructora San José Brazil, Limilada. Not audited Salvador de Bahla Construclion and Real Estale - 100 - 415
(Brazil) Developmen|
Conslructora San José Cabo Verde, S.A. Not audiled Cape Verde Construction - 100 - 453
Construcliora San José, S.A. Detoilte, S.L. Ponlevedra Conslruclion 92979 - 021 92,510
Consiruclora San José Timor, Unipessoal - Timer Conslruction 75 - 25 4
Lda.
Conslructora Udra Limilada Deleoitle, 5.1 Monaco (Portugal) | Construclion, maintenance and repair 7 70 23 245
Desarrotlos Urbanislicos Udra, S.A. Nol audiled Ponlevedra Real Estale Development 100 - - 20,200
EST YO IGLESIAS
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% of voling rights conirolled by
Parent companies

Company Ownership cost
(Thousand of
Company Auditor Address Aclivily Direct Indirect Other Euros)
Eraikuntza Birgaikuniza Artapena, S.L.U. Deloitle, S.1.. Vilofia Gasteiz Conslruclion R 100 ; 435
Eskonel Company, 5.A. Not audited Uruguay Energy _ 100 _ 1.552
Athlelic King S.AU._ (fonmer Ewan| Nol andited Madrid Manufacluring, slorage and . 100 _ 0
Connection, S.A.U.) distribution of goods
Folovollaica El Galle 10, S.L. Not audited Burgos Energy R 8297 17.03 14,543
Gestion de servicios de la Salod S.L. Mot audited - Hospilal services _ T _ %
Grupo 4 Nol audiled Madrid Real Estale Development Without . 100 R 180
aclivily
Hospes Brasil Participaciones e Brazil Construction and Real Eslale
Empreendimientos Lda Development - 100 - 43
Inmobiliaria 2010, S.L. Deloitte Pert Lima (Peru) Construction and Real Eslale 100 i 1.294
Development ’
Inmobiliaria Americana de Desamollos | Not audited Ponlevedra Real Estale Development B 100 _ 60
Urbanisticos, 5.A.U.
Inmobiliaria  Europea de  Desarrollos | Nol audiled Pontevedra Real Estate Development } 100 } o184
Urbanlsticos, S.A.U. ’
Inmobitiaria Sudamericana de Desarroltos | Deloitte, S.L. Buenos Aires Real Eslate Developmeal 00 &80
Urbanlsticos, S.A. (Argentina) B ! "
Inversidn Sandose Chife Limitada Not audited Santiago de Chile Investment and real estale . 100 i} 2
(Chile)
San Jose Andina Lida. Deloitte Chile Santiago de Chile Investmenl and rea) estate B 100 _ 14.969
{Chile) »
Inversiones Hospilalarias Lida. - San":g;g:)ﬂlle Capilal investment - 100 - t
Inversiones Viales Andina Lida. . S““"‘Egcl'li‘::)c”“" Capital invesiment - 100 . 1
Outdoor King, 5.A.U. Noi audited Madrid Manufacluring, storage and 100 0
distribulion of goods - -
O&M Pare de LAlba ST-4, S.A. Not audited Barcelona Construction, remodetling and
maimenance of facililies - 65 - 30
Real estate and agriculture and
Parsipanny Corp. S.A. . Uruguay tivestock ) Lz 48.28 22
Poligeneraciones parc de L"Alba ST Deloitle, S.L. Barcelona Construction, implementation and
mainlenance of electric energy - 76 14 4,024
power slalions
Pootus Euxinus Tehnologii Renovabile, | Nol audited Bucaresi (Romanla) | Produclion and trade of eleciric
S.R.L. energy by renewable energy . 75 ) 3
resources
Puerta de Scgura, 5.A. . Uruguay Industrial, Trade 5172 4828 5,084
Rexa Construclora S.A. Deloilte Pert. Lima (Peru) Construction . 100 . 484
Development of a (ourisl projecl in
Allo Paraguay and agricullure - 51.72 4828 2319
Rincon §.A.G. Paraguay aclivilies in (he same area.
Running King, §.A.0. Not audiled Pontevedra Trade, distribution, import and . 100 _ 1
exporl of clothes
José BAU GmBH Wisberi & Bertin (Germany) Construclion _ 24 16 435
Partner
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% of voting rights confrolled by Pareni Ownership
Company companies cosl
. (Thousand of
Company Auditor Address Aclivity Direet Indirect Other Euros)
San José Concesiones y Servicios, SAU. | Notaudiled | Pontevedra z‘r’v‘;':e':“s of health care and social 100 - . 2,416
San Jose Construction Group, [nc. Not audited Washinglon (USA) Construclion - 78.19 - 19,102
San José France, S.A S, Nolauwdited | Le Haillan (France) Holding company - 100 - 982
San José& Maroc, SARLAU, - Rabat (Moroceo) Canslruefion - 100 - 5
San José Pertl, S A.C. Deloille, S.L. | Lima (Peru) Conslruclion - 100 - 9,075
SanJosé Congo, S.A. - Republic of Congo Consiniclion . 70 - 10
$40 José Mozambique, Sociedade Limitada | Mot audited | Mozambique Construction - 100 - 142
San José Tecnolaglas Chile Lida. - (Sé;:;:)go de Chile Conslruction 999 - - 1
, . Development, construction and
lﬁzﬁgiiﬂﬁgdlnfmlmdm & Construction Nol audited New Dethi (India) operalion of Infrastructure - 99.99 0.01 1,851
Sanjose Mahavir S Buitdi
Privle Limitog preme Bufiding One Notandited | New Delhi(India) | Construction . 51 . .
San José Real Eslate Development, LLC Nol audited Delaware (USA) Real Eslale Developmenl - 100 - 394
San José Uruguay, S.A. Nol audited g;!ﬁg:;f; cramentn Industrialisation and Trade - 100 - 10
San Jose Energla y Medio Ambiente, S.A. Nol audited Pontevedra Energy production 99.99 0.01 - 4,039
Sefri Ingenieros Maroc, S.AR L., Not audited Morocco Engineering and instaltalions - 75 23 258
Sociedad Concesionaria Chile Tecnocontrol | Not audiled (Sé;::;:)go de Chile Infrastructure Concessions - 100 - 15,948
San Jose Constructora Chile Lida. Deloitie Chile ?Caﬂ:::)go de Chite Conslruction - 100 - 20
SJB Millroser :,:::E & Mullroser (Germany) | Construction 100 - - 730
. Deloitte Buenos Aires . -

Tecnoarte! Argenlina, S A. Argenlina (Argentina) Maintenance and Facililies - 100 - 23,465
Tecnocontrol Manenimiento, S.L.U, Nol audited Tres Cantos (Madrid) Maintenance and colleclion of public - 100 - 3

telephone services
Tecnocontrol Servicios, S.ALL Deloitte, S.L. | Tres Canlos (Madrid) | Mainlenance services - 100 - T
Tecnocontrol Sislemas de Segwridad, S.A.U. | Not audiled Tres Cantos (Madnid) | Maintenance of securily systems - 100 - 120

. Santiago d il

Teenwonirol Chile Lida. (C:i;:)gn o Chile Construclion 99.9 - - 1
Top Brands, S A. Nol audited Argenlina Trade - 65 - 195
Treody King, S.A.U. Not audited Madnd Trade and distribution of sport items - 100 1,515

Edition, produwclion, reproduclion
Udra Medios, S.A.U. Nol audited Ponlevedra and rel of books, papers, 100 - - 1,500

magazines and video
Udra Mexico S.A.de C.V. Nol audited Mexita Construclion company 100 - 9,165
Yision King 5.AU. (former Fashion King, . . Trade, distribution, import and N
SAU) Mot audiled Madnd export of clothes - 100 60
Xomal de Galicia, S.A. HNot awdited Galicia Press - 9273 127 5,653
Xomal Galinel, S A, Nol audiled A Corufia. Press - 100 - 1,100
Zivar, inveslimentos inmobiliarios C. Nol audited Ponlugal -Real Estate - 525 - 2,609
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Appendix Il

Associates accounted for using the equity method

% of voting rights controlled
by Paren( companles

Ownership cost
- Audit . . (Thousand of
Company company Address Activity Direct | Indireet Other Euros)
Corporacién San Bemat | Audihispana | Barcelona | Sharchelding - 28 - 4,205
SCR,SA
Desarrollo Urbanistico | Deloilte, Madrid Real Eslale - 24 459 725 23,341
Chamartin, §.A. S.L. Development
Fingano, S.A. - Uruguay Real Eslale - 10 - -
Development
Drilpen, S.A - Uruguay Real Eslale - 10 - -
Development
Vengano, S.A. - Uruguay Real Estale - 10 - -
Development
Panamerican Mall, S.A. KPMG Buenos Airgs | Real Estate - 20 80 17,914
(Argentina) | Developmenl
- Misiones Sa_le of any type of - 50 50 3,698
. - | mix farming product
C SA es?;lcl‘nsagl;eru and sale, rental and
fesea, 5.8- 3 consiruction of
Asuncion,
Paraguay urban and rural
property
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Appendix Il

1. Joint ventures:

Certificates
issuedfincome
Joint ventures Ownership % (100% JV) Status
CAMINO 100% - In progress
UTE ELECTROTECNO 90% - In progress
UTE EUGENIA MONTIIO 90% - In progress
JUIROGA 50% - In progress
PEDRIZAS 95% - In progress
BONAR 10% - In progress
UZQUIZA 0% - In progress
UTE SANTA MARTA MAGASCA 60% - In progress
JINOFRANQUEADO 60% - In progress
GUADALORCE 100% - In progress
NG. FORESTAL 60% - In progress
UTE IES BARRIO BAJO 80% - In progress
UTE CRUZ ROJA 100% - In progress
UTE CEJOYSA 60% - In progress
UTE TORRELAGUNA 50% - in progress
JTE HOSPITAL DE LUGO 50% . In progress
UTE VIVIENDAS DEHESA VIEJA 50% - In progress
"JTE HOSPITAL ALMANSA 100% - In progress
UTE DIPUTACION MALAGA 50% - In progress
UTE ALMANJAYAR 5% - In progress
JTE CASA DE NINOS 100% - In progress
UTE AL LANAVA 100% - In progress
JTE AEROPUERTO MENORCA 50% - In progress
UTE PROLONG AVDA ALVARO DOMEQ 100% - In progress
UTE ESTACION PINAR DEL REY 100% - In progress
JTE AVDA EUROPA JEREZ 100% - In progress
UTE LA GRANJA JEREZ 100% - In progress
JTE PISCINA PARLA 100% - In progress
UTE VIVIENDAS ALCOSA 100% - In progress
'JITE PABELLON CABANES 100% - In progress
UTE UMBRETE 100% - In progress
UTE CCB MALLORCA 55% - In progress
JTE EL PUERTO DE SANTA MARIA 100% - In progress
UTE AUTOVIA A-50 SALAMANCA 100% - In progress
JTE PUERTO DE LA ATUNARA 80% - In progress
UTE CEIP BEETHOVEN 100% - In progress
UTE ESCOLA BRESSOL 100% - In progress
| ESTEEA INGLESIAS
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’GE EIIDILLO VIVEROS INTEGRALES CSJ 60% - In progress
UTE AUTOVIA 45 ENCINAS REALES 70% - In progress
UTE ESTADI MUNICIPAL MONTCADA 100% - In progress
JTE EMBALSE CONTRERAS 50% - In progress
UTE CEIP $AN JOSE CALASANZ-BIGASTRO 100% - In progress
UTE CENTRO DE SALUD LUCERO EN MADRID 100% - In progress
UTE INGENIERIA INDUSTRIAL 50% - In progress
UTE HOSPITAL DEL VALLE DEL GUADIATO 100% 63 In progress
JTE HOSPITAL VALLE DE LOS PEDROCHES 100% - In progress
UTE URBANIZACION HOSPITAL GUADIX 100% - In progress
*JTE ESPE}O DE LA PARTICIPACION DE ALDAIA 100% - In progress
UTE PLATAFORMA AVE OCARA 70% 10 In propress
UTE ZONA COMERCIAL AEROPUERTO MENORCA 50% - In progress
UTE COLEGIO ALAMEDA DE OSUNA 65% - In progress
UTE AUTOVIA VERIN FRONTERA PORTUGUESA 50% - In progress
JJTE RONDA SUROESTE 50% - In progress
UTE EL TEJAR 70% - In progress
UTE ESCUELA UNIVERSITARIA DE MAGISTERIO 100% - In progress
UTE ESCUELA TECNICA SUPERIOR DE INGENIERIA - UV 100% - in progress
UTE HOTEL COLON SEVILLA 0% - In progress
JTE SAN JOSE EJIDILLO ZONAE 60% - In progress
UTE NAVE INDUSTRIAL VICALVARCO 60% - In progress
"JTE HOSPITAL DE GANDIA 70% - In progress
UTE HOSPITAL JUAN CANALEJO FASE 2 50% - In progress
UTE PALACIO JUSTICIA PATERNA 60% - In progress
UTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO IFEMA 60% - In progress
UTE ZONAS VERDES FERROL SAN JOSE EJIDILLO 60% - In progress
ITE REHABILITACION DEL TEATRO SAN FERNANDO 100% - In progress
CASTELL DE CASTELLS 70% - In progress
UTE ENCAUZAMIENTOS ARROYOS MALAGA 60% - In progress
UTE REHABILITACION POBOADO MINEIRC DE FONTAQ 100% - In progress
UTE CASCO HISTORICO CARTAGENA 60% - In progress
JTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO PASEO DE EUROPA 70% - In progress
UTE KULTUR ETXEA HONDARRIBIA 100% - In progress

JTE FACULTAD DE CIENCIAS 100% - In progress
UTE RADIODIAGNOSTICO HU.V.R. 50% - In progress
UTE PASEO MARITIMO ALGECIRAS 70% - In progress
UTE SAN JOSE-EBA CLINICA IMQ 100% - In progress
UTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO PLAZA CASTILLA 60% - In progress
JTE MIAMAN PONTE AMBIA 70% 3,349 En progress
UTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO YALLADOLID 60% 1,509 In progress
‘UTE EDIFIC AERONAUTIC SUPPLIERS VILLAGE 80% - In progress
UTE GUARD Y PABELLON CUBIERTO 75% - In progress
UTE HOSPITAL ALBACETE 371.5% - In progress
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[

EDIFICIO IKEA TELDE 55% - In progress
W88 UTE ETAP MONFORTLE DE LEMOS 50% 185 In progress
W89 UTE VILLANUEVA DE LA JARA 50% - In progress
JTE EDIFICIO BINTER TENERIFE 45% - In progress
UTE SAN JOSE CARTUJA NUEVO AMATE 100% - In progress
UTE HOSPITAL CRUZ ROJA BILBAQ 100% - In progress
UTE ESTACION INTERMODAL VITORIA 100% - In progress
UTE EDIFICIO INTERDEPARTAMENTAL 11 UIB 50% - In progress
UTE HUERTA DEL PRADO 60% - In progress
UTE JARDIN DE LAS PALABRAS 60% - In progress
UTE CAMPUS CIENTIFICO DE LINARES 80% 3,065 In progress
UTE CONST SAN JOSE Y CYM YANEZ SA (Edificio Lanzadera) 100% - In progress
UTE DESTRIANA 60% - In progress
UTE SAN JOSE EJIDILLO D 60% 108 In propress
UTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO DASOTEC 57.5% 90 In progress
JTE MOB Y EQUIP EDIF TERMINAL AEROP GRAN CANARIA 60% 157 In progress
UTE RESIDENCIAS REAL MADRID 50% 617 In progress
"JTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO IFEMA 2 60% 121 In progress
UTE BADAIA 70% - In progress
UTE EDAR GANDARIO 50% 1,101 In progress
JTE BENIGANIM 50% 1,132 In progress
UTE SAN JOSE EL EJIDILLO XARDINS FERROL, 60% 1,016 In progress
JTE REFORMA IES SANTA TERESA 85% [,278 In progress
UTE INSTALACIONES TERMICAS HOSPITAL CABRA 100% 586 In progress
UTE ACCESO IRCIO ACTIVIDADES 50% 1,467 In progress
UTE FEDERACION FUTBOL CEUTA 90% 399 In progress
UTE PARQUE NORTE 60% 79 In progress
JTE EL. PRADO 50% - In progress
UTE CIUDAD CULTURA EDIFICACION 50% - In progress
WORLD TRADE CENTER 20% - In progress
UTE CIUDAD DE LA LUZ 20% - In progress
UTE METRO LIGERO MADRID 0% - In progress
JTE HOSPITAL ASTURIAS 43% 53 In progress
UTE VALDEBEVAS LOTE 6 50% - In progress
'¥43 UTE PROYECTO Y OBRAS DE LA EDAR DE ARANJUEZ NORTE 50% - In progress
UTE EL REGUERON 33.34% - In progress
UTE W92 externa VARIANTE PAJARES LOTE SUR 60% 11,395 In progress
X07 UTE COLEGIOS DOS HERMANAS 50% 33 In progress
UTE REGADIO PARAMO BAJO 50% - In progress
JTE PASARELA PUENTE DE LOS FRANCESES 50% - In progress
UTE ANILLO NORTE ESTACION DELICIAS 62.5% - In progress
JTE ENSANCHE BARAJAS 50% - In progress
UTE HOSPITAL VIRGEN PUERTO PLASENCIA 81.815% - In progress
UTE PARQUE DE BOMBEROS 51% - In progress
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I UTE CENTRO LUDICO-ACUATICO EN MONTECERRAO 50% - In progress
UTE CENTRO INVESTIGACION MIERES 60% - In progress
UTE AMPLIACION AEROPUERTO DE VIGO 50% 2,255 In progress
JTE EDIFICIO MULTIUSOS TELDE 60% - In progress
UTE RECREC. AEROP. ALICANTE 50% - In progress
EMTE SERVICE SAU Y TECNOCONTROL SERVICIOS UTE 18/1982
VIANTENIMIENTO P S MAR 50% - In progress
UTE INST.ELECTRICAS NOVO HOSP.LUGO 34% - In progress
UTE INST.COMUNICAC, NOVO HOSP.LUGO 50% - In progress
UTE HOSP.VERGE CINTA 100% - In progress
UTE TRAUMA V.HEBRON 100% - In progress
JTE UNIVERSIDAD DE SANTIAGO 30% - In progress
UTE DESALADORA EL MOJON 25% - In progress
JTE POLIGENERACION CERDANYOLA DEL VALLES 95% - In progress
UTE GSC-TECNOCONTROL PLANTA COLMENAR 50% - In progress
UTE TECNO-ELECNOR CABILDO INSULAR 50% - In progress
UTE TECNO-MOELCA AE.FUERTEVENTURA 55% - In progress
UTE IMHUCA HOSPITAL DE OVIEDO 36.67% 621 In progress
JTE TERMINAL SUD CLIMA 50% - In progress
TORRE IBERDROLA _ 30% 18 In progress
UTE CENTRAL ELECTRICA AE. SANTIAGO 60% - In progress
UTE MOV.TIERRAS, IKEA GC FASE 11 55% - In progress
UTE CYMITEC SERV.CENTRALES CIUDAD DE LA CULTURA SANTIAGO 50% 3 In progress
JTE O/ PARQUE LINEAL RIVAS 75% - In progress
UTE ARROYO DE LA VEGA AMPLIACION EDAR 50% - In progress
JTE NUEVA TERMINAL AEROP.DE BARCELONA (CEN) 33.33% - In progress

Total 31,002
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GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Directors’ Report
for year 2014

1. Situation of the Company

1.1. Organisational Structure

Grupo SANJOSE is arranged as a group of companies operating in different sectors. Thus, there are four business
lines of activity which may be clearly differentiated, although there are also olher minor lines of aclivity (trade,
stockbreeding, agriculiure, etc.) with less signilicance for the Group:

Y

OTROS |§

SANJOSE ﬁﬁ) SANJOSE | ) SANJOSE ) SANJOSE

CONSTRUCTORA | 1A MO RELIAREA tseacia v w1010 amsrnee | CONTLIIONIS ¥ 1E@ LI

Q)

The top management agent of the Company is the Board of Direclors, responsible for the sirategic management of
the corporation, the allocation of resources and corporate contro), as well as accountancy and financiat stalements.
All this, in sound collaboration with the non-member Directors of the Company.

in the context of the agreement of the Group refinancing, signed on December 30, 2014, the Real Eslate Division of
the group has been classified by the Directors as asset held for sale assets on the consolidated balance sheet al
year-end 2014, which according to the normal development of the deadlines sel out in this agreement, will be sold
during the year 20115 to the financia! creditors of the Group, as part of the compensalion for the syndicaled loan.

4.2. Performance

The business of Grupo SANJOSE is designed with the aim of crealing a diversified group regarding both, geographic
distribution and lines of aclivily as a way of being less exposed to the risk inherent to a single aclivity. The Group has
a clear international vocation, becoming increasingly important activities developed overseas, with a higher
significance in the turnover of the Company.

Regarding geographical distribulion of the Group, together with Spain (main business markel), main international
markels in year 2014 were Porlugal, Chile, India, Cape Verde, Argenlina, Middle East and Peru, among other.
Tender purposes of the Group have exlended to other countries, where inleresting business opportunities have been
studied.

The basic slrategies which characlerise the Group can be summarised as follows:

Industry diversification and internationalisation as the cornerstones of stabilily and growth.

Integrated project management, offering a global service.

Maintaining the level of shareholder independence.

Invesiment in human capital formalion and culling-edge technology to drive development.

Focus on companies with significant strategic importance, substantial returns on investiment and a marked

social component. ESTE SR a\;hlb E5IA%
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»  Priorily to solvency and profitability over growth policies
The company has the following objectives by aclivily:

Construction: To continue influencing the process of regional diversification, combined with the search for greater
efficiencies in cost structure. The clear objective of the Group is to become an established mullinational companies
group, maintaining required quality requirements and remain in compliance wilh strict deadlines, likewise increasing
internalional presence in countries with sustainable growih, high economic solvency which present interesting
business opporiunities. Also, regarding that lhe national economy is recovering and due to the improvement of the
macroeconomic forecasts, the group wants to promole the new business opportunilies arising within the national
territory.

Real estate: Despite the difficult situation in the sector, the Group seeks to confinue the sale of its promotions, while
retaining the scope of minimum performance standards and increase efficiency in the occupation of the leased
premises. This division of the Group, is currently commilted for sale lo the syndicaled financial credilors of the Group,
as part of the refinancing agreement signed on December 30, 2014.

Concessions: Group SANJOSE is positioned this business line internationally. Notably Chile Hospitals, whose
complelion and commissioning for operation during 15 years, occurred in the second half of 2013.

Energy: In addition to the mulligeneralion plant of Cerdanyola del Vallés, the Grupo has twe wind farms in Uruguay
wilh a total power of 80 MW. Al the end of year 2043 began the conslruction of the first park, nearly ended in 2014,
while the second has begun begin during the year 2014, wilh the forecast to be compleled in the first half of 2015.
These projects ensure a return to long-term recurring revenue,

The main purpose of the Company is to balance the join revenue of the company with a higher significance of
international business, boosting the development of couniries where we operate, as well as searching new business
opporlunities and increasing the concessions and services division.

2. Evolution of the market

2.1. Market performance

The following lable reflecls the main features of lhe construction sector before and after the current economic
situation, which was slarted at the end of 2007, and the morlgage crisis of international financial markets:

From 1998 From the second semester 2007
to the first semester 2007 to present
¢ FEconomic boom * Change: slowdown in GDP growth and
¢ Economic stability within the UE employment.
s Avallability of cash and credits: fast growth + Instability within the UE
due to heavy cheap ineptness ¢ Restrictions to credit. Lack of liquidity .
+ High demand + High offer,
+ lLow interest rates + Increased cost of banking financing. High
High level of public expenditure Interest rates
s Limited public expenditure, Significant

reduction of invitations to tender by Public
Administratlons,

All this has resulted in a significant reduction of activily since 2007 up to now, nof only in Spain but in Europe in
general.
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Year 2013 involved a turning point for the domestic economy. The aggregale annual change in 2013 is estimaled at -
1.2%, in the third quarter the quarterly rate of GDP has increased by 0.1% and in the fourlh quarter the eslimated
increase is 0.3% (data from INE), technically out of the recession. Likewise, during the four quarters of year 2014 the
eslimated growlh was 0.4%, 0.6%, 0.5% and 0.7% respectively (dafa provided by INE), following the increasing
frend, until reaching 2% GDP, over the expectations of the Banco de Espafia (1.3% for 2014 and 2% for 2015) and of
the IMF (1.3% for 2014 and 1.7% for 2015).

Gross Domestic Product (GPD)

T 412
Volumen encadenado ref, 2008
Dalos comegidos efecto calendario

Dala: INE

The economic activity shows signs of recovery since the second half of last year, yel lhese indications are not
enough for the country to abandaon the crilically status for the time being. In any case, Spain is beginning to pop out of
the crisis, with an increasing recovery, but it does not get rid of something like a depression in the labour market, wilh
unemployment rates over 20% at least unlil the end of following year, The European Commission has dramatically
improved the outlook for the Spanish economy, which shall undergo a steady increase of 2.3% in 2015, representing
the largesl upward revision of the eurozone.

By componenits, domestic demand conlinued ils expansionary course from July to Seplember for the third
conseculive quarter, conlribuling 2.5 percentage points to annual GDP growth (lhree tenths higher than the previous
quarter), while net foreign demand maintains its negalive conlribution, draining 0.9 poi@tgl-égr,@‘: ual. growth, [Jomestic
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demand is strengthened by the recovery of privale consumption and investment. Demand-despite the sensational
internal devaluation, prospects for recovery and the rebound of the employment feed consumplion-, improving
financial conditions and plummeling oi,l explain this improvement, although the external sector is the bad news :
moderated ils contribution to growth.

Also, recent leading indicators compiled by the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD),
reinforced the idea of growth. The experls of this international organizalion, which groups 34 industrialized countries,
summarized data used to anlicipate shorl-term progress in the economic activity of a country in the next six to nine
months. In the case of Spain, elected by the OECD indicators are the ulilization of industrial capacily, produclion in
the construclion seclor, service sector prices, stock prices and vehicle registration. According to the October data,
distributed by OECD, growth prospecls of ihe Spanish economy continues to accelerate.

OECD Indicator
105 — Mayor que 100: la actividad econémica
creceré por encima de su tendencla a largo

104 — plazo en los proximos seisnueve meses

103 —

Menor que 100: [a aclividad econdmica

96 — “ crecera por debajo de st tendencla a largo
plazo en los proximos seis-ueve meses
95 1 1 L]
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

The synthesis of these leading indicalors resuls in a value of 102.67, the highest in the last three decades. When the
synthelic indicator is above 100, and it grows, clearly anlicipates an expansion stage, above lhe long-term polential
arowth is allributed to an economy. That does nol mean that GDP will grow more than in the past decade (belween
3% and 4% annually), but in 2015 clearly exceed potential growth is eslimated to Spain (between 1% and 2% per
annum), decreased as a result of Lhe crisis.

Impact of construclion within the overall economy of Spain is very significanl. Its imporlance has been increasingly
reduced over the last years.

Its importance lies in the importani effect of the construction sector on the whole economy, due lo the effect on
intermediate suppliers and because il provides the country with the necessary infrasiructure to boest the economy,
contribuling to increase productivily and long-lerm growth capacily of the economy in general.

The following graph shows the GVA (gross value added) contribuled by the construction seclor in Spain to total GDP
(gross domestic producl), and its annual variation rale (Ministry of Economy indicalor);

Construction GVA

Valor o sohre el total

2011 2012 2013 2011 2012 2013
Espafia 91.132,0 80.827,0 73.,203,0 9,5 8,6 7.8
Zona euro 501.966,0 492.112,0 478,620,0 5.9 3.8 5,6
Unlén Europea 686.051,0 679.564,0 662,212,0 6,0 5.9 5,7
Unidadest Millones de euros. OV Treer, DA HOLETAS

raloi AN BP RSNt te B
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it can be seen as lhis seclor has a negative impact on economic growth in receni limes. After falling 9.2% lasl year,
with a forecast of a decline of 3.3% for this year. The good news is that the Ministry of Economy estimates that
construclion will grow 3.1% in 2015, which will be accompanied by a slight increase in public investments.

The turnaround of the Spanish economy has been well seen from the outside. The risk premium (the difference with
the Spanish bond in len years tine compared lo lhe German title wilhin the same period, the more common index to
assess risk premium}), which had already fallen to 220 poinls at the end of 2013, fell in January 2014 below the
psychological barrier of 200 points, standing at year end at 107 points, recording a decline of 52% and close to the
shortest dislance since 14 May 2010 when it reached 108.4 basis points.

This has been reflected in an increased of foreign investment, which closed 2013 data, has resulled in an increase in
iolal net investment, which reached the figure of € 15.398 million, which represented an increase one 598, 1% {Dala
from the Ministry of Economy) with respect to 2012, The investment flow s concentrating mainly on four seclors:
finance and insurance, manufacluring, real estale and conslruction. These four activilies collected 57% of the
investment in 2013. The productive foreign investment in Spain in the past year amounted to 15,500 million euros
according to preliminary government eslimates. The figure is slightly lower than in 2013, although il is good,
considering an unfavorable international context wilh the collapse of oil prices, the apprecialion of the dollar against
the euro or the conflicts in the Middle East and Ukraine. Spanish forecast points to a decline of 3%, not knowing the
final data for December, which is positive after the negative context of EU investment in the first two quarters of 2014,
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Investments have been made in both real eslate assets {(most nolably a marked trend of Asian investors, who spent
50 million eures in Spain in 2013 and only in the first half of 2014, already had invested 368 million. As reflected in
the purchase of Edificio Espafia in Madrid- data EL PAIS), and Spanish companies, taking significant positions in
listed companies, belonging lo the IBEX35.

In order lo consolidate the economy's new lrend, aspects such as employment, public debt and public deficit shall be
improved.

With regard to employment, in year 2013 unemployment fell below 26.03% in December. The decline has continued
in 2014, wilth an unemployment rate standing at 23.70%. The decline has been accompanied by an increase in the
employed populalion of 2.53% (dala INE), which posilively reinforces this decline:

LABOR MARKET IN 2014
- Employed Unemployment rale aom
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This has resulled in a decrease in the number of unemployed, bringing the tolal number of unemployed in the 5,458
thousands of pepople (Dato INE). In addition, the construclion sector, the main industry of the Group, is the seclor
with the largest annual decline in the unemployment rate, down 23.36% over 2014

The public debt reached at the end of the third quarler of 2014, 96.8% of GDP, which is the highest figure in the

couniry's history. It has increased by 5% compared o that recorded al lhe end of 2013, having exceeded cne trillion

Euros. We must clarify that the recent big increase in debt is the culcome of the change in lhe calculation

methodology, which undergoes the incorporaticn of some public companies, which until now were not taken into
consideration for being lechnically considered market companies.
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In terms of public deficit, in the absence of knowing the final dala, the Government through the Secrelary of State for
Economic and Business Supporl, has assured that Spain will close 2014 with a percenlage lower than 5.5% of GDP,
meeting the farget set by the European Commission, 5.8%. Siill, one should not lose sight of the goal set by lhe
European Commission of 4.2% for 2015 and 3% in 2016. Spain musl make a severe adjusiment to reach said
objeclive.

Spain's CPI in 2014 stood at -1.4%, which is the lowest annual rate, This raises fears of possible deflalion not only in
Spain but in the euro area which should monitor closely the European Cenlral Bank, which could lead to a rise in
interest rales. The drop in prices is due fo the drop in oil prices as well as a series of several years with low
consumption levels, although now increasing in the second half of 2014. Yet companies from many seclors are
reacling wilh the same prices content to increase their share.

Inflation
Varlaclén anual, en % = Eapafla = Media de la zona suro

53

-

al___

2007 | 2008' | 2000 | 2040 | 2061 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2016

Fuentes: INE y Ewostat. EL PAIS

Although there is slill a long way to go lo regain full economic aclivily in Spain, recovery is already a fact and this is
confirmed by the IMF which has estimated for early 2015 a growth forecast of 2% for Spain and 1.8% for lhe year
2015 and 2016.

As for the euro area, the forecast is 1.2% and 1.4% for the years 2015 and 2016, respectively, with Germany and
Spain leading the recovery.

The IMF predicls thal the global economy will grow in 2015 belween 3.5% and 3.7%, which represent a loss of 2/10
of its previous forecast, due lo the downward revision of the expanding emerging economies.

The growlh forecast for 2015 according lo lhe IMF is 2.8% for the Middle East; 1.3% for Latin America (waiting
rebound to 2.3% in 2016), 6.3 %% for India and 5.2% for the area of Indonesia. These projections highlighl the
successful internalionalization policy of SANJOSE Group.

Given this macroeconomic situation, the Group remains the basic lines of ils activily, the slrive for lhe improvement in
profitabilily, being flexible in adapting its struclure to the realily in Spain today, and also strengthening its intention to
present a business with a diversificalion and increasing internalionalization. At year-end 2014, the volume of foreign
business slood at 57% of total group turnover compared fo 49% for the year 2013.

The main national markets in which the Group operates, continue to be heavily affected by the crisis, although the
beginning of the economic recovery is starling to be fell:

» In the conslruclion sector, in 2013 the tendering of public works amounted to EUR 13,11 1imillion of Euros
(SEOPAN dafa) which means an increase of 43.4% over 2013 (9,142 millon of Euros). Though the data is
positive, there is slill a long way to go to reach EUR 46,620 million thaf was in 2006.

« During 2014, prices in real estate decreased reaching an accumulaled price adjustment of 35.6% (dala INE)
since the beginning of the crisis (2007}, In 2014, the volume of housing sales increased by 19.6% over sales
occurred in the year 2013, reaching 376,870 transactions according to the General Council of Notaries data.
The index of housing prices (IPV) according to the INE, with data up to the third quarter of 2014, showed an
improvement of 1.6% from the IPV at year-end 2013. In absolute terms, and in January 2015 has ended wilh

a decline of 2.7% in the average price of the finished housing (new and used)., THe figaré js below the:
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of January 2014 and is the first time since June 2008, which lowers less lhan 3%, according to Tinsa index
iMIE General and Major Markets, which forecasls the gradual slabilization of the average price.

The SANJOSE group operates in sectors, countries and socio-economic and legal environments which involve the
assumption of different levels of risk caused by these determining factors. Thus, it confrols such risks in order to
avoid involving a loss of profitability of its shareholders or creating an issue for ils cuslomers. As control tools, is has
instruments to idenlify risks well in advance or avoid or minimise the same.

SANJOSE Group has increased its portfolio to reach 1,918 million euros, ensuring their future both short, with the

execution of work, and long lerm, with concessions and energy projects that will contribute recurring revenues,

2.2. Main figures of the GROUP

Next are enclosed the main consolidated figures of Grupo SANJOSE for year 2014:

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
Dec. 14 Dec. 13

Amount % Amount % Var.
Intangible assets 20,311 0.8% 18,564 0.8% 9.4%
Property, plant and equipment 51,955 2.2% 54,848 2.2% -5.3%
Real slale investmenis 3,082 0.2% 487,349 19.8% -90.2%
Investments accounted 59,552 25% 106,403 4.3% -44.0%
Long lerm finantial investmenls 171,441 7.1% 181,636 7.4% -56%
Deferred laxes assels 50,539 2.1% 199,003 8.1% -74 6%
Goodw il on consolidation 9,984 13,207 0.5% -24 4%
TTOTAL NON-GURRENT ASSETS -367,664 1,061,010 43.0% 5
Non-curtent assets held for sale 1432728 596% 0 0.0%
Invenlories 77,402 3.2% 864,224  35.1%
Trade and other receivables 241,311 10.0% 311,672 126%
Other short term finantial invesiments 82,883 3.4% 68,758 2.8%
Cash and cash equivalenls 203,260 8.5% 159,681 6.5%
TOTAL'CURRENTASSETS " = i 2,037,584 040% 1,408,235  670%
TOTALASSETS - 2,465,245 1000% -
Thousands of Euros

Dec. 14 Dec. 13

Amount % Amount % Var.
Equity atiributable lo shareholders of the parent 18,243 0.8% 50,880 2.1% -64.1%
Minority inlerest 24,302 16,299 06% 58.8%
TOTAL EQUITY 42,5465 0 66,479 . 2.7% B67%
Long term provsions 20,799 0.9% 58,787 2.4% -64.6%
Long term finantial liabilities 373,386 16.5% 222,320 9.0% 67.9%
Derivative financial instrumenls 31,697 1.9% 30,137 1.2% 5.2%
Deferred laxes liabilities 28,982 1.2% 52,686 2.1% -45.0%
Other long lerm liabiliteis 4,313 0.2% 8,211 0.3% -47.5%
TTOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES = % . P ASOATT L 194% 372,449 - 154% 7 234%
Liabilities related to non current assels held for sale 1432728 596% 0 0.0%
Short lerm provisions 42 925 1.6% 31,9277 1.3% 34.2%
Short term finantial liabilities 76,3654 3.2% 1,592,246 646% -85.2%
Payables to related companies 1,766 0.1% 9,892 0.4% -B2.1%
Trade accounts and other current payables 349,743 14.5% 392810  159% -11.0%
“TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES o G U,903,5267 C19A% 2,026,925 82.2% BA% -]
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES =707 2,405,248 100.0% 2,465,245, : 100.0% ;{ CRia2A%
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Translation inte English of consolidated management repori Jor the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of

discrepancy, the Spanish langvage version prevails

Management Equity: has been incorporated under this heading the figure of EUR 100 million for the equity loan of
"Grupo Empresarial San José, SA", being this reclassification the only difference between this balance management
and balance conlained in the states summarized consolidated financial SANJOSE Group,

Consolidated income statement:

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
Dec. 14 - Dec. 13 Var.(%)

Revenue 465,082 525,964 -11.6%
Operating cash flow (EBITDA) 33,828 32,934 27%

EBITDA margin 4.3% 7.2%
Ordinary operating profit (EBIT) 11,422 24,888 -54 1%

EBIT margin 31% 3.4%

Earnings before lax of continued operations 7123 10,544 -32.4%
Income Tax -49,603 -5,627 --
Piofit {Loss) from continuing cperalions -42 A80 5017 --
Profit (Loss) from discontionued operations -80,202 -163,599 -51.0%
Consolidated result -122,682 -168,582 -22.6%
Minority Interest -2,628 -3,340 -21.3%
Nef profit atiributable to the Parent Company -120,054 -1565,242 -22.7%

Revenue

SANJOSE income of the Group for 2014 stood at 465.1 million euros, representing a reduction of 11.6% over the

previous year.

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
Revenues by activity Dec. 14 Dec. 13 Var.(%)

Construction 381,671 s82% 427125 s8m -10.6%
Real estate and property developmenl 32,229 ™ 44255 g% -27.2%
Energy 11321 2% 11,686 2% -2.3%
Concessions and sendces 41,468 9% 108,284 2m -61.7%
Adjustment and other -1,607 o% 65,287 -p%

TOTAL 465,082 525,964 11.6%

By line aclivity, the main changes recorded are; Concessions and services (-61.7%), for the complelion and delivery
of the Hospitals of Chile; Construclion (-10.6%) due to the restrictions on {he local market both in bidding for public
works and private, as well as the delay in the implementalion of already conlracted projects; Real eslate (-27.2%), by

the slowdown in the local market and price adjuslment.
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Translation inte English of consolidated management repor! for the year ending 31 December 2013 originaily issied in Spanish. in the eveni of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
Revenues by geography Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.(%}
National 201,987 4% 270,776 9% -25.4%
Infernational 263,095 5% 265,188 om 31%
TOTAL 465,082 525964 -11.6%

By geographical area, and as a consequence of the sirategy defined by the Group based on external growth, the
figures for the year 2014 established once more the good performance of the International markel with an increase of
3.1% over 2013, increasing its weight on total lurnover of the Group up fo 57%, from the 49% thal represented in the
year 2013.

This positive trend of sustained international growth in recent periods, mederales the impact of the public tender
slowdown in Spain, where revenues fell 25.4% in the period.

Profits:

Grupo SANJOSE’s EBITDA for year 2014 amounted to EUR 33.8 million, or 7.3% of annual revenue.

Despite the reduced turnover, it is seen an improved profitability over 2013 of 2.7%, which is especially imporiant in
the construclicn business where EBITDA increased 64,2% and it is explained by an improvement in margins in the
conslruction business policy of implementation cost conlrol of the Group.

The breakdown of EBITDA by sector is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
EBITDA by activity ‘Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var. (%)

Construction 18,123 54% 11,034 24% 64.2%
Real estate and properiy development 10,485 am 13,335 40% -21.4%
Energy 2816 8% 2630 8% 7.1%
Concessions and senvices 3684 1= 8,368 25% -56.0%
Adjustment and other -1,280 4% 2433 ™%

TOTAL 33,828 32,934 2.7%

The nel operaling profit (EBIT) of SANJOSE Group for the year 2014 amounted to 11.4 million euros, representing a
margin of 2.5% compared to the year revenues.

This figure is affected by the EUR 16.9 million recorded as provisions and wrile-downs lhat Grupo SANJOSE applies
through the application of criteria of maximum prudence regardless of the outcome of lhe same. Such provisions
have not had effect on the cash flows of the group.

Profit/(Loss) before taxes from continuing operations wilhout considering such provisions of Grupo SANJOSE would
involve a profit of EUR 24.1 million.

Grupo SANJOSE has registered in the year 2014 EUR 49.6 miltion as "Corporate tax”. This impact that is timely, and
thal has nol affecled the Treasury of the period, has been generated as a result of the new corporate lax law passed
al the end of the year. In this way, it involved the update of reported tax credits and the accommodation of deferred
taxes. ‘

Profit/{Loss) after taxes from continuing activities of Grupo SANJOSE for year 2014 amounts fo EUR - 42.5
milliort.
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Translation info English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish langitage version prevails

Net equity

Net equity of the company at 31 December 2014 amounted to EUR -57.4 million; main variation is due to profits/(loss)
recorded for the year.

Al 31 December 2013, Nel Equity of the Group consists of 65.0 miltion of shares, which implies a participalion of -
0.88 € per share. In the Company Equily.

Stock market information is available on Nole 9.

Backlog

Grupo SANJOSE's future backlog at 31 December 2014 amounts to EUR 1,918 million, which represents 39.4%
decrease regarding year 2013 (EUR 3,164 miltion).

Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
BACKLOG by segment Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.(%)
Construction 878 46% 1,167 2371% -24.7%
Civil works 203 1% 369 12% -45.1%
Non residential building 638 2% 746 24% -14.4%
Residential building 31 2% 39 1% -19.8%
Induslrial 6 0% 13 0% -55.4%
Eneray 718 37% 803 25% -10.6%
Concessions and services 322 1% 1,194 38% -73.1%
Mainlenance 33 2% 30 1% 8.8%
Concessions 289 15% 1,164 37% -75.2%
TOTAL BACKLOG 1,918 100% 3,164 100% -39.4%

Thousands of Furos

Grupo SANJOSE
BACKLOG by geography Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.(%)
National 904 47% 209 29% -0.6%
International 1,014 3% 2,255 71% -65.0%
TOTAL BACKLOG _ 1,918 3,164 -39.4%
Thousands of Euros
Grupo SANJOSE
BACKLOG by client Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.(%)
Public client 1,232 64% 1,976 62% -37.6%
Private client 686 26% 1,189 238% -42.4%
TOTAL BACKLOG 1,918 3,164 -39.4%

The amoun relating to the concession agreement "Rulas del Loa" amounting to EUR 172 has been deducled from
the total contract backlog for the construction aclivity. Despite being an existing award of the SANJOSE Group, the
company understands that, through the applicalion of cileria of maximum prudence, the final figures of this
agreement shall not be disclosed unlil the effective start of the project. .
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Translation into English of consolidated management repori for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish, In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

The amount refating to the concession agreement "Rutas del Loa" amounting to EUR 855 has been deducted from
{he tolal contract backlog for the concession aclivity. Despite being an existing award of the SANJOSE Group, the
company understands thal, lhrough the application of criteria of maximum prudence, the final figures of this
agreement shall not be disclosed until the effeclive start of the project.

2.3, Analysis by activity
Construction

This line of activily has generated revenues for EUR 381.7 million during year 2014, representing a 10.6% reduction
compared to the same period of the previous year. This reduclion focuses on lhe domestic markel, while the
constiuction aclivity of the group within internalional markets continues to grow.

EBITDA for year 2014 stands at EUR 18.1 million, notably improving the figure for year 2013, which represents a
64.2% Improvement in lhe profitability of this line of activity, irend that the Group considers sustainable in the coming
periods.

Thousands of Euros

Grupo SANJOSE

CONSTRUCTION Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.{%}

Revenue 381,671 427,126 -10.6%

Eamings before inlerest, taxes, D&A (EBITDA) 18,123 11,034 64.2%
EBITDA margin 4.7% 7.1%

Earnings before interest and taxes {(EBIT) 8,448 876 864.7%
BBIT margin 2.2% 5.6%

Earnings before taxof conlinued operations 1,887 2,827 -33.3%

Backlog {millions of euros) 878 1,167 -24.7%

The revenue composilion of Grupo SANJOSE's construction operalions, classified by main project type and
geographic area, is as follows:

Thousands ol Euwog

DETAIL OF CONSTRUCTION REVENUES National Internac. Total
Civil works 23846 B 9,279 4w 33,125 o%
Non residentlial buitding 118431  76% 213,793 os% 332,223 7%
Resldenlial buitding 3983 % 309 = 7079 2%
Industrial 9243 % 0 o% 9,243 2%

TOTAL 156,603  41% 226,168 s9% 381,671

Conslruction revenue at international level stands for year 2014 amounts fo EUR 226.2 miillion, with an increase of
8.8% compared to the same period in 2013, and represents 59% of the tolal of this line of activily {in year 2013 it
amounted to 49%).

This trend will continue in the coming years due to the international character of the contract backlog and the
significant amount of inlernational tenders which SANJOSE Coanstruclora is participating in through its branches and
subsidiaries in more than 20 countries. _




Translation into English of consolidated management repori for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issned in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

Real Estate

Wilhin this line of activity are included figures relaling to he real estale business controlled by Grupo SANJOSE
regardless the sub-group San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios.

As mentioned at the beginning of this repori, on 30 December 2014 Grupo SANJOSE reached an agreement with a
pool of funding enlities whereby San Jos¢ Desarrollos Inmobitiarios will be taken conlrol over throughout year 2015.
For this reason, the assets and liabilities of this sub-group have been classified under the balance sheet as "Non-
current assets held for sale" and "Liabilities related to non-current assets held for sale" while the net
conlribution of the sub-group to the income statement is recorded under “Profit/{Loss) from discontinued
operations™

Revenue for year 2014 stood at EUR 32.2 million, which represents a decrease of 27.2% compared fo year 2013.

EBITDA amounted to EUR 10.5 million and involves a 21.4% reduction compared to that obtained in the same period
of the previous year.

Thousands of Ewos
Grupo SANJOSE

REAL ESTATE AND PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.{%)
Rewenue 32,229 44 255 -27.2%
Earnings before interesl|, taxes, DSA(EBITDA) 10,485 13,335 -21.4%

EBITDA margin 32.5% 30.1%
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 10,748 18,911 -43.2%

BBIT margin 33.3% 42.7%

Earnings before laxof continued operations 12,656 20,573 -38.5%

Grupo SANJOSE has carried oul a reassessment of assels of the real eslate division al the end of the semester by
an independent experl.

Gross Assels Value (GAV) atising from said analysis shows EUR 251.9 miltion, being the detait by type of asset as
noted down below:

Thousands ¢f Euros

GAYV adjust at %participation Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.(%)
Lands 98550 a9% 102,712 42% -4.1%
Buildings under consfruction 21319  e% 11,248 5% 89.5%
Buildings 32,252 % 38,270 % -15.7%
Real slate investments 81589 am% 74,021  30% 10.2%
Property, plant and equipment 18,179 1% 18,222 % -0.2%

TOTAL 251,889 244,473 3.0%

(") K doesn’Linchude the value of the investee DUCH (Operac. Chamarlin)

Energy
Net revenue for year 2014 amounts to EUR 11.3 million.

The EBITDA margin of this business line of aclivily for year 2014 stands at 24.9%, improving the one obtained in the
same period of year 2013, what represents stabilily and recurrence.

The result is affected by the provisions made as a resull of the repayment of expenses aclivated in projecls awarded
to the group in this line of activity which, however, are not generating revenues yel.  ¢girr
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Translation infe English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issied In Sponish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

Grupo SANJOSE has on this line of aclivily conlracted revenues amounting to EUR 718 million, which are
materialised as higher activity of the group in a period of approximately 20 years.

Thousands of Euros

Grupo SANJOSE
ENERGY Dic. 14 Dic. 13 Var.{%)
Revenue 11,321 11,586 -2.3%
Earnings before inferest, taxes, D&A (EBITDA) 2,816 2,630 71%
EBITDA margin 24.9% 20.1%
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) -665 1,100 -160.5%
EBIT margin -5.9% 11.4%
Earnings before tax of continued operations -1,475 179 -924.7%
Backlog (millions of euros) 718 803 -10.6%

Concessions and Services

Nei revenue for year 2014 stands at EUR 41.5 million, which represent a decrease of 61.7% compared {o the same
period in 2013,

EBITDA amounts lo EUR 3.7 million, with a margin of 8.9% versus 7.7% in the previous year. The decrease in
income compared to year 2013 is juslified by the completion of EI Carmen Dr. Luis Vatenlin Ferrada Hospital in
Maipu and the Metropolitan Clinical Hospital Dr. Eloisa Diaz Insunza in Florida, both in Chile.

Thousands of Fuos
Grupo SANJOSE
CONCESSIONS AND SERVICES Dic. 14 Dlc. 13 Var.(%)
Rewvenue 41,468 108,284 -61.7%
Earnings before interest, laxes, D&A (EBITDA) 3,684 8,368 -56.0%
EBITDA maygin 8.9% 271.3%
Eamings before interest and taxes (EBIT) -3,272 6,856 -147.7%
EBIT margin -7.9% 26.8%
Earmnings before tax of continued operations -387 -12,885 -97.0%
Backlog {(millions of euros) : 322 1,194 -73.1%

At 2014- year end, the sales portfolio of the group in this line of aclivity amounts to EUR 322 million.

The amount relating to the concession agreement "Rutas del Loa" amounling to EUR 855 has been deducted from
the total conlract backlog for the concession activily. Despite being an existing award of the SANJOSE Group, The
Company understands that, based on the applicalion of criteria of maximum prudence, lhe final figures of this
agreement shall not be disclosed unlil the effective start of the projecl.

2.3 Average payment period to suppliers

The Group has paid to its suppliers during lhe year 2014 with an average period of 62 days. This figure exceeds in
two days lhe legal average period established by Law 15/2010 and its amendment of 2013 (60 days, as lhe Company
has payment agreemenls with its suppliers), as a result of punclual payments exceeding this period and whose delay
it is due lo the overall operational for certain payments of the Company. However, as the Group has this punciual
payments identified, it will lry to reduce the management time of those payments that result in specific and minimum
excesses, adapling in the fulure such payments lo legal deadline.
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Transtation into English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally isswed in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

2.4. Information on events relating to the environment and to human capital

In view of the business aclivities carried on by the Group companies, they do not have any environmentat liability,
expenses, assets, provisions or conlingencies that might be material with respect to their equily, financial position
and resulls.

The Group's human resources policy consists basically of maintaining and hiring commilled and knowledgeable
teams with a high degree of specialisalion, capable of generaling new business opporiunilies and offering the best
customer service.

In addition, specialised training in each business has been strengthened in order to improve the Group's processes
and safely levels.

3. Liquidity and capital resources

Liquidity

The Group pursues the prudent management of the liquidity risk based on the maintenance of sufficient cash and
markelable securilies, availability of financing through s sufficient level of commitled credit facilities and sufficient

capacity to seltle market posilions. The Company calculates ils cash requirements through a 12-month cash budget.

Treasury is administered centrally in order to opfimise resources through a "cash pooling” system. In the event of
cash surplus, shori-term invesiments are held in safe highly liquid deposils.

During year 2014, debl situation is as follows

Thousands of Ewos
Dic. 14 Dic. 13
NET CASH POSITION Amount % Amount % Var.
Other shorl term finantial invesiments 82,883 20% 68,768 0% 20.5%
Cash and cash equivalenis 203,260 7™ 159,581 0% 27.4%
Total cash 286,143 100% 228,339 100% 25.23%
Long lerm finantial llabiliies (**) 473,386 8P 222,320 % 112.9%
Long lerm derivative finantial contracts 31.697 5% 30,137 % 52%
Short lerm finantial liabilites (*) (**) 78,130 B% 1,602,138 6% -95.1%
Shorl lerm derivalive finantial contracis 0 o% 75 0% -100.0%
Total debt 583,213 100% 1,854,670 100% -68.6%
TOTAL NCP 297,070 1,626,331 -81.7%

(*)Regardless of their effeclive date of amortization, financial liabililies are classified as *current” for accounling purposes il they are used to
finance assels classified as “cunrent” in the Balance Sheet.

Net debt at year-end 2014 is 297.1 million euros compared to 1626.3 million ewros for the year 2013.

Non current financial debt includes EUR 100 miflion as shareholder loan and the funding of projects withoul resource
to Grupe SANJOSE amounting fo EUR 139.1 million at 31 December 2014, EUR129.54 million correspond o the
financing of the already commissioned hospitals in Chile, currenlly in operation. The Group has obtained upon
closure of the financial year 2014, the resolution of the Ministry of Public Works of Chile that grants the final
commissioning of El Carmen Dr. Luis Valentin Ferrada Hospital in Maipu and the Melropolitan Clinical Hospitaf Dr.
Eloisa Diaz Insunza in Florida, which shall allow the consideration of this debt as non-recourse debl to Grupo
SANJOSE in fulure reports.

Likewise, Grupo SANJOSE and its main subsidiaries have formalized December 30 agreements to restruclure ils
financial debl with a large majority of ils creditor banks, which represents a percentage grealer than 75% of the
financial liability and 80% of the collaterals affected by such agreements. vt PV [GLESIAS
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Translation inte English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

Such financial restructuring agreements are based on a viability pan that was favourably reporied by both the
financial advisor to the lenders and the independent experi appoinied by the commercial register and have led to the
renewal of the syndicated loan contract signed in April 2009, and all the contracts of bilateral funding.

Arrangements for financial restruciuring were formalized with the signing of a Framework Agreement, whose purpose
is to regutate the terms and condilions hereof, and three financing agreements governing the three perimeters in
which has been divided financial debt group and summarized below:

a) Contract “Consiruclora San José, 8.A.°

Stretch A for a total amount of EUR 250 million and having a maturity of five years, renewable for another year,
with a progressive payment schedule and a grace period of 28 months of principal payment.

A sel of working capital credit facilities, including discounts, confirming and guarantees, available to Construclora
San José, S.A, ils branches and subsidiaries, both national and iniernalional.

The total amount of the financing of working capital, amounted to 425 million euros and aneables Group
SANJOSE with sufficient lines to fund its operalions contracls and to continue developing its international
expansion amount.

b) Contracl “Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A."

A second agrrement by which the Company assumed a EUR 100 million participaling loan with a 5-year bullet
malurity,

Early repayment of the amount of this agreement includes certain descending repayment charges or discounts of
nominal value according lo early repayment instalments.

The part of this conlract not atiended at maturily shall be converted into shares of Grupo SANJOSE with a limil of
35% of total social capital of the company. This conversion shall be instrumented by means of warrants which the
Board of Directors of Grupo SANJOSE shall submit to the Shareholders General Meeting for final approval.

¢} San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U.

A third agreement of synduicated credit facilities amounting fo EUR 270 million with maturily within 5 years and
with a progressive amorlisation Schedule and a grace period of 22 months of principal payment which sets oul
the interesf capitalisalion.

The remaining debt under the financing agreement signed in 2009 not included in any of the three agreements
described above (i.e. approximately EUR 743 million), will be cancelled by capitalising such debt in "San José
Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A."

Prior to the capitalizalion, Grupo San José shall transmit to the lenders of San José Desarrollos Inmobitiarios,
S.A. all lhe shares of San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A. which it holds.

These two operations will result in creditors of San José Desarrollos Inmobiliarios, S.A.U. becoming holders of
100% of its share capilal.

On 11 May 2015 legal approval was granted as from 13 February 2015 by the Trade Court No 2 of Pontevedra. Thus,
the Group SANJOSE complies with the main preliminary condition set out in the novation agreement

Capital resources

The Group does not expect significant changes in ils structure, equity and debt o regarding the cosl of capilal
resources during year 2015. However, since lhe goal of the Group is to reduce debt, this shall involve a significant
reduction of equity.

Future contractual obligations

Within the line of real estate, there are commitments for future land purchases amounting.to.650,1 millign euros.
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Translation inte English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

4. Main risks

The Group operales in seclors, countries and socio-economic and legal environments that involve the assumption of
different levels of risk caused by these conditions. The Group manages lhese risks in order to avoid involving a loss
of profitability for its shareholders or cause trouble to customers. In order to exercise this control, the Group has a risk
management function through which: i) identifies; il) measures; iii) conlrols; iv) monitors and v) evaluates the different
lypes of risk from an integrated and global perspective.

Operational risks

Main risks arising from the activities.of the Company are assuming operalions (whether conslruction, concessions or.
:malntenance) which shall not Involve the sufficient.return for invesiments, international diversity where the Company:

‘operates or cause a decrease In value of real estate assets. )

To avoid accepling unprofilable projects, an individual study of each project is carried out ensuring profilability of the
same.

Additionally, the Company holds an International Legal Depariment, which analyses the potenlial impact of different
regulatory frameworks in the activity of the company.

To adjust the price of ils real estate assets to market value, the company commissions to independent experts the
assessment of properly of the Company, ensuring that value reflecled thereof is suitable to markel prices.

Financlal risks

Due to its activity, the Company faces the following risks arising from payment and collection rights of business
transaclions:

Interest rate risk: This is the main risk to which the Group is exposed as a result of the bank borrowings
described in the notes to the consolidaled financial statements. In order to minimise exposure to this risk.
The Group's financial management has arranged cash flow hedges to protect the Company against
foreseeable inlerest rate increases in the future.

Forelgn currency risk: The Group's policy is to borrow in the same currency as thal of the cash flows of
each business. Consequently, there is currenlly no significant foreign currency risk. However, noteworlhy in
this conneclion are the exchange rate fluctuations arising in translaling the financial statements of foreign
companies whose funclional currency is not the Euro. In view of the Group's geographical expansion over
the last few years, exposure to foreign currency risk may arise in the fulure. Should this risk arise, the best
solution will be analysed in order lo minimise il by arranging hedges, provided such instruments conform to
the Group's corporale criteria.

Credit risk: rick which arises from customer defaults is managed by a prevenlive assessment of the
solvency rating of the Group's potential customers at the beginning of the relationship and throughout the
duralion of the conlract, evalualing the credit rating of the outstanding amounts receivable and reviewing
and segregaling the eslimated recoverable receivables from doubtful receivables.

Liquidity risk: Dealt with in detail in section 3 of this report.

5. Events after the reporting period

On 24 March 2015, the Group company "Concesionaria San Jose-Tecnocontrol, S.A.", was awarded the conlract for
the execulion, repair, maintenance and operation of two public hospitals in Chite and has successfully completed the
issuance of dematerialised infrastructure bonds wilh a total value of UF 6,302,000 {approximately EUR 226.9 million).

The issue of bonds has been carried out in two (ranches: Tranche A amounting to UF 5.597,000 (approximalely EUR
201.5 million) and a cover rate of 2.95%; and Tranche B for an amount of UF 705,000 (approximately EUR 25.4
million) and a cover rate of 4.00%. Both tranches have been fully subscribed. Maturity date is 30 June 2021.

With the bond issue SANJOSE Group achieved three objectives:
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iv) To oblain an adequate credil rating of bonds through the provision, with funds from the bonds, of a series of
project accounts and the replacement by the concessionaire of bank debt wilh recourse by non-recourse bank
debi.

v) To improve the funding of the concessionaire, reducing the finance expense for the company and improving the
flow of dividends. Part of the funds from lhe bond issue will be used to repay in full the capilal collecled in
advance from the Chilean syndicated credit facililies and the early terminalion of derivative syndicated loan
(SWAP) and the subsequenl bank debt.

vi) To offset in advance the debt of the company due to the syndicated credit facilities of the company, novated last
30 December 2014, which will reinforce and confirm the commitment of Construclora San José, S.A. wilh its
creditors, and shall allow the company improving ils financial structure and lower its costs.

As Indicated in Nole 17.3, on 30 December 2014, Group SANJOSE and ils main subsidiaries entered into a
modifying novation agreement of the syndicated credit loan signed in April 2009, as well as a set of bilaleral conlracts
bilateral, with a large majority of its creditor banks. Such novalion agreement includes several lerms and conditions to
be fulfilled, among which highlights the court approval in compliance with the Fourlh Addilionat Provision of the
Bankrupicy Act.

In this regard, the court approval has been granted on 11 May 2015 dated 13 February 2015 and issued by the
Commercial Court No. 2 of Pontevedra. Thus, the Group SANJOSE complies with the main preliminary condition set
out in the novation agreement.

The Direclors of the Company consider that the remaining outstanding conditions will be fulfilled in the short term,
within the deadline established by the novalion agreement and in compliance with the lerms and conditions set out
therein.

There are no olher significant events occurred after 31 December 2014 which may have impacted on the
accompanying financial statements

6. Future outlook

The changing trend in the business cycle in Spain in the year 2013, growth for the year 2014 and the improvement in
GDP occurred during the year, likewise lhe best forecasts for the following years, suggests that the economy will
behave in the 2015 beller than in 2014, wilhin a framework of global content growlh.

The increase of public calls to tender, with regards to 2013, in combination with the behaviour of the private seclor,
supported by the improved macroeconomic condilions, at both, national and International level, are posilive indicators
for the construction sector, which is the main business aclivily of the Group.

In the real eslale business, we see lhal the price adjustment is bofloming, increasing sales volume and IPV
compared lo previous years. The increase in domeslic demand, boosted by the purchase of homes due o foreign
investments, sets a scene wilh some hope, thal the Group to seek to exploit , positioning ilself in the market for
maintaining and improving the volume of business in the year 2015.

According to the business survey of export made by the Ministry of Finance for the lasl quarter of 2014, it has
improved the opinion of the surveyed companies regarding the evolution of its current order book, as expectations of
their porlfolios for 3 and twelve months. The behavior of the backlog in the fourlh quarter improvement in all
destinations, although it siill remains negative for European countries not included in the EU-28 (-1.7 points) sign.
Forecasts for the next quarler are also more optimistic than in previous quarlers, for all target areas considered,
except North America and Latin America. As for the one year forecasts, countries considered by grealer proportion of
Spanish exporters as ils main destinalions are again Germany (39.0%) and France (36.2%). Therefore, in lhe
international area the SANJOSE Group will continue lo diversify geographically and by business trying to promote
business opportunities abroad.

According lo this trend, in the year 2013 were delivered and put into operalion the Hospitals of Chile, in which non-
health services will be operated for 15 years, which provide recurring revenue during (hat period.

Also during 2014, the consorlium formed by SANJOSE Construction and Arabtec Construclions LLC equally, has
begun work on the new hospilal in At Ain in the UAE, awarded by the Abu Dhabi General Services, Musanada, for
900 million dollars (USD). e EEIAS
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The Group has also completed the design and begun with the rehabilitalion and maintenance of the strelch of 133
kilometers long Raebarely - Band of the NH-232 nalional highway in Ultar Pradesh, the most populous state in India
with more than 200 million people . The design and execution of the works on (his road were recenlly awarded to the
company by the public enlity "National Highways Aulhority of India," agency adminislrator's network of national
highways in India, amounting to 70 miltion dollars {USD ) and an eslimated completion period of 30 months.

In Spain, as parl of the Group policy to achieve increased compelilive bidding occurred in 2014 and the expecled
develop in the coming years, the Cily of Salamanca has awarded to SANJOSE Constructor the award of public works
for the completion of enlargement and reform of the Sports Park Aldehuela complex for € 15 million, and the
operation of the complex after

The Group will continue working in the same direction, seeking to strengthen ils national presence as well as
scrulinizing business opportunities in new countries to sellle. In any case, for all the above is likely increased
international weight in the lurmover of the Group.

In view of the informalion available at the date of issue of this report, the company is not expected to face harder
situations to those experienced in year 2014,

7. RE&D&i activities

Grupo SANJOSE aware of the importance of research and development and innovalion actives for business
competitiveness and success of the Group, has developed several projects in year 2013 which shall allows the
provision of innovative solutions for customers' requirements.

In order lo facilitate the detection of opportunities, generating innovalive ideas and the development of R&D activities,
a R&D Management System following the guidelines sel out in the standard UNE 166002 and having obfained the
AENOR recognition through certification in the following companies has been implemented:

Company Type of certiflcate Certificate #
CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE S.A. R&D&i Management | 1D1-0056/2010
SANJOSE ENERGIA Y MEDIO AMBIENTE, 5.A. R&D&I Management | IDI-0056/2010

The R&D syslem of Grupo SANJOSE addresses the application of new construction technologies, the optimisation of
procedures and services, and the usage of innovation as main searching too! for lhe implementation of new
improvement opportunilies, the promotion of new technologies and the cared protection of the environment. The
company has implemented a working method based upon guidelines set out by UNE 166002. This method allows the
oplimisation of activities and R&D&{ Project, as well as defining documentation and management.

Among the main siralegic technology areas for the development of R&R&i projects, highlight, among others,
technology applicable to building and civil works, renewable energy and energy efficiency, new materials and
construction processes, development of tools for the improvement in the provision of mainlenance and services. The
Group has achieved de finalisation on developed projecls during 2014:

- Use of recycled products, funded by the Industrial Technological Development Cenlre under record number
IDI-20110109 and by ACIE and certified by EQA with cerlificate number 176 462 ITCE.

- Structural behaviour of roadbed granular layers, funded by the Industrial Technological Development Centre
under record number 1DI-20101292 and cerlified by AENOR with cerlificate number 068/1613/2012.

During 2014, the Group has made an allempl of promoting the development of technological projecls within the
framework of inlemational expansion in which the Group moves, given the conlraction of domestic investment in the
field of research. Also, a reaclivation of the portfolic of projects for the year 2015 is expecled.

Cooperalion between companies has become a delermining factor for the Group. The scope of collaboration extends
to regional, national, and international areas, as well as different frames of collaboration, either at company, college,

or intermediate organisation or association tevel. o
FRTEF PN EAREHGLESIAS
INTERPRETE JURA \’GLE%ESPANOL

CiScralin e D,
36900 Maiin ¥ntevedra)
calvo.estefanizdhymail.com
690320705 - 851571N498




Transiation info English of consolidated management repori for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued tn Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

In the field of management, we have consulting services specialized in innovalion. Their objective is to boost the
improve of the R&R&I management of the organizalion through the optimization of its innovation process in order fo
improve efficiency; as well as in the provision of advice and support services for R&D&I managemenl, seeking
parinerships, grants, {ax benefits and deductions.

Within the framework of collaboration with public entilies or inslitutions, special attention should be paid lo the close
cooperation wilh the “Conslruction Technology Civil Engineering Depariment of the Polytechnic University of Madrid."
Other collaboration agreements have also be signed wilh other universilies.

8. Treasury share transactions

The company hand nof carried out transactions involving treasury shares at 31 Decamber 2014,
9. Other relevant information
Stock Market Information

Shares of Grupo SANJOSE are listed on the Slock Exchange Market of Madrid. Key indicalors and performance are
as follows:

2014 2013
Markel capitalisalion for the period (thousand of
Euros) 53,321 78,031
Number of shares (per thousand) 65,026 65,026
Closing price (Euros) 0.82 1.2
Maximum value for the period (Euros) 1.49 1.64
Minimum value for the period (Euros) 0.66 1.05
Tolal volume of shares (thousands) 24,338 16,888
Total effeclive traded (thousands of Euros) 27,544 22,711

Dividends policy

As a consequence of the terms and condilions sef out by the loan agreement of the syndicaled credil facilities in
Spain, there are resiriclions on the payments of dividends.
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APPENDIX 1 MODEL

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
OF LISTED COMPANIES

PARTICULARS OF ISSUER

END OF FISCAL YEAR 3171212014

TAX ID. \A-
36046993

Company name:

GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A.

Registered office;

ROSALIA DE CASTRO 44 36001 PONTEVEDRA
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MODEL OF ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF LISTED
COMPANIES

jl OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

A1 Complete the following table on the Company’s capital:

Date of last change | Soclal capltal {€) Number of shares vﬁttll::'lgbflgzzs
27/06/2008 1,950,782.49 65,026,083 65,026,083

State whether lhere are multiple classes of shares with different related rights:

Yes No
A2 List the direct and indirect owners of significant holdings in the Company at year-end, excluding Directors:
Name of shareholder Number of direct voting rights Number of Indirect voting rights % of votlng
rights
LIBERBANK,S.A. 0 3,605,830 5.55%
JULIA SANCHEZ AVALOS 5,091,103 0 7.83%
MARIA VIRTUDES SANCHEZ
AVALOS 5,084,455 0 7.82%
MARIA JOSE SANCHEZ AVALOS 0 3,816,530 5.87%
Name of shareholder Name of direct shareholder Number of voting rights
LIBERBANK S.A, BANCO CASTILLA LA MANCHA 3,605,830
MARIA JOSE SANCHEZ VALJOYVAL HOLDING ESPANA,
AVALOS S.L 3,816,530

Indicate the mosl significant movements in the shareholder siructure during the year;
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A.3 Complete the following tables on the members of the Company’s Board of Directors who own Company

shares:

Name of Director Number of Indlrect voting rights Indlrect voting rights % of voting rights
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ 16,224,999 15,176,795 48.29
JACINTO REY LAREDO 213,140 0 0.33

ROBERTO ALVAREZ

ALVAREZ 23,000 0 0.04
ROBERTO REY PERALES 1,000 0 0.00
RAMON BARRAL ANDRADE 347,200 0 0.53
ENRIQUE MARTIN REY 102 0 0.00

Name of shareholder

Name of direct shareholder

Number of voting rights

JACINTO REY
GONZALEZ PINOS ALTOS XR.S L. 15,176,795
% total of voling rights In possesslon of ihe Board of Directors 49.19%

Complete the following fables on the members of the Company's Board of Directors who hold Company

share opfions:

A4

Give delails of any relalionships of a family, commercial, contractual or corporate nature exisling between

the owners of significant holdings, insofar as they are known to the Company, unless they have scant
relevance or arise from the ordinary course of business:

Name of relationshlp

JULIA SANCHEZ AVALOS

MARIA VIRTUDES SANCHEZ AVALOS

Type of relationship: Parenthood

Brief description:

They are sisters.

Name of relationshlp

MARIA VIRTUDES SANCHEZ AVALOS

MARIA JOSE SANCHEZ AVALOS
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Type of relationshlp; Parenthood
Brief description:

They are sisters, Maria José is an indirect shareholder by the CGompany VALJOYVAL HOLDING
ESPANA, S.L.

Both have representalion in the Board of Directors, through the nominal directors Mr. Enrique Martin Rey.
A5 Give delails of any relationships of a commercial, contraclual or corporate nature existing between the

owners of significant holdings and the Company, unless they have scant relevance or arise from the
ordinary course of business:

A6 Indicale whether any side agreements affecling the Company have been disclosed to the Company as
provided in Arlicles 530 y 531 of the Companies Act. If so, provide a brief description and list the
shareholders bound by the agreement:

Yes No

Indicate whether there are any concerted shares. If applicable, provide a brief description of the same:

Yes No

In the event of having recorded a breach of agreement or concerted shares during the year, please provide
details:

A.7 Indicate whether there is any individual or legal entily that exercises or may exercise control over the
Company, in accordance with Arlicle 4 of the Securilies Markel Law: W applicable, provide a brief
description of the same:

Yes No
Name
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ
Remarks
48.292% of the share capital

A.8 Complele the following tables on the Company’s treasury stock:
Al year-end:

FSTEL 2 CRINOBLESIAS

5 INGLES ESPARCL
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Number of direct shares Number of Indirect shares % total soclal capital

0 o 0.0

{*) Through:

Give details of any significant varialions during the year, in accordance with Royal Decree 1362/2007:

A.9 State the conditions and term of the current authority conferred by the Shareholders’ Meeling on the Board of
Directors for acquisitions or fransfers of {reasury stock.

The agreement of the Genera!l Shareholders' Meeling passed on 28 June 2010 by resolution of the Board
of Directors continues to be in force:

To authorise the acquisilion of shares of the Company at any moment during the enfercement of this
agreement and whenever deemed appropriate by the Company, due to sale or purchase, transfer or
whatever other legal business allowed by Law, direclly or by means of any subsidiary company, as well as
the acceptance in pledge of own shares, unlil a maximum of shares which, in aggregate with those of the
Company and its branch office, may not exceed 10% tola! share capilal, and for a price or counterpart nor
below par value nor higher than lhe 50% of the average stock market price duiing the previous seven
days. The authorisation includes the power to carry out any futures, oplions or other transaclions involving
company shares.

This authorisation will initially be in force for 5 years as from the date of this Ordinary and Extraordinary
General Meeling as from the dale of this General Meeling and subject to compliance with all other
applicable legal requirements.

For the purposes of the provisions of Arlicle 75.1 of the Spanish Companies Act, it is specifically noled that
the shares acquired may be sold or wrillen-off, or subsequently delivered to employees, executives and
Directors of the Company or the Group or, if appropriale, to satisfy option righls exercise held or to develop
programs that encourage the taking of shareholdings in the company, such as dividend reinvesiment or
similar plans.

Authorise the Board of Direclors, in the broadesl terms, to exercise the authority granted in this Resolution
and fo carry out the intended aclions described herein and this authority may be delegated by the Board of
Directors to any other Board member or person expressly designated by the Board.

This Resoclulion revokes and cancels, to the extent il was notl ulilized, the aulhorisation granted to the
Board of Directors by shareholders at a General Meeling held on 30 June 2009.

A.10 Indicate, as appropriale, any statulory or bylaw restrictions on the exercise of voling rights. And specially,
any statutory restriclions on the acquisilion of holdings in the capital.

Yes No

A.11 Indicate whether the Shareholders' Meeting has resolved (o adopt counlermeasures in the event of a lender
offer pursuant to the provisions of Law 6/2007.

Yes No
If so, explain the measures approved and the circumstances in which the restrictions would be ineffective:
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A.12 Indicate whelher the company has issued securilies not negotiated on the community regulated market.

Yes No

]

If so, indicate lypes of securilies and all rights and obligations inherent to the same.

GENERAL MEETING

B.1 Indicate and detail the differences, if any, between the required quorum and that set forlh in the Spanish
Companies Act (LSC) for convening the General Shareholders' Meeting.

Yes No

B.2 Indicate and detail the differences, if any, wilh regards to the system contemplated in the LSC for signing
corporate agreements:

Yes No

Describe differences with regards to the established system by the LSC.

B.3 Indicale the rules applicable to the amendmenl of the company's bylaws. In parlicutar, the majorily
required in order for the bylaws 1o be amended and, as lhe case may be, stipulate the legal provisions for
the profection of the rights of the partners in the amendment of the bylaws.

Arlicle 17 COMPANY'S ACT .- Constitution of the Board. Special cases.

1. The General Meeting shall be validly held on firsi call,

when the shareholders present or represented hold at least twenly five

percent (25%) of the subscribed capital with voting rights. On second call,

shall be validly constituted whatever the capilal attending is.

2. In order for the Ordinary or Extraordinary General Meeting to validly agree

the increase or reduction of capital and any other medification of the company act,
issue bonds, suppression or limitalion of the right of

emplion of new shares, the transformation, merger,

spin-off or transfer of assets and liabililies and the transfer of the registered office
abroad, it will require on first ¢call the attendance of shareholders

present or represenied, holding at least fifty percenl (50%) of

share capital wilh voling righls. On second call, it will be enough

the attendance of twenly five percent (25%) of (he share capilal, but when
shareholders represenling less than fifly percent (50%) of

capital with voling righls, agreements referred to what is contained in this subparagraph
decisions can only be adopted with the affirmative vote of two thirds of the

capilal present or represented at the Meeting.

3. Any absences occuriing once the General Meeting does nol affecl

the validity of the meeting or alter the voling quorum,

Article 13 RULES OF THE BOARD. Constilution of the General Meeting.
1. The General Meeting shall be validly constituted on first call when
shareholders present or represented hold at least twenty-five percent {25%)

of the share capital with voling rights. On second call, will be valid ESTERAE RALMDIGLESIAS
constilution, regardless of the capital attending the meeting. INTERPRETE JURY! Ir’Blr_ES-ESPANOL
For the Ordinary or Extraordinary General Meeting to validly agree AEan R eira)
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B.4

B.5

B.6

issuance of bonds, the increase or decrease of capital, transformalion, merger

or spin-off, dissolution and liquidation of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Article 260.1.1° of the Corporations Act and, in general, any amendment

of the Bylaws il will require on first call, the attendance of

shareholders present or represented hold at least fifty percent

(50%) of the share capital wilh voling righls. On second call, be

enough, wenty-five percent (25%) of the capital, though, when

shareholders representing less than fifty percent (60%) of the capital

subscribed the agreements which this paragraph refers, may only

validly adopted wilh the affirmalive vote of two thirds of the capilal present or
represented on the Board .

If for valid constitution of the General Meeting of shareholders or to the valid adoplion
certain agreements, would be necessary, in accordance with eslablished by legal or
Bylaws, the allendance of a cerlain minimum percentage of share capilal and

that competition is not reached on second call,

or the consent of certain interested shareholders is required and they were not
present or represented, the agenda of the General Meeting shall be reduced fo rest
of the points that do nol require that specific minimum attendance of

capilal or shareholders concerned for the valid conslitution of the Meeling and adoption of
agreements.

The General Meeting shall be deemed called and validly constituted to deal

any malter whenever the whole sahre capilal is presented or represented and
atlendees accept unanimously the celebration.

3. The absence of shareholders once the General Meeting has been conslituted,

will not affect the validity of the meeting.

Give details of attendance al general meetings held during the financial year to which this report refers and
during previous financial years,

Attendance delails
Date of % % of % in % of absentee voling Tolal
general physical representation
shareholde presence Electronic Other
rs' meeling voling
28/06/2013 | 63.47 4.06 0.0 0.0 67.53
30/06/2014 | 56.59 962 0.0 0.0 66.21

Indicale whether there are any restrictions in the Bylaws establishing 2 minimum number of shares needed
to attend the General Shareholders' Meelings:

Yes E No

Number of shares required for attendance to | 100

the General Shareholders' Meeting

Indicale whether it was agreed that cerlain decisions entailing a structural modification of the company
(“subsidiarisation”, purchase-sale of essential operational assets, operalions equivalent to liquidation of the
company...) shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders’ General Meeling, even if not specifically
required under Commercial Laws.
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B.7

C | STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY'S GOVERNING BODY

Indicate the address of and how to access the company's Website to obtain corporate governance and
General Meeling information that should be made available to the shareholders through the Company's

Website,

All the information related fo the Company's Governmenl, is public at the Company's web page:
www.grupo-sanjose.biz.

C.1 Board of Directors

C.1.1  Indicate the maximum and minimum number of board members stipulated in the company Bylaws:
Maximum number of board 15
members
Minimum number of board 5
members
C.1.2 Complete the following table with the Board members:
Personal or
Corporate Represent Seat on the Date of 1st | Date of last Election
Name of board atlve Board appt. appt. procedure
member
Voting Rights in
JACINTO REY EXECUTIVE Shareholders’
GONZALEZ CHAIRMAN- CEO | 18/08/1987 30/06/2014 Meetings
Executive Vice- Voling Rights in
JACINTO REY Chairman and Shareholders’
LAREDO CEO 30/10/2006 28/06/2013 Meetings
Voling Righls in
ROBERTO REY Shareholders’
PERALES - CEO 16/01/2013 2810612013 Meetings
ROBERTO Voting Rights in
ALVAREZ Shareholders’
ALVAREZ Director 27/06/2008 30/06/2014 Meelings
ALTINA DE
FATIMA Voling Rights in
SEBASTIAN Shareholders’
GONZALEZ Direclor 27/06/2008 | 30/06/2014 | Meelings
Voting Rights in
JOSE MANUEL Shareholders’
OTERC NOVAS DIRECTOR 28/08/2014 28/08/2014 Meelings
RAMON Voling Rights in
BARRAL Shareholders’
ANDRADE Director 2710212014 30/06/2014 Meetings
ESTRfAiR SR VDIGLESIAS
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Voling Rights in

JAVIER REY Shareholders’
LAREDO Director 28/06/2012 28/06/2012 Meelings
Voling Rights in
ENRIQUE Shareholders’
MARTIN REY Director 28/06/2013 28/06/2013 Meelings
Total number of board members 9

Indicate the terminations that occurred on the board of directors during the period being reported:

Personal or Corporate
Name of board member Seat on the Board Termination date

GUILLERMO DE LA
DEHESA ROMERO Director 28/08/2014

DUAN EMILIO IRANZO
MARTIN Director 710212014

C.1.3  Complele the following tables on the board members and their different conditions:

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

Parsonal or corporate name

Committee that proposed the Posltion within the company
of board member appolintment structure
UACINTO REY APPOITMENTS AND
GONZALEZ REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN AND CEO
UJACINTO REY LAREDO
APPOITMENTS AND VICE-CHAIRMAN AND

REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE [CEO

JACINTO REY LAREDO

APPOITMENTS AND
REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE DIRECTOR

ROBERTO REY APPOITMENTS AND
PERALES REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE CEQ

ATIGESAS
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Total number of executive
board members

Total % of Board 44.44

INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL DIRECTORS

Personal or corporate name

Personal or corporate name of the signlificant shareholder,

Committee that proposed the they represent or which
of board member appointment proposed thelr appolntment
ENRIQUE MARTIN REY MARIA JOSE SANCHEZ
APPOITMENTS AND AVALOS AND JULIA

REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE [SANCHEZ AVALOS

Total number of independent
external directors

Total % of Board 11.11

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Personal or Corporate Name of board member:
ROBERTO ALVAREZ ALVAREZ
Profile:

ECONOMIST

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:
ALTINA DE FATIMA SEBASTIAN GONZALEZ
Profile:

ECONOMIST

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:
RAMON BARRAL ANDRADE
Profile:

ECONOMIST

e
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C14

Total number of external 3
independent directors

Total % of Board 33.33

Indicate whether any director classified as independent receives any amount or benefit from the
company or from hisfher own group, in any concepl other than the remuneration as a board
member, or whether hefshe maintains or has maintained a business relation with the company or
wilh any company within its group during the last financial year, in hisfher own name or as
significanl sharehofder, board member or top execulive of a company thal maintains or has
mainlained such relationship.

[Text explained in C.1.3.3. External Independent Directors]

Altina Falima Sebastlan Gonzélez received 20 thousand Euros from the Company as
compensalion for her professional services rendered.

As the case may be, the board shall include a statement outlining the reasons why it deems that
said board member can perform his/her dulies in the capacity as independent board member.

OTHER EXTERNAL BOARD MEMBERS

Personal or Corporate Name of board Committee that proposed the
member appointment
JOSE MANUEL OTERO NOVAS APPOITMENTS AND REMUNERATIONS
COMMITTEE
Total number of other external 1
directors
Total % of Board 11.11%

Explain the reasons why these cannot be considered independent or propriefary, and detail their
connections with the company, its executives or shareholders.

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:

JOSE MANUEL OTERO NOVAS

Director of;

GRUPO EMPRESARIAL SAN JOSE, S.A.

Reason:

Maintenance of high professional relationships with Grupo Empresarial San José, SA

Indicate the varialions, if applicable, that occurred during the period in the lypology of each board
member:

Complete the following table with the information on the number of felﬁﬁﬁ\b?‘ajr:dmeh &rs 1oy the
Cen

C
G

last four financial years, including the capacity of such board members:
36900 Canlevedraq
calvo.esle W miinail.com
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otal number of hoard members % of total of board members In each typology

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 2014 2013 2012 2011
Executive 4y 0 y D 0% 0% 0% 0%
Independent 0 D 0 ) 0% 0% 0% 0%
External 1 1 U 1 33% 25% 0% 20%
Other [} 0 y D 0% D% 0% 0%
External D D D D 0% 0% 0% D%
Total U 1 1 1 11.91% [11.11% [125% [F.14%

C.1.5 Explain, as the case may be, the measures taken by lhe company to ensure the inclusion of
females onto the Board of Directors in an amount that may ensure the maleffemale equilibrium.

Explanation of the measures

it Is desire of the Group to Increase gender variations within Board members.
Thus, profiles of professionals of different business areas are being carefully
analysed.

C.1.6  Explain the measures, as the case may be, thal the Appoiniments Committee may have agreed
upon to ensure Lhat seleclion procedures refrain from implicit bias that would otherwise impede the
selection of female members, and that the company purposefully seeks to include and includes
female candidates thal meet the professional profile sought:

Explanation of the measures

The Groups tries to rely on the best professionals within the organisation, both
within the parent and the subsidiary companies, regardless their gender.

if albeil the measures implemented, as the case may be, the number of female board members is still
scarce or non-existent, explain the reasons to justify such scareity:

Explanation of the measures

The Group does not hamper the recruitment of female board members. Both,
female and male potential professionals have been sought in order to find the
most suitable profile so as to meet the needs of the Group: business
development, experience within the financial field, knowledge and experience
within the business activity of the company, and, mainly, at international level.
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C.1.8

C.1.9

C.1.10

Explain the manner in which shareholders with significant shares are represented on the board.

Ms. Maria José and Ms. Julia Sanchez Avalos as significant shareholders have representation
within the Board of Directors through the nominal directors Mr. Enrique Marlin Rey.

Mr. Jacinlo Rey Gonzaélez as singnificant shareholder has representation within the Board of
Directors through himself and his sons Mr. Jacinto Rey Laredo and Mr. Javier Rey Laredo.

Explain, as the case may be, the reasons why proprielary members were appoinled at the request
of shareholders wilh slakes amounling lo less than 5 % of the stock capital;

Detail any failure to address formal requests for board representation made by shareholders wilh

slakes equal to or exceeding that of others at whose request proprietary members were appointed.
If s0, explain lhe reasons why the request was not enterfained.

Yes No !ZI

Indicale whelher any board member resigned histher post before the end of hisfher term of office,
whether reasons were given to the Board and how, and, if in wriling to the entire Board, at least
explain the reasons given by the board member:

Personal or Corporate Name of hoard member:
MR. JUAN EMILIO IRANZO MARTIN
Reason:

Incompalible with his position as Direclor of Red Eléctrica of Spain, given the growing interest of
the Group in the energy seclor.

Personal or Corporate Name of board member;
MR. GUILLERMO DE LA DEHESA ROMERO
Reason:

Capital requirements Directive 2013/36 / EU that limit the number of directors of the Board thal may
belong te financial institulions’ Boards.

Indicate, if any, lhe powers delegated by any Chief Executive Officers:
Personal or Corporate Name of board member;
MR. JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

Brief Description:
ANY POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXCEPT TO THOSE THAT CANNOT. BE
DELEGATED

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:
MR. JACINTO REY LAREDOQ

Brief Description:

ANY POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXCEPT TO THOSE THAT CANNOT BE

PREECHTED Sy s R IGLESIAS
iNTER%I:‘%lETE S 5 HGLES-ESPAROL
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Personal or Corporate Name of board member:

MR. ROBERTO REY PERALES

Brief Description:

Translation into English of consolidated management repori for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issied in Spanish. In the event of
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ANY"-POWERS OF THE _BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXCEPT TO. THOSE THAT GANNOT BE

DELEGATED

C.1.11 Identify, if any, the board members that hold administrator or directive positions in other companies
making up the group of companies listed on the stock market:

Personal or Corporate Name of board

member Corporale name of entity of group Posltion
ROBERTO REY PERALES SAN JOSE COLOMBIA , S.A.S |LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
GESTION DE SERVICIOS DE
ROBERTO REY PERALES SALUD, 5.AU Sole Director
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ INMOBILIARIA 2010. S.A Chairman
SAN JOSE CONSTRUCTORA
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ PERU S.A, Chairman
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ SAN JOSE PERU SAC Chairman
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ CARLOS CASADQ. §.A. Chairman
SAN JOSE CONSTRUCTION
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ GROUP INC Chairman
SAN JOSE TECNOLOGIAS
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ PERU, S.AC Chairman
SOCIEDAD CONCESIONARIA
JACINTO REY GONZALEZ SAN JOSE TECNOGONTROL Chairman

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

UDRA MEXICO. S.A. DECV

Sole Director

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

INMOBILIARIA AMERICANA DE
DESARROLLOS
URBANISTICOS. S.A.U.

Sole Director

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

INMOBILIARIA EUROPEA DE
DESARROLLOS
URBANISTICOS. SA.U.

Sole Direclor

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

SAN JOSE CONCESIONES Y
SERVICIOS. SA.U,

Sole Director

JACINTO REY LAREDO

CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE
CABO VERDE. S.A.

Director

JACINTQO REY LAREDO

SAN JOSE FRANCE. S.A.

Sole Director

JACINTO REY LAREDQ

CONSTRUCTORA UDRA LTDA.

Sole Director

JACINTO REY LAREDO

SAN JOSE CONSTRUCTION
GROUP INC

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

A VDIGLESIAS

3 SLEASPANOL
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SJB MULLROSER
JACINTO REY LAREDO BAUGESELLSCHAFT MBH Director
JACINTO REY LAREDO SAN JOSE BAU GMBH Director
CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE.
JACINTO REY LAREDO S.A. CHAIRMAN AND CEQ
SAN JOSE INDIA
INFRASTRUCTURE &
CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE
JACINTO REY LAREDO LIMITED Director
DOUROQ ATLANTICO
JAVIER REY LAREDO SOCIEDADE INMOBILIARIA Chairman
PARQUESOL PORTUGAL
JAVIER REY LAREDO SGPS, S.A. Chairman
JAVIER REY LAREDO AZAC. S.A. Sole Director
JAVIER REY LAREDO AGEINSA. S.A. Sole Direclor
CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE.
JAVIER REY LAREDO S.A. Direclor
SAN JOSE DESARROLLOS
JAVIER REY LAREDO INMOBILIARIOS. S.A. Chairman
JAVIER REY LAREDO COMERCIAL UDRA. S.AU, CHAIRMAN AND CEO
JAVIER REY LAREDO CADENA DE TIENDAS. 5.Al). | Sole Direcior
JAVIER REY LAREDO LARDEA. S.L.U. Director

ROBERTO ALVAREZ ALVAREZ

PANAMERICAN MALL, S.A.

Vice-chairman

ROBERTO REY PERALES

SOCIEDAD CONCESIONARIA
SAN JOSE- TECNOCONTROL
S.A.

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

ROBERTO REY PERALES

CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE,
SA (PONTEVEDRA)
REPRESENTAGAO EM
PORTUGAL

REPRESENTANTE LEGAL

JACINTO REY LAREDO

CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE,
SA (PONTEVEDRA)
REPRESENTACAQ EM
PORTUGAL

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

JAVIER REY LAREDO

CARLOS CASADO S A

Director

JAVIER REY LAREDO

CONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE,
SA (PONTEVEDRA)
REPRESENTAGAO EM
PORTUGAL

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

DESARROLLOS
URBANISTICOS UDRA S.A.U.

Sole Director

~
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C.1.12 Provide delails, if any, of company Board members who also sit on the boards of other enlities not
belonging to the same business unit and are listed on lhe Spanish Stock Exchange, of which the
company is aware:

C.1.13 Indicate, and if so, explain whether the company has eslablished rules on the number of other
boards on which its own Board members may sil:

Yes : No EI

C.1.14 Siate the company’s general policies and strategies that the board reserved the powers to approve in
plenary session:

YES NO
Investment and financing policy X
Definltlo_n of the structure of the group of X
companies
Corporate governance policy X
Corporate social responsibliity pollcy X

The strategic or business plan, management targets | X
and annual budgets

Senlor staff performance remuneration and X
evaluation policy

Risk control and management polley, and the X
regular monltoring of internal information and
conftrol systems

Dividend and treasury stock policies and especially | X
their limits

C.1.15 Indicate the comprehensive remuneration of the Board of Direclors:

Comprehensive remuneration of the Board of Directors (in 2,767
thousands of Euros)

Amount of the comprehensive remuneration for the concept of 0
accumulated pension entitlements (in thousands of Euros)

Comprehensive remuneration of the Board of Directors {in 2,767
thousands of Euros)

C.1.16 Identify any senior management staff thal is not also an execulive board member, and indicate the
total remuneralions payable to said staff during the financial year:

ESTEFrmaz MO IGLESIAS

0 IMGLES-ESPANOL

/Ser fifo, 5, 1°
36900 Mo { 'ontevedra)
calvo.esle?) ymail.com 16

690320703 - 036830493




Translation into English of cousolidated managentent report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originaily isswed in Spanish, In the eveni of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

Name Posltion/s
. DIRECTOR ASSOCIATED
IANGEL RODRIGUEZ TEJO COMPANY
DIRECTOR ASSOCIATED
JOSE LUIS GOYA ARTETA COMPANY
IGENERAL DIRECTOR OF CIVIL
WORKS AND PROCUREMENT
LUAN ARESES VIDAL ICONSTRUCTORA SAN JOSE
IGENERAL DIRECTOR OF
ESTELA AMADOR BARCIELA HHRR, QUALITY AND MEDIA
NTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR
UEAN CLAUDE CURELL CONSTANZO NDIA
IGENERAL DIRECTOR OF
| OURDES FREIRIA BARREIRO INSURANCE AND RISKS
INTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR
PEDRO ALLER ROMAN AFRICA
CRISTINA GONZALEZ LOPEZ DIRECTOR TAX CONSULTING
ICEO SAN JOSE
DESARROLLOS
JAVIER ALONSO LOPEZ INMOBILIARIOS, S.A.
IGENERAL DIRECTOR
IGNACIO ALONSO LOPEZ ICOMERCIAL UDRA, S.AU.
ICEQ CONSTRUCTORA SAN
VALERIANO GARCIA GARCIA JOSE, SA.
GENERAL DIRECTOR
BUILDING CONSTRUCTORA
JOSE MARIA REBOLLO OLLETA SAN JOSE, S.A.
DAVID RODRIGUEZ BARCALA, DIRECTOR- RISKS
DIRECTOR ASSOCIATED
FRANCISCO FERNANDEZ FERNANCEZ COMPANIES

Total of remunerations for sentor executlves (in thousands of
Euros) 1,955

C.1.17  Identify, if any, lhe members of the Board of Directors who are also members of the board of
direclors of companies that hold significant shares and/or group entities:




Translation inte English of consolidated management repori for the year ending 31 Decenber 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the eveni of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

C.1.18

C.1.19

C.1.20

Personal or Corporate Name of board |Corporate name of significant
member shareholder Posltion

JACINTO REY GONZALEZ PINOS ALTOS XR.S .L. Sole Director

Provide details of any relevant relations, as the case may be, other than those contemplated in the
previous seclion, between members of the board of directors and significant shareholders and/or
group entities:

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:

MR. JACINTO REY LAREDO

Personal or Corporate Name of the related shareholder:

MR. JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

Description of the relationship:

FIRST DEGREE FAMILY RELATIONSHIP (FATHER-SON)

Personal or Corporate Name of board member:

MR. JAVIER REY LAREDO

Personal or Corporate Name of the related shareholder:
MR. JACINTO REY GONZALEZ

Description of the relationship:

FIRST DEGREE FAMILY RELATIONSHIP (FATHER-SON)

Indicale whether any of the rules and regulations of the board were amended during the financial
year:

Yes No IX'

Indicate the procedures for the selection, appointment, reappoiniment, appraisal and removal of
Board members. Provide details of the competent bodies, the processes to be followed and the
criteria employed in each of the procedures.

In all circumstances, the candidate and hisfher profile are evaluated by the Appointments,
Remuneration and Good Governance Commission that issue a report on final oulcome. The repori
issued is provided to the Board that decides upon its final submission to the General Meeting.

Indicate whether the Board of directors made any efforts to assess ils activilies during the financial
year.

Yes iZI No

If so, explain to what extent the self-assessment has given rise to significani changes in its internal
organisation and regarding the procedures followed in its activities:

Description of significant changes

BETTER INFORMATION TO DIRECTORS
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C.1.21

c.1.22

C.1.23

C124

C.1.25

Indicate the cases in which Board members are obliged to resign.
Article 25° of the Board of Directors Regulations - Directors Cessalion

Directors shall resign from lheir posts upon expiration of the period for which they were
appointment, whenever elected by the General Meeling or when incurring into legat reason for such
resignation.

Members of the Board must place their post at the dismissal of the Board of Directors and resign
whenever Incurring inlo prohibitions established by Ari. 213 of the Companies Acl and any other
legal applicable provisions.

The Board of Directors shall no! propose the cessation of independent directors until completion of
the period which they were appointment for unless reasonable cause and duly reported to the
Appointment, Remunerations and Good Governance Commission. Reasonable cause is that
related to the non compliance with obligations and liabililies inherent to the post. Additionally, the
cessation of independent board members from mergers or other similar transaclions which may
involve a change in the social capilal structure of the company.

Indicate whether it is the chairman of the board of directors who also serves as the company's chief

execulive. If 5o, oulline the measures taken to limit the risks enlaifed in concentrating powers in a
single person:

Yes No

Measures to limit risks.

NONE

Indicate and, if so, explain whether rules were eslablished to empower any independent board
member to request the convening of a board meeting, or to include new items on the agenda, in
order to coordinale and echo the concerns of external board members and to oversee the
assessment by lhe board of directors.

Yes IXI No

Explanation of the rules

REQUEST OF THREE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD ARTICULE 19 BOARD OF
DIRECTORS REGULATIONS

Does the company require supermajorilies olher than the legal majorities for any type of resolution?

Yes No

If so, provide a descriplion of the differences.

Explain whether there are specific requirements other than those relaling to Board members for
being appointed Chairman of the board of directors.

Yes No

Indicate whether the Chairman has a deciding vole: ESTEERnda Dalp

[atpraVh)
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INTERPRETE JURAi
CiSeralin
J69006 Marin
calvo.estefaniza¥gmail.com 19

680320705 - 368904398




Translation into English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issved in Spanish. In the event of
discrepancy, the Spanish langtiage version prevails

C.1.26

C.1.27

Cc1.28

C.1.29

C.1.30

Yes No

Matters in which there is a deciding vote

ALL WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THOSE WHICH REQUIRE MAJORITY BY LAW
ARTICULE 26.6 BYLAWS

indicate whether the bylaws or board regulalions establish any age limit on board members:

Yes No

Indicate whether the bylaws or board regulations establish a limiled mandale for independent board
members, other than established in the law:

Yes No

Indicate whether the bylaws or the board of direclors’ regulations establish specific regulations for
delegating voting rights on the board of directors, how it is done and, in particular, the maximum
number of delegations that may be conferred on a board member, as well as whether it has been
made compulsory to delegate in a board member of simitar class. If so, provide brief details of said
regulations.

Indicate the number of board meelings held during the financial year. Likewise indicate, if any, the
number of limes the Board met wilhout the chairman in attendance. Proxies granted with specific
instructions for the meeting shall be counted as attendances.

Number of board meetings 13

Number of board meetings without the 0
attendance of the Chairman

Indicate the number of meelings held by the different board committees during the financial year:

Number of meetings of the Executive or Delegate Committee 4
Number of meetings of the Audit Committee 6
Number of meetings of the Appointments and Remunerations 3
Committee :

Number of meetings of the International Executive Committee 8|

indicate the number of board meetings held during the year with the altendance of all its members.
Proxies granled with specific instructions for the meeting shall be counted as attendances.

FSTEERNR CRNOIGLESIAS
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Attendance of Board Members 10

% of attendances of the total votes | 100
cast during the year

C.1.31 Indicate whether the individual and consolidated financial statements submilled for approval to the

C.1.32

C.1.33

C.1.34

board of directors are first ceriified:

Yes No

Identify, as the case may be, the person or persons who cerlified the company's individual and
consolidated financial statements, for their approval by the Board:

Expiain, if any, the mechanisms put in place by the board of directors to ensure that board-prepared
individual and consolidated financial statements are not presented at shareholders’ general
meetings if the audits report contains reservations.

-Financial information is reviewed by an independent auditor during financial year: six-monlhly
review (July), preliminary stage of the audit {November).

-Final stage of audit is started prior to the formalisation of the financial stalements by the Board of
Directors.

.The Board of Directors, rough the Audil Committee, analyses the oulcome of the independent
auditor's report at each slage, specially, at final stage and ensures the adequate implemeniation of
the auditor's recommendations by the financial Management in order to guaraniee information's
veracily lo be forwarded to the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Is the Board Secretary also a board member?

Yes No

Explain the procedures for the appoinlment and removal of the secretary o the board, indicaling
whether they are propose by the appoiniments committee and approved by plenary session of the
Board.

Appointment and Removal Procedure.

Itis reported by the Appointments Committee and approved by the full Board; the
appointment and dismissal.

Yes No

Does the Appointments Committee report on X
appointments?

Does the Appointments Committee report on X
removals?

.
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Does the plenary session of the Board approve X
appointments?

Does the plenary session of the Board approve X
removals?

Is the Secretary to the Board entrusted with the duty of ensuring compliance with the
recommendalions on good governance?

Yes No

Remarks

Article 12 of the Council Regulation states in its last paragraph hat the Secretary shall
also be responsible for verifying compliance by the Company's corporate governance
regulations and interprelations thereof, as provided in this Regulation. He also
discussed the recommendations on corporate governance to be formulated at all times
for possible incorporation into the internal rules of the Company.

C.1.35 Indicale, as the case may be, the mechanisms established by the company io preserve the
independence of the external auditors, financial analysts, investment banks and raling agencies.

Corresponds to the Audit Commillee lizise with the externat auditors to receive information on any
issues thal could jeopardize lhe independence thereof.

In addition, the appoiniment of auditors is made possible alternalives always faking as audit firms
preslige.

C.1.36 Indicate whether the company changed its external auditor during the financial year. If so, identify
the incoming and outgoing auditors:

Yes No

In the evenl of disagreements with the outgoing audiler, please provide delails:

C.1.37 Indicate whether the audit firm performs other non-audil work for the company and/or ils business
group and, If so, stale the tofal fees paid for such work and lhe percenlage this represents of the
fees billed to the company and/or ils business group:

Yes No

Company Group Total
Fees for non-audit work | 127 20 147
(in thousands of Euros)
Fees for non-audit | 28.6% 4.5% 33.1%

work/total amount
invoiced by the audit
firm {in %)
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C.1.38 Indicate whether the audit report on the financial statement for the previous financial year contains
reservations or qualifications. {f so, detail the reasons given by the Chairman of the Audit

C.1.39

Committee to explain the content and scope of such reservations or qualificalions.

Yes No

State the number of conseculive years during which the current audit firm has been audiling the
financial statement of the company and/or ils business group. Also indicate the percentage of
years the current audit firm has been audiling lhe accounts over the fotal number of years lhe

financial statement have been audited:

Company Group
Number of consecutive years 20 220
Company Group
Number of years audited by the | 100% 100%
current auditing company / number
of years the company has been
audited

C.1.40 Indicate and, if applicable, provide detail of the procedure by which directors may seek exlemnal

consultancy.

Yes No

Details of the procedure

Article 27 of (he Board of Direclors Regulations sels out the following: In order to
appropriately develop their functions and dulies, Directors, Commissions and
Commiltees may request the Chairman of lhe Board the support of legal,
accountancy and financial counsellors,

Only certain problems of great significance and complexity may be subject to these
services.

C.1.41 Indicate and, as the case may be, provide detail of the procedure by which board members ¢an
obtain the necessary informalion in advance to prepare for meetings of the governing bodies:

Yes No

Detalls of the procedure

Article 26 of the Board of Direclors Regulations - Disclosure rights

The Director shall be duly informed on the performance of the Company and, wilh
such purpose, may request information to top management executives, informing the
Chairman or CEQ of the same. Further, any Director may request, rough the
Chairman, CEO, Secretary and Depuly-Secretary of the Board, information deemed
appropriate_on the Company. Information Rights affect branch offices, both al
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C.1.42

C.1.43

C.1.44

C.1.45

domeslic and International markets. Each member of the board shall have all the
information submitted to the Board. The Chairman, Deputy-Chairman, the CEO, the
Secretary and the Depuly-Secretary shall try to respond to informalion request
directly or providing the name of the adequate person wilhin the organisation. If the
Chairman considers said informalion may negalively affect the organisation, the
issue may be dealt with by the Board.

Indicate and, as the case may be, provide delail of whether the company established rules that
oblige directors to report and, where appropriate, resign in cases where the image and reputation of
lhe company may be at stake:

Yes No

Explanation of the rules

Article 25 of the Board of Directors Regulations.

Directors shall resign from their posts upon expiration of the period for which they
were appointment, whenever elected by the General Meeting or when incurring into
legal reason for such resignation.

Members of the Board must place their post at the dismissal of the Board of Directors
and resign whenever incurring into prohibitions esfablished by Art. 213 of the
Companies Act and any other legal applicable provisions.

The Board of Directors shall not propose the cessation of independent directors until
completion of the period which they were appoinlment for unless reasonable cause
and duly reported to the Appoinlment, Remunerations and Good Governance
Commission. Reasonable cause is lhat related to the non compliance wilh obligalions
and liabilities inherenl fo the posl. Additionally, the cessation of independent board
members from mergers or other similar transaclions which may involve a change in
the social capital structure of the company.

Indicate whether any member of lhe Board of Directors informed the company that hefshe was tried
or formally accused of any of the offences stipulated in Arlicle 213 of the Spanish Corporations Acl:

Yes No lZ‘

Indicale whether the Board of Directors analysed the case. |f the answer is yes, explain the
reasons for the decision laken on whether or nol the board member should continue to hold its post
or, 3s lhe case may be, stale the aclions that the Board of Directors have taken up o the date of
this report or the report intended {o be issued later.

List the still valid significant agreemenis signed by the company, whether modilied or terminated in
the event of a change in the company’s contro} through a hostile takeover bid, and its effects.

There are not agreemenits.

Identify in sum and provide delail of the agreemenls signed between the company and its
administrative, management or employee posts with compensations, guarantees or protection
clauses, in the event of resignation or unlawful dismissal or if confraclual relationship is abruptly
hafted because of a hostile takeover bid or other kinds of ransaclions.

There are not such agreements. oy
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Cc.2

indicate whether the governing bodies of the company or its group must be informed of andfor must approve
such contracts:

Board of Direclors General Meeling
Body authorising the No No
clauses
Yes No
Is the General Meeling reporied on X
clauses authorised?

Committees of the Board of Directors

c.2.1

Give details of all commiftees of the board of directors, their members and the proportion of
proprietary and independent board members on such commiltees:

EXECUTIVE COMMITEE

Name Post Type
JACINTO REY CHAIRMAN EXECUTIVE
GONZALEZ .
JACINTO REY LAREDO DIRECTOR EXEUTIVE
JOSE MANLUEL OTERO DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT
NOVAS
% of executive board members 67
% of nominee board members 0
% of independent board members 33
% of external board members 0
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Name Post Type
ALTINA DE FATIMA CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
SEBASTIAN GONZALEZ
JOSE MANUEL OTERO DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT
NOVAS
RAMON BARRAL DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT
ANDRADE
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% of executive board members 0
% of nominee board members 0
% of independent board members 100
% of external board members 0

APPOITMENTS AND REMUNERATIONS COMMITTEE

Name Post Type

RAMON BARRAL CHAIRMAN INDEPENDENT
ANDRADE

ROBERTO ALVAREZ DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT
ALVAREZ

JOSE MANUEL OTERO DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT
NOVAS

JAVIER REY LAREDO DIRECTOR INDEPENDENT

% of executive board members 25

% of nominee board members 0

% of Independent board members 75

% of external board members 0

INTERNATIONAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Name Post Type

JACINTO REY CHAIRMAN EXECUTIVE
GONZALEZ

JACINTO REY LAREDO DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE

ROBERTO REY DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE
PERALES

% of executive board members 100

% of nominee board members 0

% of independent board members 0

% of external board members 0

ERTRE e LA GLESIAS
INTERPREVE JURA INGlr_EiséESEéNOL
HSe ] 1, O,
S g ‘.‘Enlcvcdra)
Lymait.com
- 3368Y0ED




Translation info English of consolidated management report for the year ending 31 December 2013 originally issued in Spanish. In the eveni of
discrepancy, the Spanish language version prevails

C.22

Complele the following table using the information relaling to the number of female board members
who have served on the Board of Directors commillees over the past four financial years:

Total number of female board memb:

ers

Year 2014 Year 2013 Year 2012

Year 2011

number % number % number| %

number

%

Executive committee 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

0

0%

Audit committee 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

0

0%

Appointments and 1 33.3% 1 33.3% 0 0%
remunerations committee

o

0%

committee

International executive 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

0%

c23

Indicate whether the following funclions are vested in the Audit Commiltee:

Yes

No

Monitoring the preparation process and the integrity of the
financial report with regards to the company and, as the case may
be, the group, verlfying compliance with legal requirements and
the correct application of accounting criteria, and appropriately
specifying the scope of consolidation,

X

Frequently assessing the Internal risks monitoring and
management systems so that the main risks are adequately
identified, managed and revealed.

Monitoring the Independence and efficacy of internal auditing;
proposing the selection, appointment, re-election and removal of
the head of internal audit; proposing the department’s budget;
recelving regular feedbacks on its activities; and verifying whether
senior management is acting on the findings and
recommendations of the reports.

Establishing and supervising mechanisms by which employees
may secretly and, if necessary, anonymously report potentially
significant, Especially, financial and accounting irregularities, with
potentially serious implications for the company

Presenting proposals to the Board of Directors for the selection,
appointment, re-selection and substitution of the external auditor,
and the contracting conditions.

Regularly receiving information on the audit plan and on the
implementation results from the external auditor, and ensuring
that the senior management takes the recommendations into
account.

Ensuring the independence of the external auditor

C.2.4 Describe the rules of organization and function, as well as the responsibilities allributed to each of the

Commillees of the board of directors.

The Execulive Commiltee has all the facullies of the Board except for those that cannot be legally

delegated.
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it is borne to the following performance rules:

1.

.The Executive Committee will meet according to the schedule of meetings to be sel at the
beginning of each year and whenever the Chairman deems it appropriale in order to ensure
the proper performance of ithe Commiltee.

Notice of meelings of lhe Executive Committee shall be by any means which can be
recorded.

Execulive Commillee will be quorate when at least half of its members are present or
represented. Whenever Directors Member of the Execulive Committee cannot personally
attend the meeling, Directors may delegate their represenlation lo anolher allendee
members by leller addressed to the Chairman.

Meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of Board. In the absence of the Chairman, his
duties shall be exercised by the Deputy-Chairman, and in the evenl of being several priorily
shall be set out by number, and in default of these, the Director appointed by the Committee
from among its members to fulfil this funclion.

Secretary and Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors shall acl as Secretary and
Depuly-Secretary of the Executive Comimiltee and, in the event of being several priorities
shall be set oul by priorily number, and in the absence of these, the Director appointed by
the Commission from among its members to fulfil this function,

Agreementis shall be adopted by majority Resclulions shall be adopted by an absolute
majority of those present at the meeting.

The Execulive Commitlee may pass resolutions without a calling a meeling pursuant to the
same conditions of the Board.

Notwilhstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors may establish any additional rules or operating
rules applicable to the Executive Commiiltee.

The Board of Directors shall have knowledge of matters discussed and any decisions adopted by the
Execulive Commiltee.

-The explanalicn conlinues on H.1-

€.2.5 Indicate, as the case may be, the existence of regulations of committees of the Board, where they can
be reached for consuilations and any amendments that may have been made during the financial

year.

Also slate whether annual reports were voluntarily prepared on the aclivilies of each

commillee.

The regulation of the Board Committees is governed by the Board of Directors Regulations which is
available on the company's website.

C.2.6 Indicate whelher the composition of the execulive commiftee reflects lhe paricipalion of lhe different
categories based on lheir condition on the board:

Yes No [XI

In not, explain the composition of the executive committee.

CHAIRMAN, JACINTO REY GONZALEZ, CEO
DIRECTOR, JACINTO REY LAREDO, CEO

DIRECTOR, JOSE MANUEL OTERO NOVAS, INDEPENDENT

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE BOARD MEMBERS ARE:
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D | CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS

D.1

D.2

D.3

D.4

D.5

D.6

Identify the competent organ and explain, as the case may be, the procedure for approving associate and
intra-group fransactions.

Competent organ for approving associate transactions

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Procedures for approving associate transactions

Arlicle 33 of the Board of Directors Regulations.

All the transactions executed by the Company, either direct or indirectly, with Members of the
Board, significant shareholders or represenlatives of Members of the Board, require the
authorisation of the Board and the prior approval of the Appointments, Remuneration and
Good Governance Commillee, unless for daily business common transactions.

Transactions referred to in the previous paragraph must comply with principles of equal
treatment and market conditions and shall be listed in the Annual Good Governance Reporl
and public information released according to applicable standards and regulations.

Explain whether the approval of lransactions between associate parties was assigned. If so, state the crgan
to which or persons to whom il was assigned.

It has not been assigned to anyone.

Give details of ransactions deemed significant due to the amount or relevant due to the aspect between the
company and companies of its group, and the significant shareholders in the company:

Give details of transaclions that are significant due to amount or that are relevant due to the nalure between
the company and companies of its group, and the managers and directors of the company:

Repor on the significant transactions between the company and other enlities in the same group provided
they are not eliminated in the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements, and are nol part of
the normal company lransactions with regards 1o purpose and condilions.

At any rale, report shall be issued on any inlra-group fransaclion with entities in countries or territories
classified as tax havens:

Indicate the amount of the transaclions with other connecled parties.
THOUSAND EUR 0.

Provide details of any mechanisms in place lo detect, determine and resolve possible conflicts of interest
belween the company and/or its group and its Board members, execulives or significant shareholders.

Aricle 33 of the Board of Directors Regulations.

All the transactions executed by the Company, either direct or indirectly, with Members of the Board,
significan! shareholders or representatives of Members of the Board, require the authorisalion of the Board
and the prior approval of the Appointments, Remuneration and Good Governance Committee, unless for
daily business common {ransactions.
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Transaclions referred to in the previous paragraph must comply with principles of equal ireatment and
market condilions and shall be listed in the Annual Good Governance Report and public information
released according to applicable standards and regulations.

D.7 s more than one company of the group lisled in Spain?

Yas No

ldenlify the subsidiaries listed in Spain:

Indicate whelher the respeclive business lines and possible business relations among such companies have
been publicly and precisely defined, as well as those of the listed subsidiary with the other companies in the
group:

Define any businoss relations between the parent company and the listed
subsldlary company, and between the latter and the other companles In the
group.

Identify the mechanisms envisaged to resolve any conflicts of interests between the listed subsidiary and the
other companies in the group:

Mechanlsms to resolve possible confilcts of Interest

El RISKS MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING SYSTEMS
E.1 Explain lhe scope of the company's Risks Management System.

The Group SANJOSE is a group of companies operating globally in various fields of aclivily:
construction, concessions, mainlenance, real estate, elc.

To do this, it gives a local address in each of the countries in which it operates, with experienced
professionats wuth knowledge related fo the country and type of aclivily. Also has support and conlrol
depariments at cenlral headquarters, located in Madrid.

The scope of the risk management system covers the enlire Group, regardless of the aclivity and / or
geographical region.

E.2 Identify lhe section of the company in charge of elaborating and executing the Risks Management Syslem.

The Board of Directors formally assumes the ullimale responsibilily for lhe existence and proper
application of the Internal Control System.

The role of the Board of Grupo SANJOSE is to approve the policy of control and risk management, and
the periodic monitoring of internal informalion and control systems. This function is lransferred to the
Audit Committee, which periodically checks the correct design and development of the internal control
system, in coordination with the General Direclors of each area, as well as the Group CEO.

h
[Extv]
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E.3 Specify the main risks that could affect the altainment of business objeclives.

The main risks to which the Group is exposed, derived of the lypes of aclivilies developed and the
environment where those aclivities are performed. These risks are:

- Markel Risk: in particular,
a) those relating to the demand for the services and products offered by lhe Group.
b) related to the demand for real estate assets and, consequently, the indirect effect it has
on the valuation of these assels in lhe balance sheel of the Group.

- Regulalory Risk: concerning compliance with the legal requirements that affect the development of
the activity. The number of countries where the Group operates is high, being subject to ihe
regulatory framework of each counlry.

In addition, certain aclivities developed by the Group have a special regulation.

- Financial Risk: exposure to liquidity risk, currency risk and inlerest rates.

- Operative Risk: Group aclivity consists primarily in the design, development and management of
construction projects. The Group possesses very demanding controls to ensure the proper conduct
of ils business controls and the provision of high quality services to ils customers.

- Risk Of fraud.

E.4 Indicate whether the company has = risk tolerance level.

The aim of Grupo SANJOSE, regarding the internal conlro! system established, is o identify and
minimize the risks to which it is exposed, in a context of cosl / benefit of the implemented conirol

processes.

E.5 Identify the risks that materialized during the financial year.

The main risks to which the Group is exposed thal have malterialized during the year 2014 were:

- Market Risk: having very significant reduction in the [evel of bidding for public wotks, as well as the
level of private conlracling, justified by budgelary consiraints measures being carried out, as well as
a widespread lack of confidence in the market.

- Business Risk: specifically, liquidity risk. The Group recently signed a financial restrucluring in order
o ensure the necessary financial stability to develop their activily in the medium and long lerm.
Currenlly it is under warranty registration and improving other aspecls required in the contract
mentioned.

E.6 Explain the response and supervision plan for the most threatening risks of the entity.

The internal conlrol system is mainly focused on pre identify the risks to which the Group may be
exposed by the intrinsic characleristics of the aclivity or markets in which it operales, eslablish the
necessary conlrols to minimize possible contingencies that may arise, and create aclions or responses
to those contingences once occurred.

In this regard, monitoring and respense plans {or major risk events they are:

- Demand risk: the commercial depariment has multiple tools to identify and evaluate new business
opportunities, being in full coordination with the Chairman and CEO, as well as the Production
Management.

- Financial risks: aclivily budgels are periodically done and supervise, in particular, estimation
related to the Company’s cash, in a daily, weekly and monthly basis,
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- Produclion Risk: there is a syslem of supervision and authorization in order to avoid assuming
risk posilions on the bids submitled, as well as supervision during the development and
production phase of works.

- Risk of fraud: there is a very strict syslem laid down, to the granting of powers to the management
and employees of the Group, as well as to making payments. Addilionally, these actions are
reviewed by internal audit of the Group.

Internal risks monltoring and management systems in relation to the process of financial reporting
{System of Internal Control over Financial Reporting).

Describe the mechanisms entailed in the risks monitoring and management system in relation to the company's
financial reporting {System of Internal Control over Financial Reporting) process.

F.1 The Company's control environment
Report, pointing out the main characteristics of al least:

F.1.1. The bodies andfor functions in charge of: (i) the existence and maintenance of an appropriate and
effeclive Syslem of Internal Control over Financial Reporling; (ii) ils inlroduction; and (iii} its supervision.

The Internal Control System on Financial Information (SCIIF) of the Group is based upon the on the
principles and good practices of the reporis published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Tread way Commission {C0OSO) that sels out the main guidelines for the implementation, management and
control of a syslem of internal control and corporate risk management.

The Board of Directors formally assumes the ultimate responsibitity for the existence and correct application
of Internal Control Sysiems on Financial Information. The Board of Direclors' role is to approve the risk
conlrol and management policy, and the regular moniloring of internal informalion and control systems Said
funclion has been transferred to the Audit Committee, who should be informed of controls implemented by
the Financial Department. For controls which may be considered appropriate, especially those made directly
by the Finance Depariment and with a high element of subjectivily, the Board of Directors will require the
implementation of appropriale conlrol procedures.

The design, implementation and operation of SCIIF is the responsibilily of the General Direclorale of
Administration and Finance Group, as set forlh the San Jose Group Oversighl Policy of SCIIF.

internal Audil Management of Grupo SANJOSE shall be responsible for the monitoring and control of said
funclions, as well as any other functions entrusted by the Board of Direclors or the Audit Committee,

F.1.2. The following elemenls, if exisling, especially in relation to the process of elaborating the financial
report:

. Depariments andfor mechanisms in charge of: (i} designing and revising the organisational
slruclure; (i) clearly defining lhe lines of responsibility and autherily, with an appropriate
distribulion of dulies and lasks; and (jii) ensuring the existence of sufficient procedures for its
correct announcement through out lhe entity.

The Board of Directors through the CEOQ, regarding depariments involved in the elaboration of
financial information. Is responsible for the design and revision of the arganisalional structure.

The Chief Execulive Officer through the Human Resources Management is responsible for
defining the lines of responsibilily and autharity, with an appropriate distribution of tasks and
functions.

The Group has a section on the Intranet which publishes lhe organizational structure, The
funclions of the mainly responsible for the area, Access o lhese files is restricted based on
the type of user you refer.

. Code of conduct, body of approval, degree of publication and instruclion, principles and values
including (indicating whether there is specific mention of the recordim:;r offrarisactions and thens
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elaboration of the financial report), body in charge of analysing breaches and of proposing the
correct aclions and sanctions.

Grupo SANJOSE has a Code of Conduct that is in he process of approval by the Board of
Directors.

The main values in the Code of Conduct refer to:

- Maintaining an unimpeachable standard of integrily in their behaviour and relalionships, both
outside as inside ihe organisation.

- Oplimization of resources which is responsible to provide maximum compelitiveness to
SANJOSE Group.

- Objectivily, transparency and non discrimination in adminislrative management and
elaboralion of financial information to ensure its reliability.

- Enforcement of policies and internal rules and legislation. Obligation of rejeclion and
reporting of any bad praclice.

- Treatmenl of confidential informalion which comes fo light in the process of developing
administrative and financial information.

Whistle blowing channel, which enables reporting of irregularities of financial and accounting
nalure to the audils commiltee, in addition to possible breaches of the code of conduct and
irregular aclivilies in the organization. The reports may be filed in secrecy or anonymily.

The Group possesses the necessary tools lo allow any type of incident report in this respect,
saleguarding confidentiality, irregular behaviour of a financial nature accounting or any olher,
and any eventual breach of lhe Code of Conduct.

Training programs and regular updates for the personnel involved in the preparation and
revision of the financial report, as well as in the evalualion of the System of Internal Control
over Financial Reporting, which should at least cover accounting regulations, auditing, inlernal
risks monitoring and management.

Personnel of Grupo SANJOSE involved in the preparation and review of financial information
and assessmenl of internal control systems on financial informalion are subject lo continuous
training programmes on regulation updates and besl praclices necessary to ensure lhe
reliability of financial reporting.

F.2 Financial Reporling Risks Assessment;

Reporl, at leasl:

F.2.1. What are the main characleristics of the process of identifying risks, including those of error or fraud,
with regards 1o:

Whether the process exists and is documented.

The presence of Grupo SANJOSE in several business areas in different countries with
different regulatory, political and social frameworks involves he assessment of risks of
different nature.

During year 2011, the Group idenlified the major risks which it is exposed io, having
documented SCIIF at domeslic and internalional levels. Periodically, the Group has carried
out revision and updale tasks.

Whether the process covers the enlire financial reporting objeclives, (existence and
occurrence, integrily, valualion, presentation, disclosure and comparability, rights and
obligations), it is updated and how often.

The idenlification of risks affecting the reliability of financial information is based and has its
beginning in determining the scope, according to quantitative criterid sofgon

ety
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within the consolidated financial stalements regarding the Group's “Nel revenue" and "Total
Assels ", as well as other quantitative criteria / error, fraud, unusual transactions,

For each executed sub processes, risks arising al each stage of the process- sub process and
internal controls are identified and documented by a Risk-Control Matrix, which analyses the
adequate coverage of financial informalion reporling objeclives (existence and occurrence,
inlegrily, valuation, presentation, disclosure and comparability, righls and obligations).

Said process is updated pursuant to scope of consolidalion and business aclivity results as
recorded wilhin the Financial Statements by analysing changes recorded within processes
and sub processes,

. The existence of an identification process of scope of consolidation method by taking into
account, inter alia, the existence of complex corporate slructures and special purpose
vehicles.

The Group has a documented process based on domeslic regulation which guarantees the
adequate idenfification of the scope of consolidation through a proper segregation of duties in
the requesl, authorization, recording and reporiing of any transaction of incorporalion, merger,
acquisition or sale of companies and any other corporate transaction, and that means for their
execution, direclly and in a coordinated manner, the Central Government Depariments
Corporate, Consalidation, Legal and Tax, among others.

This process considers the existence of complex corporate structures and special purpose
vehicles, through, inler alia, the establishment of an adequate structure of segregation of
duties for applicalion, approval and communication to take any corporate action in the Group.

. Whelher the process takes into account lhe effects of other types of risks (operalional,
technological, financial, legal, repulational, environmental, eic) affecling the financial
slatements,

The inlernal control system of the Group on financial information has been designed from a
global point of view by considering effecls arising from all types of risks (operational,
environmental, etc).

. Which enlily within the institution monitors the aforesaid process
The Internal Audit Department is responsible for monitoring the SCIIF, consisting of:

a) Follow up of recommendations and ensure their adequate implementation by the General
Direction of Administration and Finance;

b) Issuance opinions {binding) on changes proposed by the General Directorate of
Administration and Finance, etc.

¢) The General Direclion of Administralion and Finance, through the Bureau of Administralion
and consolidalion will evaluate and will validate lwice a year, coinciding with the issuance of
semi-annual and annual information, the SCIIF complefely. The problem identified will
reported to the Internal Audit Group, in order to evaluate the design and effecliveness of SCIIF
by a report to the Audit Committee, including lhe identification of the weaknesses of SCIIF as
well as suggested actions of corrections

F3 Control Aclivilies
Report poinling out the main characleristics of the following, if any, is at least include:

F.3.1. Procedures for reviewing and authorizing the financial reporling and the description of the Syslem of
Inlernal Conlrol over Financial Reporling, to be published at the stock market, indicating
responsibliliies, as well as the descriptive documents of cash flows and monitoring {even in
connection with fraud risks) of the various types of lransactions that could malterially affect the
financial statements, including the accounting closure proceedings and lhrepspltlegj.ﬁp,,_;egiﬂgn;g,fﬂghe
judgements, eslimates, evaluations and relevant projections. INIERP;Q:ETEJUI" ) HGLES-ESPANOL
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Grupo SANJOSE has revision and authorisalion procedures on financial information and internal
control SCIFF, being the Board of Direclors responsible for the same and having said powers
transferred to the Audit commiltee pursuant to arlicle 16.4. of the Board of Directors' Regulation of
GESJ, S.A,

The Audit Commiltee reviews, analyses and makes comments on the Financial Statements and any
other financial information, as well as judgements and estimates, together with the directorate
General of Finance and the Internal audit Depariment and External Auditors in order to verify
information reliability and consistency with previous years.

The flow of activilies and conlrol tesls, even those regarding fraud, of fransactions affecting the
financial stalements, accounting close and specific revision of judgements and estimates included,
are duly document by means of lhe mandatory corporate policies, slandards and procedures.

F.3.2. Polictes and procedures of internal control of information systems (among others, access securily,
monitoring of changes, operation continuily, and segregalion of duties) that support relevant
processes within the organisation in relation to the development and public release of financial
informalion.

Grupo SANJOSE has policies, standards and procedures of interal control of informalion syslems
and security management set within the MSIS or Management System of Safely of Information
Systems, in accordance with inlernational standards, such as ISO 27001, ISO27002.

Access to information syslems is managed in accordance with the job title of posilions, limitations
are established by applicable regulations and business needs in order to ensure the reliability of the
information. Following corporale policy, Companies of the Group, coordinated by the Director of
Systems, define access profiles, modificalion, validation or query information based on each users
role, assigned-under the crileria of an adequate segregation of duties.

Procedures have been established to ensure that inslalled software cannol be changed without
specific permission. All informalion syslems are protected against viruses and software updales are
available to prevent hacking into information systems

£.3.3. Polictes and internal conirol procedures for monitoring the management of oulsourcing aclivities to
third parties, and aspects regarding assessment and calculation of works entrusted to independent
experts, which may affecl financial statements in a cerlain way.

As a general rule, Grupo SANJOSE performs management controls of aclivities which may affect the
reliability of financial slatements by the direcl use of internal resources, avoiding oulsourcing
activities,

The management of assessmenl activities, calculation or assessment procedures commissioned to
independent experts refer mainly lo real estate appraisal. The seleclion of such companies is
performed according to methods consistent with the criteria established by "The Royal Instilution of
Chartered Surveyors® in implementing International Assessment Standards,

The reporis on assets assessment are subjected to an Internal review process to verify the adequacy
of hypotheses and most significant assumptions used, as well as its compliance wilh International
Accounting and Assessment Standards.

F.4 Information and Reporting
Report poinling out the main characteristics of the foliowing, if any, is at least include:

F.4.1. A specific funclion responsible for defining, maintaining up to date accounling policies (area or
departmenl of accounting policies) and resolving questions or dispules regarding their interpretation
and ensuring good communication wilh those responsible for operations within in the organization, as
well as keeping up to date guidelines on accounting policies duly informing operaling units on the
same.

The Group has procedures and mechanisms to convey to staff involved in the preparalion of financial
information the applicable performance criteria and the information systems ysgelinsuch: plr‘di:’é's'é'é‘é
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F.4.2,

The ullimate responsibility lays on the General Direction of Administration and Finance and must be
carried out through the Central Administration Office together with the Consolidation and Contol
Management Division.

Mechanisms of submission and preparation of financial informalion in homogenecus formats,
applicalion to all units, which support main financial statements and the accompanying notes, as well
as information detailed on internal control syslems on financial informalion, SCIIF.

The Group's financial information is produced through a process consisling of aggregating individual
financial stalements for furlher consolidalion in response lo consolidation and accounting regulalions
on consolidated financial information publishing in the markets.

All of the unils within the SANJOSE Group are required to submit detailed financial information using
a single format and a CFO is responsible for each level of aggregalion. The Consolidation
Depariment establishes the formats to use and analyses potential problems which may arise,
reporting the same to the General Direction of Administration and Finance.

In the process of aggregalion and consolidalion of financial slalemenis, the Group employs the
software applicalion so-called CONSOLIDADA,; this tool is parameterised for tesling and automatic
reconclliations looking for inconsistencies in the recorded dala before validating them. This tool
generates improvements in information securily, as well as progress in the implementation of details.

F.5 System Operalion Supervision

Report pointing out the main characteristics of the following, if any, is al least include:

F.5.1. The activities of supervising the System of Internal Control over Financial Reporling performed by the

audils commiltee, and of whether lhe entity has an internal audits system thal is empowered to
support the committee in supervising the internal monilering system, including the SICFR. Also
provide information on the scope of Llhe assessment of the SICFR performed during the financial
year and on the process by which the head of the assessmenl reporls lhe results, whether the enlity
has an action plan that oullines the possible corrective measures, and whether its impact on lhe
financial reporling has been considered.

Among the functions of the Audif Commiliee, the Board of Directors Regulation includes the
monitaring of accounting and financial informalion, internal and external audit services and corporate
governance.

The SCHF moniloring activities undertaken by the Audit Commitlee include the following:

-To approve lhe internal audit plan for the assessment of Internal Conirol Syslems of Financial
Information Reporting and receive regular information on worked performed and a cormreclive action
plan.

Monitoring the independence and efficacy of internal auditing; proposing the selection, appointment,
re-election and removal of the head of internal audit; proposing the department’s budget; receiving
regular feedbacks on ils activities; and verifying whether senior management is acting on (he findings
and recommendalions of the reports,

- To review on a semi-annual and quarlerly basis the preparalion of financial statements.

The Group has an Internal Audit Depariment responsibte for the assurance and consulling functions,
among olher, supporling the Audit Commitiee on moniloring the internal conlrol system of financial
reporting.

The internal Audil Depariment submits to the Audit Committee ils annual working plan, reports
direclly of all incidenls identified in its development, proposing possible corrective measutes on the
same.

F.5.2. Whether there is a discussion procedure by which the accounts auditor {pursuant to the stipulalions of

the NTA), the function of lhe internal audits and olher experts may reperl the significant weaknesses
identified in the internal monitoring during the revision of the financial statemenls or all the olhers
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F.6

F.7

enlrusted to them lo the top management and to the audits committee or o the directors of the enlity,
Also report whether there is an aclion plan for correcting or mitigating the weaknesses uncovered,

The Audit Commiltee maintains a stable and professional relationship with the external audilors of
Grupo SANJOSE and the main Group companies, wilh strict respect for their independence. This
relationship facilitales communication and discussion of significant weaknesses of internal control
identified during the revision of financial statements.

In this regard, the Audil committee is regularly informed by the external audilor on the progress and
findings of the audiling plan and to ensure that senior management act on its recommendations.

The Director of Internal Audit, eilher in the process of reviewing the financial statements, issues a
report addressed {o Direclorale General or the Area Manager involved in such revision. The report
emphasises on process weaknesses and olher idenlified issues, resolving on correclives measures
to be implement.. The Depariment of Internal Audit assesses correction measures regarding
implementing time and method. The Internal Audit Department reporis on a regular basis o the Audit
Commillee of the main weaknesses identified as well as the correclion process implemented.

Other Information of Interest

Report from the External Auditor
Report:

F.7.1. Whether the exlernal auditor revised the SICFR information issued to the markets and, if so, {he enlily
must include the corresponding report as annex. Olherwise, if that is nol the case, the entily must
provide ils reasons.

The Group does not submit the SICFR information issued to the markels, to the external auditors review.

Degree to which corporate governance recommendations are followed
Indicate the degree to which the company follows the recommendalions of the Unified Good Governance Code,

In the event that a recommendation is not or is only partially followed, the enlity should include detailed
explanalion of its reasons such that lhe shareholders, investors and the market in general, are provided with
sufficient information to assess lhe performance of the company. Explanations of general nature shall not be
acceptable,

1. The bylaws of listed companies should not limit the votes that can be cast by a single shareholder,
or impose other obslacles to impede the takeover of the company by means of share purchases on
the market.

See seclion:  A.10,B.1,B.2,C.1.23 y C.1.24,

Compliant lXI Explain
2 When a parent and a subsidiary company are listed, both should provide detailed disclosure on:

a) Their respective lypes of activities, and any business dealings between them, including between
the fisted subsidiary and other companies in the group:

b) The mechanisms in place to resolve possible conflicts of interest. A O IGLESIAS
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See seclion: D.4yD.7

Complaint Partially compliant Explain  Not applicable
3 That even when nol expressly required under Commercial Law, all decisions involving a fundamentat
corporate reslructuring, especially the following, is submilted to the Shareholders for approval or
ratification:
a) The transformation of listed companies into holding companies through the process of
subsidiarisallon, i.e. reallocating previous core aclivities of such company lo subsidiaries, even if the
latter retafns full control of the former;

b) Any acquisition or transfer of key operating assels thal would effectively alter the company's
corporale purpose;

<) Operations that effectively amount to the company's liquidation,

See section: B.6

Complaint Partialty compliant Explain IZ'
This situation has nol be considered
4. Delailed proposals of the resolutions to be adopled at lhe General Meeting of Shareholders, including

the information stated in recommendation 27, should be made available at the same lime the meeling
is convened

Compliant Explain

5. Substantially independenl issues should be voted separalely af the General Meeting of Shareholders,
in order for shareholders to be able to exercise their voling preferences separately. And that said
rule applies, pariicularly:

a) To the appointment or ratilication of direclors, wilh separate voling on each candidate;

b) To amendments lo the bylaws, with voles taken on all malerially different arlicles or groups of
arlicles.

Complaint 'Zl Parlially complaint Explain

6. Companies should allow split votes, so that financial intermediaries acling as nominees on behalf of
various clients can issue their votes according to instructions.

Compliant Explain

7. The board of directors should perform ils duties with unity of purpose and criteria independence,
giving ali the shareholders the same treatment, allowing itself to be guided only by the company's
interests, which means striving to maximise its economic value in a sustainable manner.

It should likewise ensure that the company abides by the laws and regulations in its dealings with
stakeholders; performing its obligalions and contracts in good faith; respecting the customs and good
praclices of the sectors and lerritories in which it operates; and upholding any additional social
responsibilily principles to which it may have voluntarily subscribed.

Complaint Partially compliant ~ Explain \
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8. The core components of the board's mission should be to approve the company's stralegy and the
organization required for its execulion, and to ensure thal management attains the objectives while
pursuing the company’s interests and corporate purpose. As such, the board fully reserves the right
to approve:

a) The company’s general policies and strategies, and in particular
i} The strategic or business plan, management targets and annual budgels;
ii) Invesiment and financing policy
iy Definition of the slructure of the group of companies
iv) Corporate governance policy
v) Corporate social responsibilily policy

vi) Senior slaff performance remuneration and evaluation policy

vii) Risk conlrol and management policy, and the regular monitoring of internal information and
control systems

viii) Dividend and {reasury stock policies and especially their limils
See section: C.1.14, C.1.16yE.2
b) The following decisions:

i) On the proposal of the company's chief execulive, the appoiniment and removal of senior
officers, and their compensation clauses.

i) Remuneration of board members, including, in the case of executive members, the additional
considerations for their executive dulies and other conlract conditions.

iii) The financial information that all listed companies must periodically disclose.

iv) All kinds of investments or operalions deemed strategic due to their huge amount or special
characteristics, except if they require the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

v) The crealion or acquisition of shares in special purpose vehicles or entities resident in countries
or territories considered tax havens, and any other comparable transactions or operations with
complexities thal might impair the transparency of the group

¢} Transactions which the company conducts with board members, significant shareholders,
shareholders with board representation or with other associated persons ("associated
transactions").

However, board authorization need not be required for associated tfransactions that
simultaneously meet the following three conditions:

1. They are governed by standardized agreements that are applied on an across-lhe board bases
to large numbers of clienls;

2. They go through at markel rales, generally set by the person supplying the goods or services;
3. Their amounl is no more than 1 % of the company’s annual revenues.

{t is advisable that the Board approves associated fransaclions only if the audits commitlee issues
a favourable report or, as the case may be, any olher committee assigned to thal funclion; and
that the board members involved may neither exercise nor delegate their voting rights, and shoulg .
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Ideally, with the exceplion of the powers outlined in b) and ¢), which may be delegafed lo the executive
committee in emergencies and later ralified by the plenary session of the Board of Direclors, the above
powers should nof be delegated.

Seeseclion: D.1andD.6

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

9 In the interests of maximum effecliveness and parlicipation, the board of directors should consist of no
fewer then five and no more than fiteen members.

See seclion: C.1.2

Compliant Explain

10 External proprietary and independent board members should occupy an ample majority of board sits,
while the number of executive board members should be cul down o the minimum necessary
bearing in mind the complexily of the corporate group and the percentage of ownership the executive
board members hold in the equity.

See section: A.3and C.1.3.

Complaint Partially compliant Explain

11 Thal among the external board members, the relation between proprietary and independents
members should malch lhe proporiion between the capilal represented on the board by proprietary
board members and the rest of the company's capital.

This strict proportional crilerion can be relaxed so that the weight of proprietary board members is
greater than would correspond lo the total percenlage of capital represented:

1. In companies wilh very large capitals in which fewer or no equity slakes exceed the legal threshold
of significant shareholdings, but where there may be shareholders with considerable sums actually
invested.

2. In companies with pluralily of shareholders represented on the board but not olherwise relaled.

See seclion: A.2, A3and C.1.3

Compliant Explain

12 The number of independent members should represent at least one third of all board members.

See section: C.1.3

Compliant Explain

13 The condition of each board member should be explained at the general meeting of shareholders,
which shall appeint or ratify its appoinlment, with confirmation or, as the case may be, review in the
Annual Corporate Governance Report, before verification by the Appointments committee, And that
said reporl should also disclose the reasons for appeinling proprietary members at the urging of
shareholders with less than 5 % of the capilal, explaining any rejections of formal requests for a place
on the Board of Directors issued by shareholders with capital equal to or greater than that of others
whose requesls for proprietary members may have been accepted.

See section: C.1.3and C.1.8

Complaint Parlially compliant Explain S Tobio. 5, 10
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14 In the event that female board members are few or non existent, the Board should state the reasons
for this situation and the correclion measures implemented; in paricular, the Appoiniments
Commiltee should take sleps to ensure that:

a} the process of filling board vacancies has no implicit bias against female candidates;

b) the company makes a conscious effort to include females in the target profile among the
candidates for board places.

See section: C.1.2,C.1.4,C.1.5,C.1.6,C.22and C.24,

Complaint Parlially compliant Explain  Not applicable

156 The Chairman, as the person respansible for the proper operation of the board, should ensure thai
members are supplied with sufficient information in advance of board meetings, and should
encourage debates and the active involvement of all members, safeguarding their righls lo freely
express opinions and take slands; he should organise and coordinate regular assessments of the
board and, if appropriate, lhe company’s chief executive, along with the chairmen of the relevant
board commillees.

See section: C.1.19and C.1 41

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

16 In the event that the board chairman is also the company's chief execulive, an independent board
member should be empowered to convene board meetings or to include new items on the agenda; to
coordinate and voice the concerns of external board members; and to lead the board's evaluation of
its chairman.

See section: C.1.22

Complaint Partially compliant Explain Not applicable
At least the request by the board members is required for calling the Board.
17 That the board secretary should {ake care to ensure thal the board's actions:

a) Adhere to the spirit and lelter of laws and their implementing regulations, including those issued by
regulatory agencies;

b) Are in conformily with the company Bylaws and the Regulalions of shareholder Meetings, the
Board of Directors and any others in the company;

c) Complies with the recommendaftions on good governance sef forth in the Unified Code that the
company may have accepled;

And that in order o safeguard the independence, impartiality and professionalism of the secretary, its
appointment and termination should be proposed by the appoiniments commiltee and approved by
the plenary session of the board of direclors; and that said appeointment and termination procedure be
included in the Regulations of the board of direclors.

See section: C.1.34

Compiaint Partially complaint Explain

18 The board should meel with the necessary frequency {o properly perform its funclions, following a
calendar and a program scheduled al the beginning of lhe year, 1o which each board member may
propose the addition of olher ilems. .
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See section: C.1.29

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

19 The absences of board members should be reduced to the bare minimum and quanlified in the
Annual Corporale Governance Report. If board members have no choice but to delegate their votes,
such delegation should be with instructions.

See section: C.1.28, C.1.28 and C.1.30

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

20 If board members or the secrelary express concerns about a proposal or, in the case of board
members, aboul lhe company's performance, and such concerns are not resclved at the board
meeting, the person expressing the concerns may request that the concerns be recorded in the
minute book,

Complaint Partially complaint Explain Not applicable

21 The plenary session of the board should evaluate the following once a year:
a) The quality and efficiency of the board’s operation;

b) The level of performance of the company's chairman and chief executive based on the report that
may be submilted by the appointments commillee;

¢) The performance of commillees based on reports that they provide.

See seclion: C.1.19 and C.1 41

Complaint Pariially comptaint Explain
22 All board members may act on the rights fo gather and oblain addilional information deemed
necessary on malters within the board's powers. And unless the bylaws or the board regulations
indicate otherwise, the requests for such shall be addressed to the beard chairman or secretary.

See section: C.1.41

Compliant IX' Explain
23 All board members should be enlitted to call on the company for the required advice and guidance
necessary for the performance of their duties. And the company should provide the appropriate
channels for the exercise of such right, which, in special circumstances, shall include external
assistance at the company's expense.

See section: C.1.40

Compliant 'Z| Explain

24 Companies should sel up orientation programmes thal may provide new board members with quick
and sufficient knowledge of the company and its corporate governance rules and regulations. And
should also offer knowledge updating programs lo board members whenever deemed advisable by
the circumstances.

Complaint Parlially complaint Explain
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No special programmes have been scheduled.

25 Companies should insist that board members devote sufficient lime and effort {o the performance of
their duties effectively, and, as such:

a) board members should apprise the appointments commillee of any other professional obligations
that could possible interfere wilh the dedicalion required from them;

b) and companies should establish rules about the number of boards on which their board members
can sit,

See seclion: C.1.12,C.1.13 and C.1.17

Complaint IX’ Partially complaint Explain

The Company demands lo its direclors sufficient lime for perform their dutties, by the refribution paid
for the attendance to de Board meetings and Committees.

26 The board should first approve any proposal submitted to the shareholders’ general meeting for the
appointment or renewal of board members, including provisional appointments by co-optalion:

a) On the proposal of the appointments commiltee, in the case of independent board members.
b) Subject to report from the appoiniments commiltee in all other cases.

See section: C.1.3

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

27 Companies should post the following information about the board members on their websites, and
keep them permanently updated:

a) Professional experience and background,
b) Other boards on which board member sils, whether listed company or not;

¢) Indicale the calegory of the board member, poinling out, in the case of proprietary members, which
shareholder they represent or to whom they are linked.

d) The date of their first and subsequent appoinlments as members of company's board of directors,
and,

e) Shares held in lhe company and whether said shares are subject fo any options.

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

28 Proprietary board members should resign if the shareholders they represent entirely dispose of such
shares, They should also resign if such shareholders reduce their stakes, thus losing Lhe
-corresponding entitlement to proprietary board membership.

See section: A2, Adand C.1.2

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

29 The board of directors should nol propose the removal of independent board members before their
tenure expires as mandated by the bylaws, excepl in the event of just cause, deemed by the board,
after the Appointments Commitlee issues a reporl. Specifically, just cause shall be understood as

board member acling in breach of hisfher fiduciary duties or incurring in any of-the gircumslandésthat
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may lead to hisfher losing the condition of independent, pursuant to the slipulalions of Order
ECC/461/2013.

The removal of independents may also be proposed when a takeover bid, merger or similar corporate
{ransaclion produces changes in the company’s capital structure, in order to meet the proportionality
criterion set out in recommendation 11.

See seclion: C.1.2,C.1.9,C.1.19and C.1.27

Compliant Explain

30 Companies should establish rules obliging board members lo report of and, as the case may be, to
resign in any circumstance that might damage the company's name or reputation and, in particular,
obliging them to inform the Board of Direclors of all criminal cases in which they may be named as
accused and the progress of any subsequent frials.

Upon the indictment or trial of any direclor for any of the crimes cutlined in Article 124 of the Spanish
Companies Act, the board should examine the malter and, in view of the parlicular circumstances
and potential harm to the company's name and reputalion, decide whether or not he or she should be
called on to resign. The board should also disclose all such determinations in the annual corporate
governance report.

See seclion: G.1.42, C.1.43

Complaint El Parlially complaint Explain

31 All board members should express clear opposition against any proposals submilted for the board’s
approval which, they deem, might damage the corporate interest. Particutarly, independent and other
board members, unaffected by the possible conflicts of interest, should challenge any decision thal
could go against the interests of shareholders not represented on the board.

In the event that the board takes significant or reilerated decisions against which a board member
may have expressed serious reservalions, said board member set out the perlinent conclusions and,
if hefshe decides to resign, he/she should explain the reasons in the letter referred lo in the next
recommendation.

The terms of this recommendation also applies to the board secretary allhough not officially a board
member.

Complaint Partially compliant Explain Not applicable

32 Board members who give up their posilion before their tenure expires, by resignation or oltherwise,
should slate the reasons in a leller remitted to all board members. Regardless of whether such
resignation is filed as a significant event, the reason must be explained in the annual corporate
governance report.

See section: C.1.9

Complaint Partially compliant Explain  Not applicable

33 Execulive board members should be remunerated in portions of the shares of the company or of
companies of the group, share oplions or other share-based inslruments, variable remuneralions
linked to the company's performance or forecast systems.

This recommendation shall not include the allocalion of shares if board members are obliged to relain
them until the end of their tenure.

Complaint Partially compliant Explain :
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34 The remuneration of external board members should sufficiently compensate for the dedicalion,
abililies and responsibilities that the post enlails, bul not to the extenlof compromising their
independence.

Complaint Explain Not applicable

35 Remuneration linked to company earnings should consider lthe possible deductlions reflected in the
external auditor's report and should reduce said results

Complaint Explain Nol applicable

36 In the case of variable compensalions, remuneration policies should include the technical safeguards
necessary to ensure that such remunerations reflect the professional performance of the
.beneficiaries and not simply the general progress of the markets or of the company’s sector, or of
similar circumstances

Complaint Explain Not applicable

37 In the event that the company has an Executive Committee, lhe slruclure of shares of the different
categories of members should be similar to that of the Board itself, and its secretary should be fike
that of the board.

See section: C.2.1and C.2.6

Complaint Partially compliant Explain Not applicable

The compositicn of the Executive Commitlee, is linked to the knowledge of the aclivity and the
Group.

38 The board should always be granted first-hand knowledge of issues deall with and decisions {aken by
the Execulive Commiftee and each board member should receive a copy of the minutes of the
execulive commillee.

Complaint Explain Not applicable

39 In addition to the Audit Commiltee required by the Securilies Market Act, the Board of Directors
should also creale a commillee, or lwo separate commillees, for appointments and remuneralicns.

The rules governing the composilion and operation of lhe audils commillee and the appointments
and remuneralions commiltee or commiltees should be sel forth in the Board Regulations, and
should include:

a) The board of direclors should appoinl lhe members of such commiltees considering the
knowledge, apliludes and experience of the directors and lhe dulies of each commillee; decide on
their proposals and reporis; and be responsible for overseeing and evalualing their work, which
should be reported to the first plenary board following each meeting;

b} These commiltees should consist exclusively of external board members, with a minimum of three.
That notwilhstanding, executive board members or senior officers may also attend meetings, for
information purposes, at the committees’ invitation.

c) Committees should be chaired by independent board members.

d) External consultants may be engaged if deemed necessary for the performance of their duties.

e) Minutes should be recorded of their meelings and copies of such sent to all:hoard: nig "b‘eiétiz!?ﬁ )
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See seclion: C.21and C.2.4

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

40 The supepvision of compliance wilh the internal codes of conduct and corporale governance
regulations should be entrusted 1o the Audits Committee, Appointments Commiltee or, if separalely
existing, Compliance or Corporale Governance committees.

See seclion: C.2.3and C.2.4

Compliant Explain

41 All members of the audits committee, pariicularly its chairman, should be appointed bearing in mind
their knowledge and background in Accounting, Audiling and Risk Management.

Comptiant Explain

42 Listed companies should have an internal audils function, under the supervision of the audils
commitlee, to ensure the proper operation of internal reporling and meniloring systems.

See seclion; C.2.3

Compliant z’ Explain
43 The head of internal audits should submit an annual work plan to the Audits Committee; report to it

direcfly on any incidents arising during ils implementation; and submit an aclivities report at the end
of each year.

Complaint IX' Parlially complaint Explain
44 Risk monitoring and management policy should at least specify:

a) The different types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal, reputation oriented...) to
which the company may be exposed, including those of financial or economic, contingent liabilities
and other off-balance-sheet risks;

b) The determination of the level of risk deemed acceplable {o the company;
c) Measures in place to miligale the impact of risk events should they oceur;

d) The internal reporting and monitoring systems {o be used to moenilor and manage the
aforementioned risks, including contingent liabililies and off-balance sheet risks.

See section; E

Complaint Partially complaint Explain
45 The audits committee’s role should be:
1sl Regarding internal moniloring and reporling systems:

a) The main risks idenlified as consequence of the supervision of the efficacy of the company's
internat monitoring and internal audits, as the case may be, should be managed and appropriately
disclosed.

he, selection,
S-dopanimants o

b) To monitor the independence and efficacy of the internal auditing; pr pose 4
appointment, re-election and removal of {he head of internal audilﬁ@p‘éﬁéﬁ“ﬂ a
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budget; receive regular feedbacks on its activities; and verify that senior management is acling on
the findings and recommendations of the reports.

c) To establish and supervise a mechanism whereby siaff can confidentially and, if necessary,
anonymously report any irregularities detected in the course of their dulies, in particular financial
or accounling irregutarities, with potentially serious implications for the company.

2nd With regards fo the external auditor:

a) To be regularly informed by the external auditor on the progress and findings of the audiling
plan and to ensure thal senior management acl on its recommendations.

b) To make sure the external auditor remains independent and, for that purpose:
i) The company should notify the CNMV of any change of auditor as a significant event,
accompanied by a statement of any disagreemenls arising with the outgoing auditor and the

reasons for the same,

iy The Commillee should investigate the issues giving rise to the resignation of any external
auditor.

See section: C.1.36,C.2.3,C.24 and E.2

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

46 The audits commiltee should be empowered to meet with any company employee or manager, even
ordering their appearance without the presence of another senior officer.

Compliant Explain

47 The audils committee should inform the board on the following points from recommendation 8 before
the board takes any of the relevant decisions:

a) The financial information that all iisled companies must periodically disclose. The committee
should ensure thal interim statements are drawn up under the same Accounting principles as the
annual stalements and, lo this end, may ask lhe external auditor lo conducl a limited review,

b) The creation or acquisilion of shares in special purpose enlities or enlilies resident in countries or
territories considered tax havens, and any other analogous transaclions or operalions which, due to
their complexity, might impair the lransparency of the group.

¢) Transaclions that are linked, excepl where their scruliny is entrusled to some olher supervision
and monitoring committee.

See section: C.2.3and C.2.4

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

48 The board of directors should seek fo present the financia! statement to the Shareholders during the
General Meeling withoul reservations or qualificaticns in the audits report. Should such reservations
or qualificalions exisi, both the Chairman of the Audits Committee and the auditors should clearly
inform the shareholders on said reservations or qualifications.

See section: C.1.38

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

te&sipiAS

49 The majorily of the members of the Appointments —or Appointmenis and Remunegations. Gy .
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See section: C.2.1

Complaint Partially complaint Explain

50 In addilion fo the functions listed in the preceding recommendations, the Appointments Committee

51

should be responsible for the following:

a) Evalualing the necessary abilities, knowledge and experience on the Board, consequently defining
the roles and capabililies required of the candidates to fill each vacancy, and deciding on lhe time
and dedication necessary for them to properly perform their duties.

b) Appropriately examining or organizing the succession of the chairman and chief executive and,
where necessary, making recommendations to the Board for said succession lo proceed in a planned
and orderly manner,

c) Reporting on the appointmenls and removals of senior slaff thal the chief executive may propose
to the board.

d) Reporting to the board on the gender diversity issues discussed in recommendation 14 of this
code.

See seclion: C.2.4

Complaint E Partially complaint Explain

The appointments commiltee should consult the company's chairman and chief execulive on
especially malters relating to execulive board members.

Any board member may suggest possible candidates to the Appoinlments Committee if it deems fit,
for filling out vacancies on the board of directors.

Complaint Parlially compliant Explain Not applicable

52 In addition to the funclions listed in the preceding recommendations, the Appointments Committee

should be responsible for the following:
a) Making the following proposals to the Board of Direclors:
i) The remuneration policy for board members and senior management;

ii) The remuneralion and other contractual conditions of individuals of the execulive board
members;

iy The standard condilions for senior officer employment conlracts.
b) To oversee compliance with the remuneration policy set by the company.

See section: C.2.4

Complaint Partially compliant Explain Not applicable

53 The remunerations commillee should consull the company's chairman and chief execulive on

especially malters relaling to executive board members and senior management.

Complaint IZI Explain Not applicable
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H Other information of Interest

1 Provide a brief defail, if any, on all olher relevant aspecls in the matter of the corporate governance of the
company or enlities of the group that have not been included in the other seclions of this report, but that the
inclusion of which is necessary for the compiling of a more comprehensive and reasonable information on the
struclure and praclices of governance in the enlity or group.

2 In this seclion, you may also include any olher information, clarificalion or detail related to the sections set
forth above in the repor, to the extent that these are deemed relevant and not reilerative.

Specifically, indicate whelher the company is subject o non-Spanish legislation wilh regards to corporate
governance and, if so, include the information it is obliged to provide and which is different from thal required
in this report.

3 The company may also indicate whether it voluntarily adhered to other codes of the principles of ethics or
olher good praclices, internalional, sector-wise or of olher scope. As the case may be, the company shall
identify the code in question and the date of adherence thereto.

-Continualtion of the explanation included C.2.4-

Article 15 of the Board of Directors Regulations
.- Audit Committee: composition, performance and internal regulations.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors may establish an Audit Committee which shall consist of a minimum of three
(3) and a maximum of five (5) members. Most of its components are non-executive Direclors of the
Board. The Audit Commiltee shall have lhe power of informalion, supervision, advice and proposals
on matters within its competence. The Board shall appoint from among ils members a Chairman, who
shali in any case be an independenl director. The term of office of the Chairman shall be four (4)
years and may be reappointed after lhe expiry of one (1) year from the date of termination. The
Secretary may be the Secretary of the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee shall retire by substilufion, for meeting the deadline for which
they have been appointed, by their own choice or by lhe loss of their status as directors.

2 Performance Rules

The Audit Commillee shali meet whenever convened by ils Chairman, who must call the Committee
whenever requested by the Board of Directors, its Chairman and two (2) components of the Audit
Commiltee and whenever it is deemed appropriale for the proper performance of its duties. In any
case, the Audit Commiltee shall meet not less than four (4) times a year. Any member of the
management team or staff of the Company shall, if requested to do so aftend lhe meetings of the
Audit Committee and cooperale and provide access to the information available. The Committee may
also require exlernal auditors to aflend the sessions. The Chairman of the Audit Commiltee shall
chalr all meetings and direct discussions. The Audit Committee shall be considered validly
constiluted when the majority of ils members are present, either personally or duly represented.

Performance rules applicable lo the Executive Commiltee sessions regarding calling, incorporation
and adoplion of agreements are those set oul by the by-laws.

The Audit Committee shall draft an Annual Report on developed activilies which shall be included
within the Management report of the Company.

Article 16.- Competences of the Audit Committee.

Wilhout prejudice to other funclions assigned by the Board of Directors, the Audit Commillee is
responsible for the fellowing duties: -

.';rll'ff‘::ﬂdfa)
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—

Inform the General Meeting of Shareholders on the issues raised regarding matters within

its competence.

2. Propose the Board of Direclors, for its subsequent submission fo the General Meeling, the
appointment of external auditors, the terms of the contract, the scope of the mandate and,
ils termination or non-renewal.

3. Supervise the funclioning of the internal audit services eslablished by the Board of
Directors, prior fo the reporl of the Appointments, Remuneration and Good Governance
Commiltee, and propose the selection, appointmenl, reappointment or removal of lhe
Director of such services, propose the estimated budget, receive regular informalion on the
activities developed and verify that senior management takes into account the advice and
recommendalions of its reports.

4. Supervise the financial reporling process and internal control systems of the Company.

5. Maintain relations wilh external auditors to receive information on any issues thal may
jeopardize their independence and any others matlers related to the development process
of the audit and other communications provided, if applicable, by audiling legistation and
technical auditing standards.

6. Any other functions altribuled by the by-laws, these Rules, the Rules of Conduct and any

other applicable regulations of the Company. In the exercise of its functions, the Audit

Commitlee may seek the help of experts if it considers that, for reasons of independence or

specialisation, the service is nol adequately provided by the lechnical resources of the

Company. The Commiltee may also request assistance from any employee or officer of the

Company, even ordering their appearance without the presence of any other director.

Aricle 17.- Appoiniments, Remuneralion and Good Governance Commillee; composilion,
performance and internal regulations

1 Composition

The Board of Directors may establish an Appointments, Remunerations and Good Governance
Commiltee which shall consist of a minimum of three (3) and a maximum of five (5) members. Most
of ils components are non-execulive Directors of the Board. The appointment will last six (6) years,
and, in any case, designation shall have the same term as that assigned to each member of the
Commission, who may be re-elecled as often as deemed necessary while maintaining their status as
members of the Board . Members of the Appointments, Remuneration and Good Governance
Committee shall retire by subsfilution, end of mandate, by choice or by lhe loss of his directorship.
The Chairman shall be elected by the Board from among the members of the Committee for a period
of six (6) years and in no case for a period longer than that left to be served as a member of the
Commiltee. The Counsel of the Board shall also allend meeting, yet without right to vote. Furiher,
any member of the management team or any officer of the Company may be required lo altend
meelings of the Commitlee whenever deemed appropriale,

2 Performance Rules

The request for information fo the Appointments, Remuneralion and Good Governance Commitlee
shall be made by the Board of Direclors or its Chairman. The Commitlee shall meet whenever
convened by the Chairman, when requested by a majority of its members or when called by the
Board of Direclors of the Company. In any case, it shall meet whenever the Board or the Chairman of
lhe Board requests lhe issuance of a reporl or the adoption of agreements or when necessary for the
adequale execution of its funclions. Notwilhstanding the above, the Appointments, Remuneration and
Good Governance Commillee shall meel two (2) times a year so as to sludy and apalysis all
condilions and informalion necessary for determining the annual remuneration or the appointment of
board members or senior executives of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Secrelary shall keep minutes of the praceedings, agreements and resolutions of the Commillee,
which shall be adopted by a majorily of its members. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of
Direclors may eslablish any additional operaling rules applicable to the Appointments, Reruneration
and Good Governance Commillee.

Arlicle 18.- Functions of the Appointments, Remunerations and Good Governance Commitlee. . . ...
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Without prejudice fo other functions assigned to the Appoinimends, Remunerations and Good
Governance Committee by the Board of Direclors, the Audit Commiltee is responsible for the
following duties:

1. inform and propose the appointment of members of the Board, whether to the Board itself
so as to appoint members by co-option in order to fill any vacancy or to propose said
appointment to the General Meeting of the Company,

2. Idenlify and propose for approval by the Board of Direclors, the ferms of contracts or
agreements entered into by the Company with the CEO, if applicable.

3. Inform and propose for approval by the Board the remuneralion payable to the members of
the board, as well as addilional allowances for altending its meelings and the meetings of
each Commillee, if any

4. Inform and propose for approval by the Board of Directors the recruilment and appointment
of top level managemenl execulives of the Company and ils subsidiaries, as well as the
remuneration policy and the contractual terms and conditions.

5. Supervision and monitering of transparency in social performance, compliance with the rules
of governance of the Company and compliance wilh the Interal Code of Conduct by Board
members and executives of the Company, reporling the Council of the conduct or breaches
that occur, for correction, or realizing, if not corrected, the General Meeting.
Supervise and moniter the transparency in business, the compliance with good governance
rules of the Company and the compliance with the Intemal Code of Conduct by all members
of the Board and execulives of the Company, reporting to the Board any default so as to
proceed fo correct or prevent said non-conformilies and inform the General Meeting if not
amended.

6. Propose the Board of Direclors, after having draft the reasonable report on lhe same, any
amendment to the regulations hereto.

7. Within the scope of its dulies submit to the Board of Directors for its sludy and subsequent
adoption any appropriate proposals.

Article 18 b. The International Execulive Commiltee: composilion, perfermance and internal
regulations

1 Composition.

The Board of Directors may establish an International Commiitee which shall consist of a maximum
of twelve (12) members who shall be appointed by the Board of Directors al the sole initiative of ils
Chairman. The members of the International Execulive Committee shall be members of the Board, in
their capacily as managers of the Group, or technical officer, in their capacily as international
consultants or induslry experts, specially appointed for this function. The Inlernational Execulive
Commitlee shall be responsible for informaltion, supervision, advice and proposals on matters within
its competence in the internalional arena. The Board will be chaired by the Chairman of the Board.
The decisions of lhe Commillee, adopted by the Chairman, shall be underslood as decisions of the
Chairman. The members of the Inlernational Execulive Commiltee shall retire by substitulion, by end
of mandate, by choice or by the loss of confidence by the Board of Directors.

2 Performance Rules

The Internalional Executive Committee shali be convened whenever called by the Chairman.
Sessions may be plenary sessions or eilher issue groups with the presence of only those members
called by the Chairman regarding the country or area or business seclor of relevance.

3 Competences of the Internalional Executive Commiltee,

Without prejudice to other functions assigned, the Inlernational Execulive Commillee is responsible
for the following duties:

a) To assist in Ihe development of the international area of the Group in all its business lines of
aclivily, that is construction and concessions, energy and real estate and urban developments or
any other business projects. ESTEEANA CRIVDIGLESIAR
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b) To conlribute to increase international relationships wilth public and private, international and
local enlilies.

¢) To seek new business opportunities. To analyse projects and draft proposals for foreign, public
or private enlilies, as well as for other enlilies developing projects at international level.

d} Torise the investment capilal and financing for international projects.

e) To propose projects or joint venlures with the appropriate partners.

4 Remuneration
Remuneration of Member of the Internalional Execulive Committee shall be agreed on by the Board,
upon proposal of the Chairman with the preliminary report of the Appoiniments, Remuneration and

Good Governance Committee, and within the limits and terms passed by the General Shareholders’
Meeting.

This Report has been approved on by the Board of Direclors at ils meeting of 03/25/2015.

Indicate whether Board Members voted against or abstained from voling for or against the approval of this
Report.

Yes No
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DIRECTORS' SIGNATURES

For the purposes of R.D. 1362/2007 on 19 Oclober (Article 8.1.b and Arlicle 10), the undersigned Directors of Grupo
Empresariat San José, S.A. hereby make the following stalement of liabilily:

That, to the best of their knowledge, the consolidated annual accounls prepared in accordance with applicable
accounling standards present a true and fair view of consolidated equity, the consolidated financial position and the
consolidated resulls obtained by the issuer and its consolidated companies taken as a whole and that the
consolidated Directors' Report includes an accurate analysis of business development and resulls, the position of the
issuer and the companies included in the consolidalion taken as a whole, together wilth a description of the principal
risks and uncerlainties which they face. In witness whereof, the Beard of Directors sign herein.

These Consolidaled Financial Statements al 31 December 2014 consisting of lhe Consolidated Balance Sheel,
Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equily, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements, presenled en 112 sheets of plain paper as well as the
Consolidated Directors' Reporl and the Corporate Governance Reporl, presented on 71 sheets of officially stamped
single-sheet paper were prepared by lhe Company's Board of Directors on 20 May 2015.

Mr. Jacinto Rey Gonzalez Mr. Jacinfo Rey Laredo

Mr. Roberto Rey Perales Mr. Enrique Martin Rey

Ms. Altina de Falima Sebastian Gonzélez Mr. Ramén Barral Andrade
Mr. José Manuel Otero Novas Mr. Roberio Alvarez Alvarez

These consolidated financial slalemenls are not
signed by Mr.Rey Gonzalez and Mr.Alvarez
Alvarez, who allended the Council meeling by
videoconference from abroad.

The Secrelary
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NEGATIVE CLEARANCE REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company’s identification:

Grupo Empresarial San José, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Company'’s identification:

R.M. Pontevedra, Volume 586, sheet 88, page 8119
VAT Id #: A36.046.993 Fiscal year: 2014

The undersigned, as Direclor of the above mentioned company state thal accounting records of
the financial statements issued in 184 sheets of paper do not include items to be included within
the document apart from environmental information set forth by Ministerial Order 8 Oclober
2001.

Signature and name of the Directors:

Mr. Jacinto Rey Gonzalez Mr. Jacinto Rey Laredo
Mr. Roberlo Rey Perales Mr. Enrique Martin Rey
Ms. Allina de Fatima Sebaslian Gonzalez Mr. Ramén Barral Andrade

Translator's note: Due fo langiage feafttres, the mmber of pages af the preceding fext does nof correspond (o ﬂre&?gﬂiﬁégﬁdﬁ riversion "
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Mr. José Manue! Olero Novas Mr. Roberto Alvarez Alvarez

These consolidated financial stalements
are nol signed by Mr.Rey Gonzalez and

Mr. Javier Rey Laredo Mr.Alvarez Alvarez, who altended the
Council meeling by videoconference from
abroad.

The Secrelary
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CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICACION

I, Estefania Calvo Iglesias, English
Sworn Translator, ceriified by the
Spanish Ministry of Foreign Affairs,
do hereby certify

that the preceding is a true and faithfil
English translation, on the essentials, of
a document issued in Spanish. In the
event of discrepancy, the Spanish-
language version prevails.

In Madrid, on the twenty-fourth of June,
two thousand and fifieen

Yo,  Estefania  Calvo  Iglesias,
Traductora Jurada de inglés por el
Ministerio de Asuntos Exteriores del
Gobierno de Espafia,
certifico que

la que precede es traduccién fiel y
completa al inglés de un documento
redactado en espafiol. En caso de
discrepancia, el documento original
redactado en espariol prevalece.

Madrid, a veinticuatro de junio de dos
mil quince

- O 1cLERIAS
mﬁﬂ%"‘na S-ESPAROL

Estefania Calvo Iglesias




